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VIRTUAL RADIOLOGIC IS THE NATION'S LEADING
PROVIDER OF DISTRIBUTED TELERADIOLOGY SERVICES.

REVENUE GROWTH
$86.2M
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growth of 59 percent to $86.2 million, while “
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SERVICE EXCELLENCE DRIVES
COMPANY GROWTH IN 2007

Added 132nd affiliated radiologist under contract.
Served 13% of the nation's hospitals.

Increased same-site interpretation volume by 18%.
Derived 24% of revenue from final reads.




CELEBRATING A MOMENTOUS YEAR
VIRTUAL RADIOLOGIC TAKES TELERADIOLOGY'S CENTER STAGE

“n Nevenbes, we welconned oug newest
stockholklems fellowing the desing ef eur
il public effteding, winidh mesulied im
mere than $59 millien in net proceeds”

TO OUR VALUED STOCKHOLDERS,

2007 was a2 momentous year for Virtual Radiologic, marked by
significant milestones and continued growth across all facets of
our business. In November, we welcomed our newest stock-
holders following the closing of our initial public offering,
which resulted in more than $59 million in net proceeds. Our
execuive management team appreciated the opportunity to
share our story with the investment community, and all of us at
Virtual Radiologic are graieful for the enthusiastic response we
received.

Virtual Radiologic generated record financial results in 2007,
including organic revenue growth of 59 percent to $86.2
million, while increasing net income o $3.5 million. These
results inchuded a 25 percent increase in our customer base and
an 18 percent increase in same-site interpretation volume, The
impact of our technology platform was evident in increased
physician productivity, represented by a 360 basis-point gain in
gross margin and lower selling, general and administrative
expenses as a percentage of revenue. In addition, we made
significant inroads in penetrating the final reads market, deriv-
ing 24 percent of our 2007 revenue from final interpretations,
up from 19 percent in 2006.

In 2007, the fundamentals underlying the teleradiology market
remained strong. Demand for diagnostic imaging procedures
continued to exceed the supply of qualified radiclogists, under-
scoring the strategic importance of teleradiology to medical
facilities and radiology groups alike. Despite the challenges of
recruiting radiologists in a supply-constrained environment, we
continued to attract high-caliber physicians on the strength of
our world-class technology platform and our distributed
operating model. In August, we added our 100th reading
radiologist. We closed the year with 112 reading radiologists,
and an additional 20 radiologists under contract preparing to
read for us in 2008,

The past year also saw healthy gains in medical facilities served.
In 2007, we increased the number of medical facilities we
served by 141, bringing the total number of facilities served to
804. At year-end, Virtual Radiologic served 13 percent of the
natton’s hospitals, with nearly a quarter of the revenue from our
facilities served coming from final reads. Early in our
company’s history, we recognized the importance of final reads
and established a U.S.-based practice model to comply with
Medicare reimbursement requirements. Today, our advanced
technology platform, detailed reports and growing reputation
for service excellence have allowed us to further penetrate the
final reads market.

Our customers increasingly depend on Virtual Radiologic not
only for service benchmarks like competitive turnaround
times, but also for the depth of our subspecialty expertise. In
2007, we expanded our interpretation services offerings by
adding pediatric radiology and cardiac CTA. In the coming
years, we expect both of these subspecialties to play an impor-
tant role in attracting and retaining customers.

The dedication of our employees and affiliated radiologists to
serving customets is what makes our success possible, and it’s
personally gratifying to see these efforts improve the practice
of medicine. We have much to be proud of at Virtual Radiologic,
and we look forward to sharing our continued success with
investors in 2008, All of us at Virtual Radiologic are committed
1o building stockholder value through improving the quality of
patient care. Thank vou for placing your trustin Virtual Radiologic,

A O

Sean O. Casey, M
Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer
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PART |
Special Note Regarding Forward Looking Statements

Certain statements in this annual report are “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of
Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934, as amended, including, in particular, statements about our plans, objectives, strategies and
prospects regarding, among other things, our business and results of operations. These statements
involve a number of risks, uncertainties and other factors that could cause our actual results,
performance or achievements to be materially different from any future results, performance or
achievements expressed or implied by these forward-looking statements. Statements that are not
historical facts in this report are forward-looking statements that involve certain risks, uncertainties and
assumptions. Should one or more of these risks or uncertainties materialize, or should underlying
assumptions prove incorrect, actual results may vary materially from those indicated. Except as required
by applicable law, we undertake no duty to update these forward-looking statements due to new
information or as a result of future events.

1 Among the factors that could cause our actual results to differ materially from those expressed or
implied in such forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to:

* the competition in the teleradiology market, including the possibility of pricing pressure resulting
from that competition;

| * our ability to effectively manage our growth and development;

« the outcome of the intellectual property claim against us by Merge eMed, Inc., and any other
future intellectual property claims;

= our ability to recruit and retain qualified radiologists;
+ the loss of key members of management and personnel;

* our ability to obtain proper physician licenses and hospital credentials on behalf of our affiliated
radiologists;

*» the regulation of the corporate practice of medicine;

* our dependence on our Affiliated Medical Practices, which we do not own;

« our ability to enforce the non-competition agreements with our affiliated radiologists;
* new technologies;

« the breach of our security measures that safeguard patient and customer data;

+ the performance of our information systems, which are dependent on systems provided by third
parties; and
= our ability to comply with government regulations.

We discuss many of the foregoing risks in this report in greater detail under the heading “Risk
Factors " Given these uncertainties, you should not place undue reliance on these forward-looking
'statements.

In this repont, Virtual Radiologic Corporation is sometimes referred to as “VRC."” Virtual Radiologic
Professmnals of California, PA., Virtual Radiologic Professionals of Illinois, S.C., Virtual Radiologic
Professuonals of Michigan, PC., Vlrtual Radiologic Professionals of Minnesota, PA., Virtual Radiologic
Professionals of New York, PA and Virtual Radiologic Professionals of Texas, PA are collectively
referred to as the “Professional Corporations.” Virtual Radiologic Professionals, LLC, or VRF, and the
Professional Corporations are collectively referred to as the “Affiliated Medical Practices.” VRC has a
wholly owned and consolidated subsidiary, Virtual Radiologic Limited, or VRL, formed under the laws of
England and Wales and located in London, England. The terms “Company,” “we,” us,” and “our” as

|usecl in this report refer to VRC, its Affiliated Medical Practices and VRL.




ITEM 1. Business
Overview

We provide radiologic interpretations, or reads, via teleradiology for emergency and routine care
coverage. We believe we are the second largest provider of teleradiclogy services in the United States,
We serve our customers—radiology practices, hospitals, clinics and diagnostic imaging centers—by
providing reads 24 hours a day, 365 days a year. Our unique distributed operating model provides our
qualified team of American Board of Radiclogy-certified radiologists with the ftexibility to choose the
location from which they work, primarily within the United States, and allows us to serve customers
located throughout the country. We provide these services through a robust, highly scalable
communications network incorporating encrypted broadband internet connections and proprietary
workflow management software.

We provide radiology practices, hospitals, clinics and diagnostic imaging centers an attractive way
to improve service levels, streamline underlying practice economics and enhance physician efficiency,
without sacrificing the quality of work. We assist our customers by providing them with access to
subspecialty-trained radiologists to perform reads, day or night, thereby improving the quality of patient
care. Our ability to provide coverage 24 hours a day supports our customers when their workloads
increase during the day and relieves the burden of performing reads overnight, during holidays, on
weekends and other difficult-to-staff times. We believe this allows our customers to provide seamless
patient care and to better attract and retain radiologists in their practices.

Our services include both preliminary reads, which are performed for emergent care purposes, and
final reads, which are performed for both emergent and non-emergent care purposes. Our unigue
distributed operating model and primarily U.S.-based affiliated radiologists have enabled us to expand
our services into the final reads market. In 2004, 1% of our read revenue was derived from final reads as
compared to 24% in 2007. We believe our distributed model has positioned us as one of the leading final
read providers in the teleradiology industry and wiil facilitate continued expansion into the larger final
reads market.

Through our unique distributed operating model and proprietary workflow management software,
we provide our affiliated radiologists with a flexible choice of location, predictable schedule and
competitive compensation. Our affiliated radiologists, substantially all of whom are located in the United
States, are certified by the American Board of Radiology, licensed by the states in which they practice
and credentialed by the hospitals for which they perform reads. We have a large number of U.S.-based
affiliated radiologists dedicated to the practice of teleradiology. Our affiliated radiologists collectively
hold licenses in all 50 states, the District of Columbia and Puerto Rico. As of December 31, 2007, we had
112 radiologists providing services for us and had contracted with an additional 20 radiologists who had
not yet begun servicing our customers.

Our primary customers are local radiology practices that have already contracted with hospitals and
¢linics and require diagnostic image interpretation services for a range of imaging modalities including
CT, MRl and ultrasound. We are compensated by our customers and do not directly depend on
reimbursement from patients or third party payers. As of December 31, 2007, our affiliated radiologists
provided services to 469 customers serving 804 medical facilities, which includes 752 hospitals,
representing approximately 13% of hospitals in the United States. This represented an increase of 21%
of medical facilities served and an increase of 25% in customers under contract from December 31,
2006.

For a more detailed description of our Affiliated Medical Practices, please refer to Note 1 of the
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements contained elsewhere in this report.




industry Overview

Teleradiology is the practice of transmitting digital diagnostic images to a location, remote from the
site of image origination, for interpretation by a radiologist. Due to recent advances in technology,
images can be transmitted from the point of origination to the location of the radiologist in a reliable,
standardized, cost-effective and encrypted manner. This process differs from traditional radiology
services in which radiologists typically live near the hospitals or clinics with which they are employed or
affiliated, and must travel to those locations to read the images, resulting in significant inefficiencies.
Teleradiology removes the physical constraint for radiologists to perform reads at the point of image
origination and permits a remotely located radiologist to perform reads. Common examples of digital
diagnostic images include CT, MRI and ultrasound images.

The teleradiology services industry has developed rapidly within the last few years, and we expect it
will continue to develop due to an increasing volume of diagnostic imaging procedures, significant
shortages in the number of radiologists, advances in digital diagnostic imaging technologies, advances
in communication technologies and a wider acceptance of teleradiology services in hospital and clinical
settings.

Advances in digital diagnostic imaging and broadband communication technologies, capable of
rapidly transmitting and storing digital images without degradation, have permitted a more timely and
more efficient review of radiology images by remotely located radiologists. In addition, the advances in
broadband communication technologies now permit reliable, secure, encrypted and cost effective
transmission of image data files. Moreover, as a result of government mandated upgrades to electronic
patient data systems and the relative affordability of these technology advances, hospitals and other
health care facilities are upgrading their legacy computer systems to new equipment capable of
generating and transmitting the digital images necessary for teleradiology. These advancements, as well
as an aging population, the growing availability of imaging equipment in hospitals and clinics, and more
frequent physician referrals for diagnostic imagining, have resulted in an increase in the demand for
diagnostic imaging procedures. In addition, these factors and the current radiologist education models
have created a growing shortage in the number of radiologists to meet this growing demand in
diagnostic image volumes.

The convergence of these trends allows for efficiencies in the provision of radiology services and is
driving the wider acceptance of teleradiology services in hospital and clinical settings. Teleradiology
permits the aggregation of radiology requirements from a number of hospitals to more highly-trained
and qualified radiologists, which results in cost savings and increased accessibility. In addition,
teleradiology contributes to improved patient care through increased efficiency, accessibility to
subspecialty expertise and optimized timing between the request for a radiographic image read and its
interpretation.

Our Solution

We believe we are the second largest provider of teleradiology services to radiology practices,
hospitals, clinics and diagnostic imaging centers throughout the United States. Our services and
technology enable our customers to provide a high quality of medical care to their patients. We serve our
customers by providing reads 24 hours a day, 365 days a year. Utilizing our proprietary workflow
management software and secure broadband internet connections, we connect our customers and our
affiliated radiologists through an easy-to-use, robust and scalable communications network.

We believe our brand name, reputation and ability to deliver quality results drive customer
relationships and retention, in turn attracting the best radiology talent and performance. Our established
presence, comprehensive service offering and technology allow us to create a critical solution for
medical care providers faced with shortages in radiclogy resources. We focus on quality patient care
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and industry-feading service levels. We believe we have played an integral role in the development of the
teleradiology services market and we maintain a growing customer base with recurring revenue.

We have a large group of U.S.-based radiologists dedicated to the practice of teleradiology. Without
requiring these physicians to relocate either domestically or internationally, we provide our affiliated
radiologists with a flexible choice of location, predictable schedule and competitive compensation. In
addition, the location of our affiliated radiologists allows us to respond to opportunities in the market for
final reads, which must be performed by U.S.-domiciled radiologists to comply with Medicare
reimbursement rules.

Our operating model provides radiologists with digital access to images and allows instant delivery
of their reports and direct communication with attending physicians, when required. We employ our
radiology information system, or RIS, workflow management software, and operations center to
maximize the efficiency of our affiliated radiologists while maintaining a high standard of quality, service
and response time. Qur proprietary workflow software manages our radiology caseload by matching the
patient's need with a properly licensed and credentialed radiologist with expertise to most adequately
provide patient care and optimizes the assignment of cases across our affiliated radiologists to minimize
read turnaround times.

Our ability to rapidly assign reads to appropriately credentialed and trained specialists permits us to
deliver high quality and specialized radiology services, including subspecialty services, to our
customers. Our affiliated radiologists include subspecialty fellowship-trained radiologists in areas such
as neuroradiology, abdominal imaging, musculoskeletal radiology, pediatric radiology, thoracic imaging
and ultrasound, enabling us to match the appropriately skilled radiologist with the patient images we
receive.

Our substantial investment in designing, developing and installing our distributed network,
proprietary workflow management software and radiotogist reading tools has allowed us to complement
rapid customer growth with new radiologist hires to meet growing customer demand. In addition to
developing our proprietary RIS system, we have integrated additional technological solutions—stich as
a 3-D capable viewer and a voice recognition system—and ergonomically advanced reading stations, to
maximize radiologist efficiency. We have also developed automation tools for all workflow processes for
radiologist recruitment and deployment, licensing and credentialing, scheduling, finance and
management reporting.

Our Service Offerings

We serve our customers—radiology practices, hospitals, clinics and diagnostic imaging centers—
by providing reads 24 hours a day, 365 days a year. We provide both preliminary and final reads for a
broad range of digital diagnostic imaging modalities, including CT, MRI and ultrasound. We generally
contract with radiology practices to provide coverage for the hospitals that are their customers;
although, in some instances, we contract directly with hospitals. Our affiliated radiologists typically
perform the reads from their home offices using a high-speed encrypted internet connection that
connects them to our network. Occasionally, our affiliated radiologists read from our two reading room
facilities located in Maui, Hawaii and Minnetonka, Minnesota.

We also license the use of our technology infrastructure and provide support services to our
radiology group customers. For example, our radiclogy group customers that cover multiple hospitals
may perform reads over our infrastructure regardless of what equipment is in use at each hospital and
without having to travel between hospitals.




Diagnostic Imaging Modalities

Diagnostic radiology aids in the diagnosis and treatment of injuries, diseases and other medical
conditions by interpreting images of the human body. Our affiliated radiologists collectively have the
expertise, including subspecialty fellowship training, necessary to permit us to read all diagnostic
imaging modalities, including CT, MRI, ultrasound, nuclear medicine, Positron Emission Tomography, or
PET, and X-ray technologies. Currently, almost all of the reads performed by our affiliated radiologists are
CT, MRI, ultrasound, nuclear medicine and X-ray technologies.

« Computed Tomography (CT). CT scans utilize a computer to direct the movement of an X-ray
tube to produce high-resolution, three-dimensional, cross-sectional images of organs and tissue,
and are typically used to detect tumors and other conditions affecting bones and internal crgans.

« Magnetic Resonance Imaging (MRI). MRI utilizes a strong magnetic field in conjunction with
low energy electromagnetic waves that are processed by a computer to produce high-resotution,
three-dimensional, cross-sectional images of body tissue, including the brain, spine, abdomen,
heart and extremities.

» Ultrasound. Ultrasound imaging utilizes high-frequency sound waves to produce images of
internal organs, fetuses and the vascular system.

« Digital/Computed Radiography. Digital/computed radiography uses computer image creation
and processing technology to capture x-ray images as digital images.

For the year ended December 31, 2007, 77% of the reads we performed were CT scans.

Off-Hours and Daytime Services

We provide coverage to our customers 24 hours per day, 365 days a year. We offer daytime service
typically between the hours of 8 a.m. to 5 p.m., local time, Monday through Friday, and off-hours service
between the hours of 5 p.m. to 8 a.m., loca! time, Monday through Friday, and 24 hours a day service on
weekends and holidays. A majority of the services that we provide are preliminary reads performed
during off-hours for hospital emergency rooms during evenings, nights and weekends. Off-hours
coverage typically consists of preliminary reads of diagnostic images, which are performed in order to
immediately treat a patient’s condition in an emergency setting. We also provide our customers with
emergent final reads in lieu of or ancillary to preliminary reads, as well as final reads performed for
routine daytime coverage for non-emergent purposes. We assist our customers' own radiology
practices by providing them with additional capacity to meet their patient demand and additional
coverage for periods when their own radiologists may be on vacation or otherwise unavailable due to
illness or emergency. Our affiliated radiologists also provide subspecialty capabilities that may not
otherwise be available to our customers.

Preliminary and Final Reads: Report Delivery

A preliminary read is intended primarily to address an emergent condition, or those reqguiring
prompt medical attention. Preliminary reads may be less detailed than final reads, since they are
intended to address emergent symptoms and must be available in a short period of time in order to
provide proper patient care in emergency situations. A final read is a definitive read relating to any
abnormality appearing in the radiographic image and requires a more thorough review of a patient’s
clinical history and comparison of the current radiographic images with any earlier images, if available. A
final read report typically contains detailed findings, including an analysis of the images with
measurements of each abnormality found and a diagnosis of the condition evidenced by the images.
Final reads are not typically delivered for emergency treatment and, therefare, the traditional industry
turnaround time between receipt of the patient images and delivery of a final report is ordinarily not as




critical to patient care. For the year ended December 31, 2007, 76% of our reads were preliminary reads
and 24% were final reads.

The generally accepted turnaround time for preliminary reads is 30 minutes, while the generally
accepted turnaround time for final reads is 72 hours. Using voice recognition dictation systems, we are
generally able to provide preliminary reads more closely resembling the contents of a final read. We
typically provide preliminary and final reads in emergent care settings within approximately 20 minutes
from receipt of order. We typically provide final reads in non-emergent cases within 24 hours from receipt
of patient images. Final reads, unlike preliminary reads, may be reimbursed by Medicare and other third
party payers and, therefore, in order to comply with Medicare rules, must be performed by U.S.-based
radiologists.

Our Operations
Our Affiliated Radiologists

As of December 31, 2007, we had 112 affiliated radiclogists who were providing services for us, and
an additional 20 radiologists who had entered into contracts with us but had not yet begun serving our
customers, We structure our relationships with our affiliated radiologists in a manner that we believe
results in an independent contractor relationship, and VRC has no control aver the reads rendered by
the radiologists or their independent judgment concerning the practice of medicine. In addition, we do
not prescribe a location from which our affiliated radiologists must work and do not limit the other
professional activities of our affiliated radiologists, other than prohibiting them from working for a
competitor engaged in teleradiology. Although we believe that we are their principal engagement for the
practice of radiology, several of our affiliated radiologists hold part-time academic appointments with
teaching institutions or provide local radiology services. We typically enter into one-year professional
services contracts with our affiliated radiologists that automatically renew unless terminated by either
party pursuant to the terms of the agreement. The contracts generally provide for an agreed upon work
schedule, typically between approximately 1,600 to 2,200 hours per year. Our affiliated radiologists are
able to exchange schedules among themselves, provided that they notify us within a reasonable time in
advance of their scheduied shift and that they have the appropriate licenses and hospital credentials to
ensure that we have adequate coverage for all of our customers at all times.

Our compensation policies target the average radiologist compensation at traditional private
radiology practices and are designed to accommodate varying levels of productivity. We offer our
affiliated radiologists what we believe to be a desirable and unigue benefit of being able to live where
they choose within the United States, to work from home or, in certain instances, a local office and the
option to work a fult schedule or a partial schedule for a pro-rated amount of compensation. in addition,
we offer them the ability to obtain real-time consultations from their colleagues while working on-line,
and to earn performance-based compensation competitive with private practice compensation without
the interruption or distraction ordinarily associated with a hospital-based practice. We also offer our
affiliated radiologists the opportunity to obtain equity ownership in VRC through our equity incentive
plan. We believe our compensation model assists us in recruiting radiologists because it permits us to
accommodate our affiliated radiologists’ professional practice of medicine and their personal lifestyle
choices.

Our affiliated radiologists have received residency training at some of the most prestigious
institutions in the country, including Harvard Medical School, The Johns Hopkins University, Duke
University School of Medicine, University of Pennsylvania School of Medicine, Ctevetand Clinic Lerner
College of Medicine and Stanford University Schoot of Medicine, and 24 of our 112 affiliated radiologists
held the position of chief resident during their residency. In addition, 85 of our 112 affiliated radiologists
received subspeciaity fellowship training, including training at, among others, the following institutions:
Harvard Medical School, University of Pennsylvania School of Medicine, University of California San




Francisco School of Medicine, New York University School of Medicine, Duke University School of
Medicine and The Johns Hopkins University School of Medicine. Nine of our affiliated radiologists also
hold part-time academic appointments at Beth Israel Deaconess Medical Center, a teaching affiliate of
the Harvard Medical School, The George Washington School of Medicine and Health Services,
University of Arizona College of Medicine, University of Colorado Health Sciences Center, Loma Linda
University School of Medicine, Eastern Virginia Medical School, New York Medical Coilege and the
University of Pennsylvania.

We endeavor, through written and frequent personal communications, to maintain a sense of
coilegiality and cohesiveness in order to offset their physical distance. Our “virtual reading room” model
permits our affiliated radiologists the consultative support associated with central reading facilities
without the disruptions involved in physically moving around an office to obtain a consultation. We
provide technical support to our affiliated radiologists, including training, trouble shooting, system
maintenance and upgrades. In addition, our physician relations department maintains regular contact
with our affiliated radiologists in order to provide them with non-technical support. We believe that our
high rate of retention for our affiliated radiologists is due in part to our unique relationship with our
affiliated radiologists.

Recruitment of Radiologists

Our goal is to recruit highly qualified radiologists who are certified by the American Board of
Radiology and offer them the opportunity to work from locations of their choice within the United States.

Our affiliated radiologists undergo an extensive screening process that involves personal interviews
with several of our staff members at our headquarters and a review of the candidate’s credentials and
prior experience, including whether the candidate has been subject to malpractice claims. In addition,
candidates are assigned to a licensing and credentialing specialist, who obtains the necessary
documentation in order to admit the candidate to practice with us and to apply for state medical licenses
and hospital credentials. We schedule our recruitment of radiologists to match our anticipated case
study volumes, and assist our new radiologists in obtaining the required state medical licenses and
hospital credentials.

We believe that our affiliated radiologists consider the flexibility of our model an attractive and
unique aspect of their relationship with us. We also believe that our affiliated radiclogists prefer the work
environment and business opportunities that we provide. As such, we have experienced a very high
retention rate of our affiliated radiologists. We believe that the benefits we offer and our screening
process allow us to recruit highly qualified radiclogists with subspecialty training.

Licensing and Credentialing

Our affiliated radiologists are required to hold a current license in good standing to practice
medicine from each of the states in which they read and from which they receive radiologica! images. In
addition, our affiliated radiologists are required to have credentials at each hospital from which those
images originate. Due to these requirements, and because we were serving 804 medical facilities as of
December 31, 2007, our affiliated radiologists are each licensed to practice medicine in an average of
28 states and each has been granted credentials at an average of 207 hospitals.

Licensing procedures and requirements vary according to each state’s laws and regulations
governing the issuance of medical licenses. These procedures typically include an extensive application
process that covers significant aspects of the applicant's professional and personal life. In addition, to
maintain a license to practice medicine in a given state, the state will often require the physician to
undergo continuing education and training, and to maintain minimum thresholds of medical liability
insurance.



To comply with these requirements, we obtain primary source verification documentation for each of
our affiliated radiologists that is necessary for them to obtain state medical licenses and hospital
credentials in the states and for the hospitals where they will be providing services. Our affiliated
radiologists are required to provide copies of their birth certificates and documentation regarding their
educational and work history, including diplomas, transcripts, employment verifications and references.
We use that information to obtain direct, or primary, verification from each institution or other source
identified to us by the applicant. When we have obtained the necessary verification, we use the verified
information to prepare state medical license application forms and hospital credential application forms.
We also monitor state license renewal due dates and particular state continuing medical education, or
CME, requirements. Our licensing and credentialing personnel monitor medical liability insurance
coverage matters particular to each state and other cngoing licensing-related obligations.

The credentialing requirements of hospitals may vary significantly. However, hospitals that are
accredited by The Joint Commission (formerly referred to as the Joint Cornmission on Accreditation of
Healthcare Organizations), are permitted to rely upon the information and procedures from other Joint
Commission-accredited institutions. We have been a Joint Commission-accredited entity since 2004. As
a result, Joint Commission-accredited hospitals can accept our verified credentialing information and
procedures without duplicating our verification processes, thus significantly reducing the expense and
period of time before we can begin providing reads for those hospitals.

Network and Workflow Overview

We deliver our services to our customers through a workflow process that utilizes public network
infrastructures, virtual private networks, or VPN, our web-based RIS and proprietary workflow
technologies. Our network has been designed to be secure, scalable, efficient and reliable. The
following is a description of our workflow process:

* Requisition of Reads. When a radiological procedure is performed, the radiology technologist
at the hospital transmits the patient images to us. A corresponding order is created within our
web-based RIS that is accessible on the technologist’'s computer screen at the hospital. The
technologist supplies any necessary information, including procedural information and relevant
clinical data, and verifies the order. The order is then automatically tracked and monitored by, and
its status is available to, the hospital technologist at all times.

* Image Transmisslon and Assignment. Radiological images and related data initially access the
internet via the hospital's internet service provider and traverse the internet by encrypted
transmission through public network infrastructure to our central servers. The images and data
are directed via encrypted transmission to an affiliated radiclogist that is properly licensed in the
relevant state and credentialed at the applicable hospital, and has the appropriate subspecialty
training for the particular read, if required. Our operations center and our systems constantty
monitor radiologist case loads and the status of orders, and oversee assignment of additional
subspecialty radiclogists to the order at predetermined intervals in order to sharten turnaround
times.

* Reports and Delivery. Our affiliated radiologist selects from among the orders on his work list
based on aging, examines the images and uses the voice recognition dictation system integrated
with our RIS to dictate a detailed report including findings, impressions and diagnosis. if a
consultation, or consult, is required, the radiologist may use our secure instant messaging
system to request a consult from any colleague with the appropriate subspecialty training who is
then also online, and may include the text of the proposed report with the consult request. When
the report has been completed, the radiologist electronically signs the report and activates the
“send” function, which immediately posts the report on the hospital cormputer's RIS screen for
viewing and simultaneously faxes the report to the proper destinations at the hospital. In some
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cases, the information contained within the report is also directly entered into the patient’s file
residing on the hospital’s own internal information system through an integration interface
between our RIS and the hospital’s own system. The customer may also print a copy on demand
from our RIS.

Quality Assurance Processes. We have a Quality Assurance, or QA, Committee composed
entirely of radiologists who are responsible for overseeing the quality of services performed by
our affiliated radiologists. When a customer's radiologist who performs the final read notes
discrepancies with the preliminary read performed by our affiliated radiologists, those
discrepancies are reported to the QA Committee. The QA Committee reviews each discrepancy
report to determine whether the discrepancy is significant to patient treatment, and may
recommend remedial steps, including appropriate CME courses. The QA Committee also
performs sample reviews of finat reads for our affiliated radiologists whose final reads are not
typically over-read by our customer’s radiologist.

Technical Infrastructure. We have designed, implemented and maintained our technical
infrastructure to be robust, reliable, secure and scalable. We operate our production
infrastructure from a data center in a Minneapolis facility utilizing redundant fail-safe connections.
We also use fully redundant fail-safe network hardware and redundant load-balanced fail-safe
servers. We have designed our technical infrastructure and network architecture to permit
significant capacity expansion by the addition of standard equipment modules, such as servers
and routers, without having to redesign or reconfigure our systems. We employ a staff of network
engineers and systems engineers to provide coverage of our systems 24 hours a day, 365 days a
year. This staff monitors operations of all systems, including connections to each hospital and to
each of our affiliated radiologists.

HIPAA Compliance/Disaster Recovery. Our network architecture and technical infrastructure
are designed to comply with the requirements of the Health Insurance Portability and
Accountability Act of 1996, or HIPAA, and we have recently undergone a HIPAA Risk Assessment
and Audit conducted by an independent third party. The results of the audit concluded that we
were in full compliance with all applicable HIPAA requirements. In accordance with HIPAA
requirements, we also maintain a disaster recovery program in case of disaster or extended
electrical outage at our headquarters in Minnetonka, Minnesota, where our operations center is
located. This program allows our non-medical office functions to be marginally functional within
one hour, reasonably functional within six hours and fully functional in temporary quarters within
48 hours. Due to the geographical dispersion of our affiliated radiologists, the occurrence ofa
local disaster or extended electrical outage in any other geographic area is not likely to directly
impact our medial service delivery functions.

Operations Center. We maintain a staffed operations center, 24 hours a day, 365 days a year.
Our operations center performs and manages all non-physician functions, including receiving
orders and images, monitoring the status of orders and turnaround times, confirming consistency
between the number of images identified in the order and the number of images actually received,
confirming report delivery and providing help-desk services. Our operations center also facilitates
all direct communication between our affiliated radiologists and hospital staff which may be
necessary regarding image sequence protocols or in the event of a significant finding that affects
immediate patient care. In cases of image sequence protocols, the hospital technologist may
request the operations center to establish a telephone conference concerning the proper
protocol, or our radiologist may request the telephone conference to correct a protocol in case
the images received by our operations center do not permit a proper study to be performed. In
case of significant finding, our affiliated radiologist initiates the request for direct communication
and alerts the operations center to call the hospital, locate the attending physician and establish a
direct telephone connection between the attending physician and our affiliated radiologist. These
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centralized administrative and support functions allow our affiliated radiologists to focus solely on
providing reads, without the distraction of administrative duties.

+ Site Iimplementation. After we enter into a contract with a new customer, our
site-implementation engineers work with the technology personnel of the radiology practice or
hospital to establish firewall permissions for customer access to our web-based RIS and to
configure a VPN circuit to transfer digital imaging and communications in medicine-compliant
images. Upon successful testing of the image transfers and order entry functions, the customer
may begin to use our services. Typically, we also conduct a telephonic training session to educate
our customer’s personnel ahout this process.

+ Systems and Network Administration. We employ information technology professionals to
maintain our systems and network and to provide technical support to our customers. Our
customers may contact us for technical support, 24 hours a day, 365 days a year.

Software Development

We focus our software development efforts in the following seven general areas in order to improve
and enhance our existing workflow solutions, including to develop new solutions that will enable us to
more efficiently and effectively deliver our services to our customers. These efforts focus on:

* Development of a secondary platform to be used by third parties for their provision of reads over
our infrastructure regardless of what equipment is in use at each hospital and without having to
travel between hospitals;

« integrating our RIS with hospital information systems so that final reads can be delivered directly
into the hospital's patient record without the need to manually reenter data;

* increasing our ability to integrate our systems with those of our customers, regardless of their
internal network systems;

« enhancing our management of real time workflows to match hospital demands with the
subspecialty capabilities of our affiliated radiologists;

= refining our ability to manage our scheduling and report delivery time requirements;
= enhancing the efficiency of our affiliated radiofogists through refined workflow techniques; and
* improving our administrative data management and workflow tools.

Our proprietary software and workflow solutions are subject to pending patent applications and
were developed by our software engineers located in our headquarters, at our Mountain View, California
facility and in their home offices, which are located in several states.

Customers and Customer Service

As of December 31, 2007, we provided services to 469 radiology practices serving 804 medical
facilities. We believe that our customer retention rate confirms the benefits that our services provide to
our customers. None of our custorers represent more than 10% of our annual revenue,

Our customer contracts typically have a one- or two-year term and automatically renew for
successive terms uniless earlier terminated pursuant to the terms of the contract. Qur customer contracts
specify the agreed upon coverage periods and whether preliminary and/or final reads will be provided.
We charge an agreed upon per-read fee that, subject to certain conditions, may be changed by us by
providing advance notice to the customer prior to the beginning of a new term. Invoices sent by us to our
customers must be paid within 30 days of receipt. Subject to certain exceptions, our customer contracts
provide that we are their exclusive provider of teleradiology services during the agreed upon hours of
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coverage. Our customers generally may not independently solicit our affiliated radiologists during the
term of their customer contract and for a specified period of time thereafter. Qur customer contracts
generally provide for indemnification for claims arising out of negligence or material breach of the
contract.

After we sign a contract with a customer, we assign one of our dedicated customer account service
representatives to cover that customer. Our account service representatives serve as the primary contact
with the customer during our service installation phase. Following installation, our account service
representatives serve as our primary liaison with our customers for all service issues and for adding
additional sites, coverage hours or other expanded services.

Our Competition

The market for teleradiology is highly competitive, rapidly evolving and fragmented, and is subject
to changing technology and market dynamics. We compete directly with both large and small-scale
service providers who offer local, regional and national operations. We believe that our principal
competitor is Nighthawk Radiology Holdings, Inc., which completed its initia! public offering in 2006. We
believe that the principal competitive factors in our market include:

* reputation of the service provider;
« reliability of coverage and quality of services provided;

« qualifications, experience and subspecialty training of the affiliated radiologists providing the
services; :

» ability to furnish both preliminary and final reads;

» number of affiliated radiologists licensed in relevant states;

* price of services,

« turnaround times required to complete and return reads;

* quality of customer support;

* leve! of detail provided in preliminary reads;

» quality and reliability of service-provider technology and workflow infrastructure;
= tachnological innovation; !

« sales and marketing capabilities of the service provider; and

« financial stability of the service provider.

We believe that our solution provides us with advantages over our competitors in both recruitment
of radiotogists and provision of services. However, we cannot assure you that our competitors will not
develop services that are more aftractive than ours or that our competitors will not achieve greater
market acceptance for their services than we are able to achieve for ours. The industry in which we
operate is highly competitive, and we expect competition to increase in the future, which will make it
more difficult for us to sell our services and may result in pricing pressure, reduced revenue and reduced
market share.

Sales and Marketing
Sales

Our direct sales force is our primary means of selling our services. We employ 14 telesales and field
sales professionals who are organized by geographic regions in the United States. Our sales
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professionals focus their efforts on radiology practices, hospitals, clinics and diagnostic imaging
centers. In addition, we have acquired, and we expect to continue to acquire, new customers as a resuit
of referrals from our existing customers. In compliance with applicable federal and state anti-kickback
legislation, we do not compensate our customers or others for referrals.

Marketing

Through our marketing efforts, we seek to reach the following objectives: (i) build customer
awareness of our brand, service offerings and value propositions; (ii) generate qualified sales leads;
(iii) retain beneficial relationships with customers, our affiliated radiologists and employees; (iv) attract
and recruit top industry talent to become our affiliated radiologists and our employees; and (v) raise
overall awareness of our Company’s name as a leading provider of teleradiology to radiology practices,
hospitals, clinics and diagnostic imaging centers across the United States.

in order to reach our marketing objectives, we are actively utilizing:

* lead generation programs, including search engine marketing campaigns, advertising in
leading industry trade publications, paid placement advertising on select industry web sites,
and targeted direct mail campaigns to radiology practices, hospitals, clinics and diagnostic
imaging centers,

* brand awareness building activities, including a quarterly Company-mailed newsletter to
more than 3,000 industry professionals and ongoing public relations announcements;

* participation in, and sponsorship of, numerous radiology conferences, educational events
and industry trade shows; and

* our external web site as a primary lead generation tool, recruiting tool and centralized source
of information about our Company and our services.

Our Corporate Structure

VRC was formed through a merger between Virtual Radiologic Consultants, Inc., a Minnesota
corporation, and Virtual Radiologic Consultants, inc., a Delaware corporation, that was consummated
on May 2, 2005. On January 1, 2006, Virtual Radiclogic Consultants, Inc., a Delaware corporation and
the surviving entity in the merger, changed its name to Virtual Radiologic Corporation. VRP, a Delaware
limited liability company, is the successor by merger to Virtual Radiologic Professionals, PLC, a
Minnesota professional limited liability company, which was the successor to Virtual Radiologic
Consultants, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company organized in 2001 to engage in the provision of
teleradiology. VRP is the physician-owned practice that contracts with our affiliated radiologists for the
provision of their services to fulfill customer contracts held by VRC or our other Affiliated Medical
Practices. In addition, VRC has a wholly owned and consclidated subsidiary, VRL, formed under the
laws of England and Wales and located in London, England.

Our services are provided to our customers by VRC and our Professional Corporations. VRC owns
and operates the technical infrastructure over which our business is conducted. VRC contracts with our
customers for the provision of our services in those jurisdictions in which we believe that it is lawful for a
business corporation to contract for the provision of medical services, including providing reads. The
services we provided directly through contracts between VRC and our customers represented
$46.5 million, or 54% of our revenues for the year ended December 31, 2007. In those states in which
only a physician-owned professional corporation may contract to provide medical services, the
Professional Corporations contract with our customers to provide teleradiology services in those
jurisdictions. The Professional Corporations collectively hold customer contracts that represented
$39.8 million, or 46% of our revenues for the year ended December 31, 2007.
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VRP is VRC's Affiliated Medical Practice that provides all radiologist services necessary o fulfill
customer contracts held by VRC and the Professional Corporations. VRP is owned by Dr. Sean Casey,
Dr. Eduard Michei, Dr. Gary Weiss and Dr. David Hunter. Dr. Casey is currently the Chief Executive Officer
and Chairman of the Board of Directors of VRC, and Dr. Michel is currently the Medical Director of VRC
and is a member of the Board of Directors of VRC. Dr. Casey, Dr. Michel, Dr. Weiss and Dr. Hunter are
each stockholders of VRC.

The Professional Corporations are professional corporations wholly-owned by Dr. Casey. Each of
the Professional Corporations is incorporated or qualified to do business in a state where only a
physician-owned professional corporation may contract to provide medical services, including
providing reads. Pursuant to management services agreements between VRC and each of the
Professional Corporations, VRC provides ali of the management services necessary for the operations of
each of the Professional Corporations and licenses VRC's technology infrastructure to each of the
Professional Corporations. Each of the Professional Corporations pay VRC a management and license
fee for each read performed on its behalf over VRC's teleradiology infrastructure. In addition, VRC and
each of the Professional Corporations have contracted with VRP for the provision of physician services
to fulfill customer contracts held by the Professional Corporations and pays VRP a fixed fee per read
performed, which is established annually by the Board of Directors of VRC and the Professional
Corporations and is intended to cover the cost of physician compensation paid to our affiliated
radiologists and the cost of malpractice insurance.

Governmental Regulation and Oversight

The healthcare industry is highly regulated. Our ability to operate profitably will depend in part upon
the ability of us, our affiliated radiologists and our customers to obtain and maintain all necessary
licenses and other approvals to comply with applicable healthcare regulations. We believe that
healthcare regulations will continue to change. Therefore, we monitor developments in healthcare law,
and we are likely to be required to modify our operations from time to time as the business and
regulatory environment changes. Although we believe that we are operating in compliance with
applicable federal and state laws, neither our current nor anticipated business operations have been the
subject of judicial or regulatory interpretation. We cannot assure you that a review of our business by
courts or regulatory authorities will not result in a determination that could adversely affect our
aperations or that the healthcare regulatory environment will not change in a way that restricts our
operations. Future changes in healthcare regulation are difficutt to predict and may constrain or require
us to restructure our operations, which could negatively impact our business and operating resulis.

Physician Licensure Laws

The practice of medicine, including the practice of radiology and teleradiology, is subject to state
licensure laws, regulations and approvals. Physicians located in one state who provide professional
medical services to a patient located in another state via a telemedicine system must ordinarily hold a
valid license to practice medicine in both the state where the physician is located and the state in which
the patient is located. We have established a system for ensuring that our affiliated radiologists are
appropriately licensed under applicable state law. If we are unable to obtain proper physician licenses or
hospital credentials on behalf of our affiliated radiologists, or if our affiliated radiologists lose those
licenses or credentials, our business, financial condition and results of operations may be negatively
impacted.

Corporate Practice of Medicine

Generally, corporate practice of medicine laws prohibit anyone but a duly licensed physician from
exercising control over the medical judgments or decisions rendered by another physician. Given that
general prohibition, some states permit a business corporation to hold, directly or indirectly, customer
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contracts for the provision of medical services, including radiclogy and teleradiology, and to own a
medical practice that provides such services, provided that only physicians exercise control over the
medical judgments or decisions of other physicians. Other states, including more populous states such
as New York, lllinois, Texas, California and certain others, have more specific and stringent prohibitions.
In such states, not only must the individual physician be licensed, but the medical practice by whom the
physician is employed or engaged as an independent contractor must itself be licensed or otherwise
qualified to do business. Moreover, the laws of such states prohibit anyone but a physician who is duly
licensed in such state from owning any interest in a medical practice that is incorporated or doing
business in such state or the state of incorporation. Failure to comply with these laws could have material
and adverse consequences, including the judicially sanctioned refusal of third party payers to pay for
services rendered, the absolute right of customers to immediately repudiate the contract for services,
malpractice claims against the provider, and possibly the hospital, based upon violation of a statute
designed to protect the public, as well as civil or criminal penalties.

We believe that we are in compliance with the corporate practice of medicine laws in each state in
which our Affiliated Medical Practices and affiliated radiologists provide medical services. Each of our
Affiliated Medical Practices is duly licensed or qualified as a medical practice or foreign corporation in
the states whers such license or qualification is required. Each of our Affiliated Medical Practices is
wholly owned by physicians who are propetly licensed in the state where such license is required. We do
not exercise control over the medical judgments or decisions ot our affiliated radiologists. Qur QA
Committee consists entirely of licensed medical practitioners. While we believe we are in compliance
with the requirements of the corporate practice of medicine laws in each state where our Affiliated
Medical Practices and our affiliated radiclogists provide services, these laws and their interpretations are
continually evolving and may change in the future. Moreover, these laws and their interpretations are
generally enforced by state courts and regulatory agencies that have broad discretion in their
enforcement. if our arrangements with our affiliated radiclogists or our customers are found to violate
state laws prohibiting the practice of medicine by general business corporations or fee splitting, our
business, financial condition and ability to operate in those states could be adversely affected.

Fee Splitting

Many states have also enacted laws prohibiting a physictan from splitting fees derived from the
practice of medicine with anyone else. We believe that the management, administrative, technical and
other non-medical services we provide to each of our Affiliated Medical Practices for a service fee does
not constitute fee splitting. Our belief notwithstanding, these laws and their interpretations also vary from
state to state and are also enforced by state courts and regulatory authorities that have broad discretion
in their enforcement. i our arrangements with our affiliated radiologists or our customers are found to
viclate state laws prohibiting the practice of medicine by general business corporations or fee splitting,
our business, financial condition and ability to operate in those states could be adversely affected.

Medicare and Medicaid Reimbursement Programs

While most of our affiliated radiologists are located within the United States, and are therefore
generally eligible to submit to Medicare and state Medicaid programs for reimbursement for services
performed, a minority of them are located qutside of the United States. Professional radiology
interpretation services performed from a location outside of the United States are generally not
reimbursable by the Medicare program and certain state Medicaid programs. Since Medicare and state
Medicaid programs will only reimburse for a final read, none of the preliminary reads that are provided by
our affiliated radiologists are reimbursable. Instead, we derive our revenue from the service fees paid to
us or our Affiliated Medical Practices by our customers and from the management fees paid to us by our
Affiliated Medical Practices. Where our affiliated radiologists provide final reads that are reimbursable
under these programs, we are still paid by our customer who accepts reassignment and bears the risk of
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loss of reimbursement. As a resutlt, our service fees do not fluctuate or change based solely on changes
in Medicare or Medicaid reimbursement levels.

Medicare reimbursement rules generally provide that the proper Medicare carrier to pay physician
claims is the Medicare carrier for the region in which the physician or practice providing the service is
located rather than the Medicare carrier for the region in which the patient receiving the services is
located. Many of our affiliated radiologists are located in a Medicare region that is different from the
Medicare region in which the patient and treating hospital are located. It may be necessary for our
customers to enroll with additional Medicare carriers in order to properly submit claims for
reimbursement. Alternatively, we may submit those claims. Under such circumstances, we would
continue to be paid by our customers, but would remit to them any funds that we received from
Medicare. In order to accomplish this, it is necessary that we and our affiliated radiologists properly
comply with the Medicare carrier claims submission procedures and properly remit funds to our
customers. We have only recently completed all of the steps permitting us to file claims with some
Medicare carriers and are awaiting approval from other carriers to begin submitting claims. We are
unable to estimate when we will receive permissions from the remaining Medicare carriers, and
extended delays could have a material adverse effect on our customers or our reiationship with our
customers and in turn on our business and results of operations. The Center for Medicare and Medicaid
Services, or CMS, has recently stated that for certain interpretation services provided to certain
. customers, reimbursement wili be based upon the location of the interpreting physician, yet that
reimbursement will be made by the Medicare carrier for the region in which the patient and facility are
located. Whether this policy will be expanded to other types of interpretation services and facilities is
unclear. See “Risk Factors—Medicare and Medicaid rules governing reassignment of payments could
affect our customers' ability to collect fees for services provided by our affiliated radiologists and our
ability to market our services to our customers.”

Federal False Claims Act

The Federal False Claims Act provides, in part, that the federal government may bring a lawsuit
against any person whom it believes has knowingly presented, or caused to be presented, a false or
fraudulent request for payment from the federal government, or who has knowingly made a false
statement or knowingly used a false record to have a claim approved. Federal courts have ruled that a
violation of the anti-kickback provision of the Stark statute can serve as the basis for the Federal False
Claims Act suit. The Federat False Claims Act further provides that a tawsuit brought under that act may
be initiated in the name of the United States by an individual who was the original source of the
allegations, known as the relator. Actions brought under the Federal False Claims Act are sealed by the
court at the time of filing. The only parties privy to the information contained in the complaint are the
relator, the federal government and the court. Therefore, it is possible that lawsuits have been filed
against us of which we are unaware. Penalties include fines ranging from $5,500 to $11,000 for each
false claim, plus three times the amount of damages that the federal government sustained because of
the act of the violator.

Historically, our customers, and not us, billed and received payments from Medicare and/or
Medicaid for the professional services provided by our affiliated radiologists. In some instances, our
customers and affiliated radiologists indicated that the practice location where the professional services
occurred was the same as the address of the medical facility where the image was obtained for the
purposes of submitting the applicable claims for reimbursement. It is possible that CMS may take the
position that claims submitted for reimbursement indicating the practice location as the same as the
address of the medical facility where the image was obtained were not properly filed and, in such event,
the Federal False Claims Act may be implicated. In 2006 and 2007, we revised our billing practices and
we, instead of our customers, began in most cases to submit claims for reimbursement to Medicare and
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Medicaid directly. In those claims, we identify the practice location as the location where the image is
interpreted by our affiliated radiologists and we remit the coliected proceeds to our customers.

Under the Federal False Claims Act, we may be liable if we or one of our customers submitted a false
claim. f we were found to have violated these rules and regulations and, as a result, submitted or caused
our customers to submit a false claim, any sanctions imposed under the Federal False Claims Act could
result in substantial fines and penalties or exclusion from participation in federal and state healthcare
programs, which could have a material adverse sffect on our business and financial condition. if we are
excluded from participation in federal or state healthcare programs, our customers who participate in
those programs could not do business with us.

Federal regulatory and law enforcement authorities have recently increased enforcement activities
with respect to Medicare and Medicaid fraud and abuse regulations and other reimbursement laws and
regulations, including laws and requlations that govern our activities and the activities of teleradiologists.
These increased enforcement activities may have a direct or indirect adverse affect on our business,
financial condition and results of operations.

Additionally, some state statutes contain prohibitions similar to and possibly even maore restrictive
than the Federal False Claims Act. These state laws may also empower state administrators to adopt
regulations restricting financial relationships or payment arrangements involving healthcare providers
under which a persan benefits financially by referring a patient to another person. We believe that we are
operating in compliance with these laws. However, if we are found to have violated such laws, our
business, resuits of operations and financial condition would be harmed.

Federal and State Anti-kickback Prohibitions

Various federal and state laws govern financial arrangements among healthcare providers. The
federal anti-kickback law prohibits the knowing and willful offer, payment, solicitation or receipt of any
form of remuneration in return for, or with the purpose to induce, the referral of Medicare, Medicaid or
other federal healthcare program patients, or in return for, or with the purpose to induce, the purchase,
lease or order of items or services that are covered by Medicare, Medicaid or other federal healthcare
programs. Similarly, many state laws prohibit the solicitation, payment or receipt of remuneration in
return for, or to induce, the referral of patients to private as well as government programs. Violation of
these anti-kickback laws may result in substantial civil or criminal penalties for individuals or entities
and/or exclusion from participating in federal or state healthcare programs. We believe that we are
operating in compliance with applicable federal and state anti-kickback laws and that our contractual
arrangements with our customers are structured in a manner that is compliant with such laws.
Enforcement of federal and state anti-kickback laws could affect our business, operations or financial
condition.

Physician Self-Referral Prohibitions

The federal physician self-referral statute, known as the “Stark” statute, prohibits a physician from
making a referral for certain designated health services, including radiology services, to any entity with
which the physician has a financial relationship, unless there is an exception in the statute that allows the
referral. The entity that receives a prohibited referral from a physician may not submit a bill to Medicare
for that service. Many state laws prohibit physician referrals to entities with which the physician has a
financial interest, or require that the physician provide the patient notice of the physician’s financial
relationship before making the referral. There is a risk that an investment in our shares by our affiliated
radiologists, including the distribution of any profits to our affiliated radiologists, the use of our
equipment by physicians who own our securities, any assistance from healthcare providers in acquiring,
maintaining or operating digital diagnostic imaging equipment, the marketing of our affiliated
radiologists’ services or our compensation arrangements with our affiliated radiologists, could be
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interpreted as a violation of the federal Stark statute or similar state laws, if we were to accept referrals
from our affiliated radiologists. Violation of the Stark statute can result in substantial civil penalties for
both the referring physician and any entity that submits a claim for a healthcare service made pursuantto
a prohibited referral. We believe that all of our customer arrangements are in compliance with the Stark
' statute. However, these laws could be interpreted in a manner inconsistent with our operations. Federal
or state self-referral regulation could impact our arrangements with certain customers.

Health Insurance Portability and Accountabiity Act of 1996

HIPAA authorizes the imposition of civil money penalties against entities that employ or enter into
contracts with individuals or entities who have been excluded from participation in the Medicare or
Medicaid programs. We perform background checks on our affiliated radiclogists and we do not believe
that we engage or contract with any excluded individuals or entities. However, a finding that we have
violated this provision of HIPAA could have a material adverse effect on our business and financial
condition.

HIPAA also establishes several separate criminal penalties for making false or fraudulent claims to
insurance companies and other non-governmental payers of healthcare services. These provisions are
intended to punish some of the same conduct in the submission of claims to private payers as the
Federal False Claims Act covers in connection with governmental health programs. We believe that our
services have not historically been provided in a way that would place either our clients or ourselves at
risk of violating the HIPAA anti-fraud statutes, including those in which we may be considered to receive
an indirect reimbursement because of the reassignment by us to our customers of the right to collect for
final reads. We have recently entered into an agreement with a hospital that is subject to an integrity
order by the Health and Human Services—Office of the Inspector General, or HHS-0IG, that requires the
hospital to ensure that each subcontractor to the hospital fully complies with HIPAA and the terms of the
integrity order, including written policies and procedures assuring compliance, and subjects each
subcontractor to audit at the determination of the HHS-OIG. We could be vulnerable to prosecution
under these statutes if any of our customers deliberately or recklessly submits claims that contain false,
misleading or incomplete information.

In addition, the administrative simplification provisions of HIPAA require the promulgation of
regulations establishing national standards for, among other things, certain electronic healthcare
transactions, the use and disclosure of certain individually identifiable patient health information and the
security of the electronic systems maintaining this information. These are commonly known as the
HIPAA transaction and code set standards, privacy standards, and security standards, respectively.

The administrative provisions of HIPAA direct the federal government to adopt national electronic
standards for automated transfer of certain healthcare data among healthcare payers, plans and
providers. HIPAA is designed to enable the entire healthcare industry to communicate electronic data
using a single set of standards. We are a “‘covered entity” under HIPAA and, as such, we must operate in
compliance with the electronic transaction code standards, privacy standards and security standards.
We are also a “business associate” under HIPAA because we perform services for or on behalf of other
covered entities. We have developed policies, procedures and systems for handling patient heaith
information that we believe are in compliance with the requirements of HIPAA. We also have recently
undergone a HIPAA Risk Assessment and Audit conducted by an independent third party. The results of
the audit showed us to be in full compliance with all applicable HIPAA requirements. Enforcement of
state and federal regulations concerning the privacy and security of patient information may adversely
affect our business, financial condition or operations.
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Federal Deficit Reduction Act of 2005

The Federal Deficit Reduction Act of 2005, or the DRA, requires that medical providers receiving
more than $5.0 million in annual Medicaid payments from a specific state must establish certain written
policies to be disseminated to that provider's employees, contractors and agents. The written policies
required by the DRA include information about the Federal False Claims Act, administrative remedies
under the Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act, state and local laws regarding false claims for those
localities in which the practice operates, and the protections given to whistlebiowers under such laws.
We believe that we are not currently subject to the informational and educational mandates of the DRA
because we do not now receive more than the requisite amount of Medicaid payments from any state;
however, we have developed written policies and procedures addressing the requirements of the DRA
and we believe that we will be able to efficiently comply with the DRA’s requirements in the event that the
DRA becomes applicable to us.

QOur Intellectual Property

Our principal intellectual property assets include our brand, our proprietary business processes and
our proprietary software technology. We rely on trade secret and unfair competition laws in the United
States and other jurisdictions, as well as confidentiality procedures and contractual provisions, to
protect these assets. We currently do not hold any patents with respect to our technology. We have filed
seven provisional patent applications, one utility patent application and one international patent
application covering certain aspects of our business processes and proprietary workflow software, and
one foreign patent application, and we may file additional applications in the future. We have copyrights
to our proprietary software programs and may federally register these copyrights in the future.

We enter into confidentiality and proprietary rights agreements with our employees, affiliated
radiologists, consultants and other third parties, and we control access to our software, documentation
and other proprietary information.

We currently hold a non-exclusive, non-transferabie license for certain image management software
that we use in our workflow from Fujifilm Medical Systems U.S.A., or Fujifiim, a minority stockholder of
VRC. Under the terms of the revised licensing agreement, Fujifilm agrees to provide maintenance,
support and updates for the licensed software. When we update or enhance certain features of our
workflow system, we are dependent upon Fujifilm to make corresponding enhancements to the licensed
software in order to accommodate our enhancements. In the event that Fujifiim fails, or is unable, to
make any such enhancemenits to the licensed software, our ability to effectively update and enhance our
workflow system could be limited. The license agreement provides for an initial term of two years and
automatically renews for additional one vear terms, uniess earlier terminated. Under the terms of the
licensing agreement, either party may terminate the agreement for cause upon 30 days’ written notice
and opportunity to cure. Fees paid under this agreement are calculated on a per read basis and vary
depending on the modality of the read. Additionally, these per-read fees may be reduced if, at our option,
we choose to guarantee an aggregate minimum amount of fees to Fujifilm. Since the inception of the
prior licensing agreement in 2003 through December 31, 2007, we have incurred approximately
$3.0 million in licensing fees under this agreement.

if a claim is asserted that we have infringed the intellectual property of a third party, we may be
required to seek licenses to that technology. In addition, we license third party technologies that are
incorporated into some elements of our services. Licenses for third party technologies may not continue
o be available 1o us at a reasonable cost, or at all. Additionalty, the steps we have taken to protect our
intellectual property rights may not be adequate. Third parties may infringe or misappropriate our
proprietary rights. Competitors may also independently develop technologies that are substantially
equivalent or superior to the technologies we employ in our services. If we fail to protect our propristary
rights adequately, our competitors could offer similar services, which may significantly harm our
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competitive position and decrease our revenues. See “Risk Factors—Risks Related to Qur Business—
We are currently subject to, and we may in the future become subject to additional intellectual property
rights claims, which could harm our business and operating results.”

| Employees and Independent Contractors

As of December 31, 2007, we had 245 employees. None of our employees are covered by labor
agreements or affiliated with labor unions. As of December 31, 2007, we had 112 affiliated radiologists
providing services to our customers, each of whom is an independent contractor with us. We consider
our relationships with our employees and independent contractors to be satisfactory.

Website

Our website is www.virtualrad.com and can be used to access, free of charge, through the investor
relations section, our annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on
Form 8-K, and any amendments to those reports, as soon as reasonably practicable after we
electronically file such material with or furnish it to the SEC. Our website also contains certain of our
governance policies. The information on our website is not incorporated as a part of this report. The
public can also obtain copies of these reports by visiting the SEC’s Public Reference Room at
100 F Street, NE, Washington DC 20549, or by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330, or by accessing the
SEC's website at hitp://www.sec.gov. ‘ A

ITEM 1A_. Risk Factors

We have Incurred operating losses and net losses in the past and may incur additional losses in the
future. If we fail to increase our revenues to offset our expenses, our recent profitability may not
continue.

We have incurred operating losses in the past and we may incur additional operating losses in the
future. We incurred operating losses of approximately $2.8 million in 2005, while generating operating
income of $0.5 million and $9.2 million in 2006 and 2007, respectively. We have also incurred net losses
of approximately $1.5 million in 2005, $0.5 million in 2006 and net income of $3.5 million in 2007 As of
December 31, 2007, we had an accumulated deficit of approximately $39.9 million, primarily due to the
payment of a one-time dividend of $39.9 million during the third quarter of 2007. In addition, we expect
our operating expenses to increase in the future as we expand our sales and marketing activities,
increase our technology development efforts, hire additional personnel and comply with the
requirements related to being a public company. if we cannot increase our revenues enough to offset
these expected increased expenses, or the increase in expenses exceeds our expectations, our recent
profitability may not continue.

' The industry in which we operate is highly competitive, and we expect competition to increase in
the future, which will make it more difficult for us to sell our services and may result in pricing
pressure, reduced revenue and reduced market share.

- The market for teleradiology is new, rapidly evolving and intensely competitive. We expect
competition may intensify in the future, since barriers to entry for any licensed radiologist are not

significant and the necessary technology is reasonably accessible. We compete directly with both large -

and small-scale service providers who offer local, regional and national operations. We believe that our
principal competitor is Nighthawk Radiology Holdings, Inc., which completed its initial public offering in
2006. Certain of our competitors, including Nighthawk Radiology Holdings, Inc., may be better known in
the marketplace. Some of our competitors may offer their services at a lower price, which may result in
pricing pressure. If we are unable to maintain our current pricing, our operating results could be
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negatively impacted. Moreover, pricing pressures and increased competition could result in reduced
revenue and reduced profits.

In addition, if one or more of our competitors were to merge or partner with another of our
competitors (for example, Nighthawk Radiology Holdings, Inc. acquired our other principal competitor,
The Radlinx Group, in 2007) or if companies larger than we are enter the market through internal
expansion or acquisition of ane of our competitors, the change in the competitive landscape could
adversely affect our ability to compete effectively. These competitors could have established customer
relationships and greater financial, technical, sales, marketing and other resources than we have, and
could be able to respond more quickly to new or emerging technologies or devote greater resources to
the development, promotion and sale of their services. This competition could harm our ability to sell our
services, which could lead to fower prices, reduced revenue and, ultimately, reduced market share.

We have a limited operating history, and the industry in which we operale continues to develop.

We have a limited operating history in an emerging industry. As a resuit, our current business and
future prospects are difficult to evaluate. You should consider us a company that is in the development
stage, and subject to all of the ordinary risks associated with a new company in a rapidly evolving
market. These risks include our need to:

+ attract additional customers;

* continue to provide high levels of service quality to customers as we expand our business;
* quickly engage and integrate new radiologists and other key personnel,

* manage rapid growth in personnel and operations;

» respond to changing technologies and customer preferences;

= effectively manage our medical liability risk; and

* develop new services that complement our existing business.

We may not be able to successfully address these risks. Failure to adequately do so would harm our
business and cause our operating results to be negatively impacted. Furthermore, our limited operating
history has resulted in revenue growth rates that we may not be able to sustain, and therefore may not be
indicative of our future results of operations. As a result, the price of our common stock could decline.

Our inability to effectively manage our growth could adversely affect our business and our
operating resuits.

We are currently experiencing a period of rapid growth in our headcount and operations, which has
placed, and will continue to place, a significant strain on our management, administrative, operational
and financial infrastructure. We also anticipate that further growth will be required to address increases in
the scope of our operations and size of our customer base. Our success will depend in part upon the
ability of our current senior management team to effectively manage this growth, as well as to effectively
manage the transition to being a publicly traded company. Qur management will be required to devote
-considerable time to this process, which will reduce the time our management will have to implement our
business and expansion pians.

To effectively manage our business and planned growth, we must continue to improve our
operational, financial and management processes and controls and our reporting systems and
procedures. Furthermore, the additional headcount we are adding will increase our costs, which will
make it more difficult for us to offset any future revenue shortfalls by offsetting expense reductions in the
short term. If we are unable to effectively manage our growth, our expenses may increase more than




expected, our revenues could decline or grow more slowly than expected and we may be unable to
implement our business strategy.

I;Ve are currently subject to, and we may in the future become subject to additional, intellectual
property rights claims, which could harm our business and operating results.

The information technology industry is characterized by the existence of a large number of patents,
trademarks and copyrights and by frequent litigation based on allegations of infringement or other
violations of intellectual property rights. On July 31, 2007, Merge eMed, Inc., or Merge, filed a complaint
against VRC in the United States District Court for the Northern District of Georgia, Atlanta Division,
alleging that VRC has willfully infringed on certain of Merge's patents relating to teleradiology. Merge is
seeking treble damages as well as its costs and legal fees in pursuing the action. Merge has asked the
court for an injunction, ordering us to cease the alleged infringement of their patents, and also that the
case be tried before a jury. While we are continuing to evaluate Merge’s allegations, we intend to defend
against its claim and we may incur substantial costs in doing so. On September 14, 2007, we filed a
Request for Reexamination with the United States Patent and Trademark Office, or PTO, for the patents
that Merge has asserted against us, asking the PTO to reexamine the validity of the Merge patents based
upon certain prior art. The PTO granted our reexamination request in November 2007. Also in November
2007, we filed a motion with the United States District Court for the Northern District of Georgia, Atlanta
Division, asking the court to stay the proceeding that Merge has commenced in that court pending the,
outcome of the PTO reexamination. On December 11, 2007, the court granted our motion to stay the
patent suit pending the outcome of the reexamination. in February 2008, subsequent to the grant of the
stay by the court, we filed an additional Request for Reexamination with the PTO for these same patents
based on additional prior art. There is no assurance that the PTO will grant this additional request. We
are unable to predict the outcome of this proceeding and we may become subject to a damage award,
which could cause us to incur additional losses and adversely impact our financial position, results of
operations and/or our cash flows. In addition, we may be required to seek to re-engineer our technology,
to obtain licenses from Merge to continue using our technology without substantial re-engineering, or to
seek to remove the accused functionality or feature as a result of the Merge claim. We could also be
forced to take similar measures in the event that another party asserts that our technology violates that
party’s proprietary rights or if a court holds that our technology violates such rights.

In addition, we license software and systems from third parties under agreements that typically
provide that the licensor will indemnify us against infringement claims by third parties. Notwithstanding
such indemnification, if we become involved in intellectual property litigation it will be expensive and time
consuming and could divert management's attention away from running our business.

Monitoring potential infringement of our intellectual property rights and defending or asserting our
intellectual property rights may entail significant expense. We may initiate claims or litigation against
third parties for infringement of our proprietary rights or to establish the validity of our proprietary rights.
Any litigation, whether or not it is resolved in our favor, could result in significant expense to us and divert
the efforts of our technical and management personnel.

If we are unable to recruit and retain a sufficient number of qualified radiologists, our future growth
would be limited and our business and operating results would be negatively impacted.

Our success is highly dependent upon the continuing ability of VRP to recruit and retain qualified
radiologists to perform radiological services for us despite the current shortage of radiologists in the
medical profession. We face competition for radiologists from other healthcare providers, including
radiology practices, research and academic institutions, government entities and other organizations.
The competitive demand for radiologists may require us in the future to offer higher compensation in
order to secure the services of radiologists. As a result, our compensation expense for our affiliated
radiologists may increase and if we were not able to offset any such increase by increasing our prices,
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this could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations. An inability to recruit and retain
radiologists would have a material adverse effect on our ability to grow and would adversely affect our
results of operations.

if we are unable to obtain proper physician licenses or hospital credentials on behalf of our
affillated radiologists, or if our affillated radiologists lose those licenses or credentials, our
business, financial condition and results of operations may be negatively impacted.

Pursuant to hospital policies, each of our affiliated radiologists must be granted credentials to
practice at each hospital from which the radiologist receives radiological images and, pursuant to state
regulations, each of our affiliated radiologists must hold a license in good standing to practice medicine
in the state in which the hospital is located and in the state in which the doctor is located. The
requirements for obtaining and maintaining hospital credentials and state medical licenses vary
significantly among hospitals and states. if a hospital or state restricts or impedes the ability of
physicians located outside that particular state to obtain credentials or a license to practice medicine at
that hospital or in that state, the market for our services could be reduced. For the year ended
December 31, 2007, approximately 45.4% of our revenues from reads were generated from customers
located in Texas (11.1%), New York (8.6%), Massachusetts (8.2%), Missouri (8.3%), California (5.9%) and
Minois (5.3%). Thus, any change in the requirements for obtaining and maintaining physician licenses
and hospital credentials in those states in particular could have an adverse effect on our results of
operations. While we maintain a staff of specially trained employees to process the necessary
applications to obtain these licenses and credentials, any delay in obtaining new licenses or credentials
could create a shortage of affiliated radiologists available to perform reads for a particular customer. In
addition, any loss of existing credentials or medical licenses held by our affifiated radiologists could
impair our ability to serve our existing customers and could have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition and results of operations.

If our affiliated radiologists are characterized as employees, we would be subject to employment
and withholding liabliities. '

Through our Affiliated Medical Practices, we structure our relationships with our affiliated
radiologists in a manner that we believe results in independent contractor relationships, not employee
relationships. An independent contractor is generally distinguished from an empioyee by his or her
degree of autonomy and independence in providing services. A high degree of autonomy and
independence is generally indicative of a contractor relationship, while a high degree of control is
generally indicative of an employment relationship. If tax or regulatory authorities or state or federal
courts were to determine that our affiliated radiologists are empioyees, and not independent
contractors, we would be required to withhold income taxes, to withhold and pay social security,
Medicare and similar taxes and to pay unemployment and other retated payroll taxes. We would also be
liable for unpaid past taxes and subject to penalties. As a result, any determination that our affiliated
radiologists are our employees would materially harm our business and operating results.

We may be unable to enforce non-compete agreements with our affillated radiologists.

The independent contractor agreements with our affiliated radiologists typically provide that the
radiologists may not engage in the teleradiology business, subject to certain exceptions, for a period of
time, typically one year, after the agreements terminate. These covenants not to compete are
enforceable to varying degrees from jurisdiction to jurisdiction. In most jurisdictions, a covenant not to
compete will be enforced only to the extent that it is necessary to protect the legitimate business interest
of the party seeking enforcement, that it does not unreasonably restrain the party against whom
enforcement is sought and that it is not contrary to the public interest. This determination is made based
upon all of the facts and circumstances of the specific case at the time enforcement is sought. It is
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unclear whether our interests will be viewed by courts as the type of protected business interest that
would permit us to enforce non-competition covenants against our affiliated radiologists. Because our
success depends in substantial part on our ability to preserve the services of our affiliated radiologists, a
determination that these provisions are not enforceable could have a material adverse effect on us.

We are dependent upon certain key empléyees and the loss of their services may prevent us from
implementing our business plan in a timely manner.

Our success depends largely upon the continued services of Sean Casey, M.D., our Chief Executive
Officer, Chairman of the Board of Directors and founder. The loss of Dr. Casey could have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. We are also dependent, to
a lesser extent, on the services of our other executives and employees, the loss of whose services may
also have such effects. In addition, the search for replacements could be time consuming and couid
distract our management team from the day-to-day operations of our business.

If we are unable to implement and maintain an effective system of internal controls, our ability to
report our financial results in a timely and accurate manner, and to comply with Sections 302 and
404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, may be adversely affected.

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act requires, among other things, that we maintain effective internal controls
over financial reporting, including disclosure controls and procedures. In particular, we must perform
system and process evaluation and testing on our internaf controls over financial reporting to allow
management and our independent registered public accounting firm to report on the effectiveness of our
internal controls over financial reporting, as required by Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
commencing with the year ending December 31, 2008.

In connection with their audit of our consolidated financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2005 and reviews of our financial statements for certain interim quarterly periods in 2006,
our independent registered public accounting firm determined material weaknesses existed in our
internal controls over financial reporting because we lacked a sufficient complement of accounting
personnel with an appropriate level of knowledge to account for certain complex, non-routine
transactions, including non-employee stock-based compensation, variable interests and preferred stock
financing transactions. These material weaknesses resulted in the previously disclosed restatement of
our 2004 and 2005 consolidated annual financial statements, and the restatement of our financial
statements for certain interim periods in 2006. Our management has taken steps to address these
material weaknesses and improve our internal controls over financial reporting, including the hiring and
training of additional experienced financial personnel and the implementation of additional internal
control policies and procedures; accordingly, as of June 30, 2007, we were able to remediate the
previously identified material weakness.

We may in the future discover areas of our internal controls that need improvement. We cannot be
certain that any remedial measures we take will ensure that we are able to implement and maintain
adequate internal controls over our financial reporting in the future. Any failure to implement required
new or improved controls, or difficulties encountered in their implementation, could harm our operating
results or cause us 1o fail to meet our financial reporting obligations. If we are unable to conclude that we
have effective internal controls over financial reporting, or if our independent registered public
accounting firm is unable to provide us with an unqualified opinion regarding the effectiveness of our
internal controls over financial reporting for the year ending December 31, 2008 and in future periods as
required by Section 404, investors could lose confidence in the reliability of our consolidated financial
statements, which could result in a decrease in the value of our common stock. Failure to comply with
Section 404 could potentially subject us to sanctions or investigations by the Securities and Exchange
Commission, or the SEGC, or other regulatory authorities.
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Interruptions or delays in our or our customers’ information systems or in network or related
services provided by third party suppliers could impair the delivery of our services and harm our
business.

Our operations depend on the uninterrupted performance of our information systems, which are
dependent in part on systems provided by third parties over which we have little control. Failure to
maintain reliable information systems, or the occurrence of disruptions in our information systems, could
cause delays in our business operations that could have a material adverse effect on our business,
financial condition and results of operations. We have infrequently experienced downtime due to
disruptions in services provided by a third party or associated with implementation of improvements to
our system. Although our systems have been designed around industry-standard architecture to reduce
downtime in the event of outages or catastrophic occurrences, they remain vulnerable to risks such as
internet service denial attacks, security breaches, natural catastrophes affecting the geographic
availability of internet access, unreliable internet performance due to increased traffic over the internet,
or changes in internet protocols that render the technologies we rely on inefficient. Despite any
precautions that we may take, the occurrence of such risks or other unanticipated problems could result
in lengthy interruptions in our services. Frequent or persistent interruptions in our services could cause
permanent harm to our reputation and brand and could cause customers to believe that our systems are
unreliable, leading them to switch to our competitors. In addition, if any of our customers experience any
problems with respect to their own internal information technology infrastructure, this could lead to a
decrease in the number of reads they ask us to perform on their behalf. Because our customers use our
services for critical healthcare needs, any system failures could result in damage to our customers’
businesses and reputations. These customers could seek significant compensation from us for their
losses. Any claim for compensation, even if unsuccessful, would likely be time consuming and costly for
us to resolve.

If our security measures are breached and unauthorized access Is obtained to patient or customer
data, we may face liabilities and our system may be percelved as not being secure, causing
customers to curtall or stop using our services, which could lead to a decline in revenues.

We are required to implement administrative, physical and technological safeguards to ensure the
security of the patient data that we create, process or store. These safeguards may fail to ensure the
security of patient or customer data, thereby subjecting us to liability, including civil monetary penalties
and possible criminal penalties. If our security measures are breached, whether as a result of third party
action, employee error, malfeasance or otherwise, and, as a result, someone obtains unauthorized
access to patient or customer data, our reputation will be damaged, our business may suffer and we
could incur significant liability. Because techniques used to obtain unauthorized access to systems
change frequently and generally are not recognized until launched against a target, we may be unable to
anticipate these techniques or to implement adequate preventive measures.

Any failure to protect our intellectual property rights in our workflow technology could impair its
value and our compelitive advantage.

We rely heavily on our proprietary workifow software to transmit radiological images to the
appropriately licensed and credentialed radiologist who is best able to provide the necessary clinical
insight in the least amount of turnaround time. If we fail to adequately protect our intellectual property
rights, our competition may gain access to our technology and our business may be harmed. We
currently do not hold any patents with respect to our technology. We have filed seven provisional patent
applications, one utility patent application and one international patent application covering certain
aspects of our business processes and proprietary workflow software and we may file additional
applications in the future. However, we may be unable to obtain patent protection for this technology.
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Many of our intellectual property rights, including licenses for certain software and systems, are not
exclusive or proprietary and may be imitated or purchased by competitors.

Our ability to update our workflow technology may be limited because we are dependent upon a
third party to make corresponding enhancements to its software.

We license certain image management software from Fujifilm, a minority stockholder of VRC. We do
not own the source code for the software that we license from Fujifilm. Therefore, when we make certain
updates or enhancements to our workflow system, we are dependent upon Fujifim to provide similar
enhancements to the licensed software in order to accommodate the enhancements to our system.
Fuijifilm owns all rights in its software and all enhancements and modifications to its software. In the event
that Fuijifilm fails, or is unable, to make any such enhancements to the licensed software, our ability to
effectively update and enhance our workflow system could be limited.

If our arrangements with our affiliated radiologists or our customers are found to violate state laws
prohibiting the practice of medicine by general business corporations or fee splitting, our
‘business, financial condition and abllity to operate In those states could be adversely affected.

The laws of many states, including states in which our affiliated radiologists perform medical
services, prohibit us from exercising control over the medical judgments or decisions of physicians and
from engaging in certain financial arrangements, such as splitting professional fees with physicians.
These laws and their interpretations vary from state to state and are enforced by state courts and
regulatory authorities, each with broad discretion. We enter into agreements with our affiliated
radiologists pursuant to which they render professional medical services. In addition, we enter into
agreements with our customers to deliver professional radiology interpretation services in exchange for
a service fee. We structure our relationships with our affiliated radiologists and our customers in a
manner that we believe is in compliance with prohibitions against the corporate practice of medicine and
fee splitting. While we have not received notification from any state regulatory or similar authorities
asserting that we are engaged in the corporate practice of medicine or that the payment of service fees
to us by our customers constitutes fee splitting, if such a claim were successful we could be subject to
substantial civil and criminal penalties and could be required to restructure or terminate the applicable
contractual arrangements and our contractual arrangements may be unenforceable in that particular
state. A determination that our arrangements with our affiliated radiologists and our customers violate
state statutes, or our inability to successfully restructure these arrangements to comply with these
statutes, could eliminate customers located in certain states from the market for our services, which
would have a material adverse effect on our business, financial ¢ondition and operations.

As a result of our corporate structure, we are entirely dependent upon our Affiliated Medical
Practices, which we do not own.

We provide our services through contracts between our customers and us and through contracts
between our customers and six of our Affiliated Medical Practices. However, we do not own our Affiliated
Medical Practices. VRP, one of our Affiliated Medical Practices, is owned by Dr. Sean Casey, Dr. Eduard
Michel, Dr. Gary Weiss and Dr. David Hunter. In addition, each of our other Affiliated Medical Practices is
wholly owned by Dr. Casey. While the ownership of our Affiliated Medical Practices is subject to certain
restrictions contained in management agreements between VRC and each of them, any change in our
relationship, whether resulting from a dispute between the entities, a change in government regulation,
ar the loss of these Affiliated Medical Practices, could impair our ability to provide services and could
have a material adverse affect on our business, financial condition and operations.

Because many states prohibit the practice of medicine by a general business corporation, we have
structured our operations and our relationship with our Affiliated Medical Practices such that
approximately 46% of our revenue is generated from six of our Affiliated Medical Practices that perform
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services in such states. Accordingly, our revenue may be adversely affected by a change in our
relationship with the Professional Corporations. Additionally, all of the medical services provided on
behalf of us and the Professional Corporations are performed by independent contractor physicians
under contract to VRP, and all compensation paid to such radiologists in consideration of those services
is paid by VRP. Any disruption of the arrangement between us and VRP or our other Affiliated Medical
Practices, whether resulting from a dispute between the entities, a change in government regulation, or
otherwise, could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and operations.

We have concluded that we are required to consolidate the Affiliated Medical Practices for financial
reporting purposes. Through consoclidation, we recognize all net losses of each Affiliated Medical
Practice in excess of the equity of that Affiliated Medical Practice. We recognize net earnings of each
Affiliated Medical Practice only to the extent we are recovering losses previously recognized with respect
to that Affiliated Medical Practice. Earnings of each Affiliated Medical Practice in excess of losses
previously recognized by us with respect to that Affiliated Medical Practice are excluded from our
earnings and are attributed to the respective equity owners of that Affiliated Medical Practice by
recording such earnings as non-controlling interest on our consolidated financial statements. As a result
of this ownership structure among us and our Affiliated Medical Practices, certain future profits or losses
may not inure to the stockholders of VRC.

Enforcement of federal and state anti-kickback laws could affect our business, operations or
financial condition.

Various federal and state laws govern financial arrangements among healthcare providers. The
federal anti-kickback law prohibits the knowing and willful offer, payment, solicitation or receipt of any
form of remuneration in return for, or with the purpose to induce, the referral of Medicare, Medicaid or
other federal healthcare program patients, or in return for, or with the purpose to induce, the purchase,
lease or order of items or services that are covered by Medicare, Medicaid or other federal healthcare
programs. Similarly, many state laws prohibit the solicitation, payment or receipt of remuneration in
return for, or to induce, the referral of patients in private as well as government programs. There is a risk
that an investment in our shares by our affiliated radiologists, including the distribution of any profits to
our affiliated radiologists, the use of our equipment by physicians who own our securities, any
assistance from healthcare providers in acquiring, maintaining or operating digital diagnostic imaging
equipment, the marketing of our affiliated radiologists’ services or our compensation arrangements with
our affiliated radiologists may be considered a violation of these laws. Violation of these anti-kickback
laws may result in substantial civit or criminal penalties for individuals or entities and/or exclusion from
participating in federal or state healthcare programs. If we are excluded from federal or state healthcare
programs, our customers who participate in those programs would not be permitted to continue doing
business with us. We believe that we are operating in compliance with applicable law and believe that
our arrangements with providers would not be found to violate the anti-kickback laws. However, these
laws could be interpreted in a manner inconsistent with our operations.

Federal or state self-referral regulations could impact our arrangements with our affiliated
radiologists.

The federal physician self-referral statute, known as the “Stark” statute, prohibits a physician from
making a referral for certain designated health services, including radiology services, to any entity with
which the physician has a financial relationship, unless there is an exception in the statute that allows the
referral. The entity that receives a prohibited referral from a physician may not submit a biil to Medicare
for that service. Many state laws prohibit physician referrals to entities in which the physician has a
financial interest, or require that the physician provide the patient notice of the physician’s financiat
relationship before making the referral. There is a risk that an investment in our shares by our affiliated
radiologists, including the distribution of any profits to our affiliated radiologists, the use of our
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equipment by physicians who own our securities, any assistance from healthcare providers in acquiring,
maintaining or operating digital diagnostic imaging equipment, the marketing of our affiliated
radiologists’ services or our compensation arrangements with our affiliated radiologists, could be
interpreted as a violation of the federal Stark statute or similar state laws, if we were to accept referrals
from our affiliated radiologists. Violation of the Stark statute can result in substantial civil penalties for
both the referring physician and any entity that submits a claim for a healthcare service made pursuant to
a prohibited referral. In addition, federal courts have ruled that violations of the Stark statute can be the
basis for a legal claim under the Federal False Claims Act. We believe that all of our customer
arrangements are in compliance with the Stark statute. However, these laws could be interpreted in a
manner inconsistent with our operations.

Because our customers submit claims to the Medicare program based on the services we provide,
it is possible that a lawsuit could be brought against us or our customers under the Federal False
Claims Act, and the outcome of any such lawsuit could have a material adverse effect on our
business, financlal condition and results of operations.

The Federal False Claims Act provides, in pan, that the federal government may bring a lawsuit
against any person whom it believes has knowingly presented, or caused to be presented, a false or
fraudulent request for payment from the federal government, or who has made a false statement or used
a false record to have a claim approved. Federal courts have ruled that a violation of the anti-kickback
provision of the Stark statute can serve as the basis for the Federal False Claims Act suit. The Federal
False Claims Act further provides that a lawsuit brought under that act may be initiated in the name of the
United States by an individual who was the original source of the allegations, known as the relator.
Actions brought under the Federal False Claims Act are sealed by the court at the time of filing. The only
parties privy to the information contained in the complaint are the relator, the federal government and the
court. Therefore, itis possible that lawsuits have been filed against us that we are unaware of or which we
have been ordered by the court not to discuss until the court lifts the seal from the case. Penalties include
fines ranging from $5,500 to $11,000 for each false claim, plus three times the amount of damages that
the federal government sustained because of the act of the violator.

Historically, our customers, and not us, billed and received payments from Medicare and/or
Medicaid for the professional services provided by our affiliated radiologists. In some instances, our
customers and affiliated radiologists indicated that the practice location where the professional services
occurred was the same as the address of the medical facility where the image was obtained for the
purposes of submitting the applicable claims for reimbursement. It is possible that CMS may take the
position that claims submitted for reimbursement indicating the practice location as the same as the
address of the medical facility where the image was obtained were not properly filed and, in such event,
the Federal False Claims Act may be implicated. In 2006 and 2007, we revised our billing practices and
we, instead of our customers, began in most cases to submit claims for reimbursement to Medicare and
Medicaid directly. In those claims, we identify the practice location as the location where the image is
interpreted by our affiliated radiologists and we remit the collected proceeds to our customers.

We believe that we are operating in compliance with the Medicare rules and regulations and, thus,
the Federal False Claims Act. However, if we were found to have violated certain rules and regulations
and, as a result, submitted or caused our customers to submit allegedly false claims, any sanctions
imposed under the Federal False Claims Act could result in substantial fines and penalties or exclusion
from participation in federal and state healthcare programs, which could have a material adverse effect
on our business and financial condition. if we are excluded from participation in federal or state
healthcare programs, our customers who participate in those programs could not do business with us.

Federal regulatory and law enforcement authorities have recently increased enforcement activities
with respect to Medicare and Medicaid fraud and abuse regulations and other reimbursement laws and
regulations, including laws and regulations that govern our activities and the activities of teteradiologists.
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These increased enforcement activities may have a direct or indirect adverse affect on our business,
financial condition and results of operations.

Additionally, some state statutes contain prohibitions similar to and possibly even more restrictive
than the Federal False Claims Act. These state laws may also empower state administrators to adopt
regulations restricting financial relationships or payment arrangements involving healthcare providers
under which a person benefits financially by referring a patient to another person. We believe that we are
operating in compliance with these laws. However, if we are found to have violated such laws, our
business, results of operations and financial condition would be harmed.

Future changes in healthcare regulation are difficuit to predict and may constrain or require us to
restructure our operations, which could negatively impact our business and operating resulis.

The healthcare industry is heavily regulated and subject to frequent changes in governing laws and
regulations as well as to evolving administrative interpretations. Our business could be adversely
affected by regulatory changes at the federal or state level that impose new requirements for licensing,
new restrictions on reimbursement for medical services by government programs, new pretreatment
certification requirements for patients seeking radiclogy procedures, or new limitations on services that
can be performed by us. In addition, federal, state and local legislative bodies have adopted and
continue to consider medical cost-containment legislation and regulations that have restricted or may
restrict reimbursement to entities providing services in the healthcare industry and referrals by
physicians to entities in which the physicians have a direct or indirect financial interest or other
relationship. For example, Medicare recently adopted a regulation that limits the technical component of
the reimbursement for multiple diagnostic tests performed during a single session at medical facilities
other than hospitals. Any of these or future reimbursement regulations or policies could limit the number
of diagnostic tests our customers order and could have a material adverse effect on our business.

Although we monitor legal and regulatory developments and modify our operations from time to
time as the regulatory environment changes, we may not be able to adapt our operations to address
every new regulation, and such regulations may adversely affect our business. In addition, although we
believe that we are operating in compliance with applicable federal and state taws, our business
operations have not been scrutinized or assessed by judicial or regulatory agencies. We cannot assure
you that a review of our business by courts or regulatory authorities would not result in a determination
that adversely affects our operations or that the healthcare regulatory environment will not change in a
way that will restrict our operations.

Enforcement of state and federal regulations concerning the privacy and security of patient
information may adversely affect our business, financial condition or operations.

The use and disclosure of certain healthcare information by healthcare providers and their business
associates have come under increasing public scrutiny. Recent federal standards under HBIPAA establish
rules concerning how individually identifiable health information may be used, disclosed and protected.
Historically, state law has governed confidentiality issues and HIPAA preserves these laws to the extent
they are more protective of a patient’s privacy or provide the patient with more access to his or her health
information. As a result of the implementation of the HIPAA regulations, many states are considering
revisions to their existing laws and regulations that may or may not be more stringent or burdensome
than the federal HIPAA provisions. We must operate our business in a manner that complies with all
applicable laws, both federal and state, and which does not jeopardize the ability of our customers to
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comply with all applicable laws to which they are subject. We believe that our operations are consistent
with these legal standards. Nevertheless, these laws and regulations present risks for healthcare
providers and their business associates that provide services to patients in multiple states. Because
these laws and regulations are recent and few have been interpreted by government regutators or
courts, our interpretations and activities may be challenged. If a challenge to our activities is successful,
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it could have an adverse effect on our operations, may require us to forgo relationships with customers in
certain states, and may restrict the territory available to us to expand our business. In addition, even if our
interpretations of HIPAA and other federal and state laws and regulations are correct, we could be held
liable for unauthorized uses or disclosures of patient information as a result of inadequate systems and
controls to protect this information or due to the theft of information by unauthorized computer
programmers who penetrate our network security.

Medicare and Medicaid rules governing reassignment of payments could affect our customers’
ability to collect fees for services provided by our affiliated radiologists and our ability to market
our services fo our customers.

The majority of our customers are radiology practices. These customers, and not us, bill and receive
payments from Medicare and/or Medicaid for the professional services provided by our affiliated
radiologists. Medicare and Medicaid payments may comprise a significant portion of the total payments
received by our customers for the services of our affiliated radiologists. Medicare and Medicaid generally
prohibit a physician who performs a covered medical service from ‘“reassigning” to anyone else
(including to other physicians) the performing physician’s right to receive payment directly from
Medicare or Medicaid, except in certain circumstances. We believe we satisfy one or more of the
exceptions to this prohibition, but the various Medicare carriers and state Medicaid authorities may
interpret these exceptions differently than we do. Our customers could be prohibited from billing
Medicare and/or Medicaid for the services of our affiliated radioclogists if it were determined that we do
not qualify for an exception, and this would cause a material adverse effect on our ability to market our
services and on our business and results of operations. Future laws or regulations, moreover, may
require that we bill Medicare or Medicaid directly for services we provide to certain prospective
customers. Should this occur, we would either be required to forgo business with such customers or be
required to design, develop and implement an appropriate recordkeeping and billing system to bill
Medicare and Medicaid.

Medicare reimbursement rules generally provide that the proper Medicare carrier to pay physician
claims is the Medicare carrier for the region in which the physician or practice providing the service is
located rather than the Medicare carrier for the region in which the patient receiving the services is
located. Many of our affiliated radiologists are located in a Medicare region that is different from the
Medicare region in which the patient and treating hospital are located. It may be necessary for our
customers to enroll with additional Medicare carriers in order to properly submit claims for
reimbursement. Alternatively, we may submit those claims. Under such circumstances, we would
continue to be paid by our customers, but would remit to them any funds that we received from
Medicare. In order to accomplish this, it is necessary that we and our affiliated radiologists praperly
comply with the Medicare carrier claims submission procedures and properly remit funds to our
customers.

We have only recently completed all of the steps permitting us to file claims with some Medicare
carriers and are awaiting approval from other carriers to begin submitting claims. We are unable to
estimate when we will receive permissions from the remaining Medicare carriers, and extended delays
could have a material adverse effect on our customers or our relationship with our customers and in turn
on our business and results of operations. CMS has recently stated that for certain interpretation
services provided to certain customers, reimbursement will be based upon the location of the
interpreting physician, yet that reimbursement will be made by the Medicare carrier for the region in
which the patient and facility are located. Whether this policy will be expanded to other types of
interpretation services and facilities is unclear.

CMS recently published a proposed rule intended to eliminate a markup on the cost of radiology
services that are purchased from outside suppliers, including VRC. The proposed rule would limit the
reimbursable amount to the lowest of: (i) the amount paid to the physician for the service; (i) the billing
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entity's actual charge; or (jii} the Medicare physician fee schedule amount for the specific service. The
proposed rule contains an exception from the limitation for the amount paid to the physician if the
physician is a full time employee of the billing entity. If adopted in its present form, the rule would limit the
amount our customers could obtain in reimbursement for final reads that we perform to the amount our
affiliated radiologist receives rather than the amount our customer pays us for such reads. Unless we are
able to restructure our relationship with our affiliated radiologists so that they become full time
employees, the proposed rule could have a material adverse effect on our relationship with customers
and, in turn, our operations and our revenues. The proposed rule does not define the term *full time
employee,” nor does the rule provide any method of calculating the “amount paid to the physician”
where the compensation arrangement between a physician and the billing entity is not based on a
specific amount per read. CMS has solicited comments on the proposed rule. We cannot predict
whether the proposed rule will be adopted or what the final rule may be and as a result, we cannot
predict how the rule may affect our operations, including what modifications we might be required to
make in our relationship with our affiliated radiologists and whether those modifications would be
acceptable to our affiliated radiologists.

Changes in the rules and regulations governing Medicare and Medicaid’s payment for medical
services could affect our revenues, particularly with respect to final reads.

Although most reads we provide are preliminary reads rather than final reads, we are providing an
increasing number of final reads. Cost-containment pressures on Medicare and Medicaid could result in
a reduction in the amount that the government will pay for a final read, which could cause pricing
pressure on our services. Should that occur, we could be required to lower our prices, or our customers
could elect to provide the final reads themselves or obtain such services from one of our competitors,
and not utilize the services of our affiliated radiologists, which would have a material adverse effect on
our business, results of operations and financial condition.

Our business couid be materially affected if a U.S. Department of Health & Human Services Office
of Inspector General study results in a recommendation that Medicare only pay for reads
performed contemporaneously in an emergency room sefting.

in its Fiscal Year 2008 Work Plan, the U.S. Department of Health & Human Services Office of
Inspector General, or HHS-CIG, indicated that it would conduct a study and issue a report assessing the
appropriateness of Medicare billings for diagnostic tests performed in hospital emergency rooms. Part
of the assessment will include a determination as to whether the tests were read contemporaneously
with the patient's treatment. It is possible that, in the final report, the HHS-0IG could recommend to CMS
that it change its reimbursement rules to clearly indicate that CMS will only pay for reads performed
contemporaneously with a patient’s treatment by a physician located within the United States. If CMS
were to adopt this recommendation, final reads would no longer be eligible for reimbursement if
performed by a physician other than the one who performed the preliminary read. In turn, if our
customers were no longer able to be reimbursed for certain final reads, our customers may seek
alternative arrangements for the performance of their preliminary reads, which could adversely impact
our business. For the year ended December 31, 2007, approximately 76% of our reads were preliminary
reads.

Changes in the healthcare Industry or litigation reform could reduce the number of diagnostic
radiology procedures ordered by physicians, which could resuit In a decline in the demand for our
services, pricing pressure and decreased revenue.

Changes in the healthcare industry directed at controlling healthcare costs and reducing perceived
over-utilization of diagnostic radiology procedures could reduce the volume of radiological procedures
performed. For example, in an effort to contain increasing imaging costs, some managed care
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organizations and private insurers are instituting pre-authorization policies that require physicians to
pre-clear orders for diagnostic radiology procedures before those procedures can be performed. If
pre-clearance protocols are broadly instituted throughout the healthcare industry, the volume of
radiclogical procedures could decrease, resulting in pricing pressure and declining demand for our
services. In addition, it is often alleged that many physicians order diagnostic procedures, even when
the procedures may have limited clinical utility, in large part to establish a record for defense in the event
of a medical liability claim. Litigation reform could lead to a reduction in the number of radiological
procedures ordered for this purpose and therefore reduce the total number of radiolegical procedures
performed each year, which could harm our operating results.

Although we mainiain medical liability Insurance covering all of our affillated radiologists, our
Affiliated Medical Practices and our Company, we are subject to medical malpractice claims and
other harmful lawsuits that may require us to pay significant damages if not covered by insurance.

Our business entails an inherent risk of claims of medical malpractice against our affiliated
radiologists and us, and we may also be subject to other lawsuits that may involve large claims and
significant defense costs. We may also be liable to our customers for certain medical malpractice claims.
Although we currently maintain liability insurance coverage intended to cover professional liability and
other claims, there can be no assurance that such insurance coverage will be adequate to cover
liabilities arising out of claims asserted against us where the cutcomes of such claims are unfavorable. In
addition, this insurance coverage generally must be renewed annually and may not continue to be
available to us in future years at acceptable costs and on favorable terms. Liabilities in excess of
insurance coverage could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results
of operations. Moreover, any adverse claims may negatively affect our reputation.

Our medical liability insurance policy provides coverage of up to $2 million dollars per incident,
$4 million per physician and $20 million in total claims filed within the period of the policy term, subject to
a $350,000 deductible per claim.

Iif we are unable to retain our customers because they terminate their contracts with us or allow
those contracts to lapse, our operating resulfs and financial condition may be adversely affected.

The contracts we have signed with our radiology practice, hospital, clinic and digital imaging center
customers generally provide for an initial term of one year and automatically renew for successive terms
unless earlier terminated pursuant to the terms of the contract. Many of the customer contracts also
provide that either party may terminate the agreement without cause upon 90 days’ notice to the other
party. Our customers may elect not to renew their contracts with us, they may seek to renegotiate the
terms of their contracts or they may choose to reduce or eliminate our services in the future. If our
arrangements with our customers are canceled, or are not renewed or replaced with other arrangements
having at least as favorable terms, our business, financial condition and results of operations could be
adversely affected. In addition, to the extent that our radiology practice customers' agreements with the
hospitals that they serve are terminated, our business, financial condition and results of operations could
be adversely affected.

Because our contracts with our customers contain fixed prices, we are unable to pass along any
increase In our expenses to our customers during their contract term.

We enter into multi-year, fixed-price contracts with our customers, pursuant to which we have
agreed to perform our services for a fixed price. Accordingly, we realize all of the benefit or detriment
resulting from any decrease or increase in expenses that we incur in providing our services during the
term of such agreements. Our customer contracts do not permit us to recover any increases in our
expenses from our customers during the contract term. As a result, any such increase in our expenses
would result in a corresponding decrease in our profitability (or an increase in our losses).
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We may be subject to less favorable levels of payment based upon third party payer fee schedules.

Many patients are covered by some form of private or government health insurance or other third
party payment program. Third party payers generally establish fee schedules or other payment
authorization methods for various procedures that govern which procedures will be reimbursed by the
third party payers and the amount of reimbursement. In most cases, we are indirectly rather than directly
impacted by such fee schedules, to the extent that such schedules impact the rates at which third party
payers are willing to pay the healthcare providers with whom we contract to provide imaging services.
However, if we were to negotiate direct payment arrangements with third party payers in the future, we
would be directly impacted by such schedules. In addition, there is no guarantee that Medicare, state
Medicaid programs, or commercial third party payers will continue to cover teleradiology services. Any
reduction or elimination in coverage for our services could substantially impact our business.

iIf we acquire any companies or technologlies In the future, they could prove difficult to integrate,
disrupt our business, dilute stockholder value and adversely affect our operating resulls.

An element of our strategy is to pursue strategic acquisitions or investments that are
complementary to our business or offer us other strategic benefits. Any acquisitions or investments in
which we may engage involve numerous risks, including:

« difficulties in integrating operations, technologies, services and personnel;
« diversion of financial and management resources from existing operations;
» risk of entering new markets;

+» potential write-offs of acquired assets,

» potential loss of key employees; and

+ inability to generate sufficient revenue to offset acquisition costs.

We may experience these difficulties as we integrate the operations of companies that we acquire with
our current operations. '

in addition, if we finance acquisitions by issuing convertible debt or equity securities, the shares
owned by existing stockholders may be diluted, which could affect the market price of our stock. We
have not made any acquisitions to date, and our management has limited experience in completing
acquisitions and integrating acquired businesses into our operations. If we fail to properly evaluate and
execute acquisitions, our business and prospects may be harmed.

Our operating results may be subject to seasonal fluctuations, which makes our results difficult to
predict and could cause our performance to fall short of quarterly expectations.

We have historically experienced increased demand for our services and higher revenue growth
during the second and third quarters of each year. For example, our same site volume, which we define
as the percentage increase in reads over the comparable prior year period generated by a facility that
has been under contract for at least three months at the beginning of the measurement period and
remains a customer throughout that period, was approximately 11% higher for the three months ended
June 30, 2006 than for the three months ended March 31, 2006 and approximately 23% higher for the
three months ended September 30, 2006 than for the three months ended March 31, 2006. In addition,
same site sales volume was approximately 11% higher for the three months ended June 30, 2007
compared to the three months ended March 31, 2007 and approximately 21% higher for the three
months ended September 30, 2007 than for the three months ended March 31, 2007. We believe that
during the summer months there is an increased amount of outdoor and transportation activities, which
leads to more hospital visits, as well as there being more frequent vacation time taken by our customers’
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radiologists. During the first and fourth quarters of each year, when weather conditions are colder for a
large portion of the United States, we have historically experienced lower revenue growth than that
experienced during the second and third quarters. We may continue to experience this or other
seasonality in the future. These seasonal factors may lead to unpredictable variations in our quarterly
lc:perating results and cause the trading price of our common stock to decline. Additionally, our ability to
schedule adequate radiologist coverage during the seasonal period of increased demand for our
services may affect our ability to provide faster turnaround times in our services to clients.

ITEM 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.

ITEM 2. Properties
The table below provides a summary of the Company’s principal facilities as of December 31, 2007:

Total Square Leased or

Locatlon Feet " Owned Principal Function
Minnetonka, Minnesota . . . 30,000 Leased Headquarters and Operations Center
Eden Prairie, Minnesota . . 10,800 Leased Physician Services
Maui, Hawaii. . . ... .... 2,200 Leased Reading Facility
Mountain View, California . . 2,400 Leased Engineering
Eden Prairie, Minnesota @ . 82,000 Leased Future Headquarters, Operations Center and Physician Services

' Rounded to the nearest hundred square feet.

@ The lease of our new corporate Headquarters will commence on or about December 1, 2008.

Our corporate headquarters and operations center occupy approximately 30,000 square feet in an
office building in Minnetonka, Minnesota. The lease for this facility expires in June 2010. During the year
ended December 31, 2007, the total rent expense was approximately $668,000 for this facility. In
November 2006, we entered into an 18 month lease for 10,800 square feet of additional office space in
Eden Prairie, Minnesota. Qur physician services group moved into this facility during the first quarter of
2007. During the year ended December 31, 2007, the total rent expense for this facility was
‘approximately $161,000. In August 2007, we extended the term of this lease through March 31, 2009.
Pursuant to an agreement for the provision of data services, our servers, network hardware and primary
internet connections are located in a data center in Minneapolis, Minnesota. This agreement expires in
November 2009. We have recently entered into a co-location agreement pursuant to which we wili be
transitioning these functions to a new facility in Minnetonka, Minnesota.

We also lease approximately 2,200 square feet of newly constructed office space in Maui, Hawaii,
which serves as a reading room for our affiliated radiologists who are located in or visit Maui. The lease
expires in March 2011. However, we have an option to renew the lease for an additional 5-year term.
During the year ended December 31, 2007, the total rent expense was approximately $68,000 for this
facility.

We also recently entered into an agreement to lease approximately 2,400 square feet of office space
in Mountain View, California, which will serve as additional office space for our engineering group. The
lease expires in August 2012 with an option to renew the lease for an additional 5-year term. During the
year ended December 31, 2007, the total rent expense was approximately $15,000 for this facility.

On December 3, 2007, we entered into a lease agreement to lease approximately 82,000 square
feet of space in a building being constructed in Eden Prairie, Minnesota, which will house our corporate
headquarters including our operations center and physician services group once construction is
completed. Construction is expected to be completed in late 2008 and our lease is currently anticipated
to commence on or around December 1, 2008, or when construction is completed. This facility will
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combine our headquarters, including our operations center and physician services functions, into one
location. The lease expires in May 2018.

ITEM 3. Legal Proceedings

We are from time to time subject to, and are presently involved in, litigation or other legal
proceedings arising out of the ordinary course of business, including medical malpractice claims and
certain employment related matters. We believe that neither we, nor, to our knowledge, any of our
affiliated radiologists, are presently a party to any litigation, the outcome of which could have a material
adverse effect on us. ’

Our business entails the inherent risk of claims of medical malpractice against our affiliated
radiologists and us, and we may also be subject to other lawsuits that may involve large claims and
significant defense costs. We currently maintain professional liability insurance coverage in amounts
that we believe are appropriate based upon our experience and the nature and risks of our business,
subject to deductibles, exclusions and other restrictions in accordance with standard industry practice.
However, there can be no assurance that such insurance coverage will be adequate to cover liabilities
arising out of claims asserted against us where the outcomes of such claims are unfavorable. In addition,
this insurance coverage generally must be renewed annually and may not continue to be available to us
in future years at acceptable costs and on favorable terms. Any liabilities in excess of insurance
coverage could have a matetial adverse effect on our business, financial condition or results of
operations. As of December 31, 2007, we have not experienced any material adverse consequences as
a result of malpractice claims or other lawsuits.

On July 31, 2007, Merge filed a complaint against VRC in the United States District Court for the
Northern District of Georgia, Atlanta Division, alleging that VRC has willfully infringed on certain of
Merge’s patents relating to teleradiology. Merge is seeking treble damages as well as its costs and legal
fees in pursuing the action. Merge has asked the court for an injunction, ordering us to cease the alleged
infringement of their patents, and also that the case be tried before a jury. While we are continuing to
evaluate Merge’s allegations, we intend to defend against its claim and we may incur substantial costs in
doing so. On September 14, 2007, we filed a Request for Reexamination with the PTO, for the patents
that Merge has asserted against us, asking the PTO to reexamine the validity of the Merge patents based
upon certain prior art. The PTO granted our reexamination request in November 2007. Also in November
2007, we filed a motion with the United States District Court for the Northern District of Georgia, Atlanta
Division, asking the court to stay the proceeding that Merge has commenced in that court pending the
outcome of the PTO reexamination. On December 11, 2007, the court granted our motion to stay the
patent suit pending the outcome of the reexamination. in February 2008, subsequent to the grant of the
stay by the court, we filed an additional Request for Reexaminatian with the PTO for these same patents
based on additional prior art. There is no assurance that the PTO will grant this additional request. We
are unable to predict the outcome of this proceeding and we may become subject to a damage award,
which could cause us to incur additional losses and adversely impact our financial position, results
operations and/or our cash flows. In addition, we may be required to seek to re-engineer our technology,
to obtain licenses from Merge to continue using our technology without substantial re-engineering, or to
seek to remove the accused functionality or feature as a result of the Merge claim. We could also be
forced to take similar measures in the event that ancther party asserts that our technology violates that
party's proprietary rights or if a court holds that our technolegy violates such rights.

(TEM 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

None.
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PART I

ITEM 5. Market for Registrant's Common Stock, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer
Purchases of Equity Securities

;Market for Our Common Stock

Our common stock has been traded on the NASDAQ Global Market under the symbol “VRAD"
since November 15, 2007. Prior to that time, there was no public market for our common stock. The
following table sets forth, for the period indicated, the high and low sales prices of our common stock,
reported by the NASDAQ Global Market from November 15, 2007 through December 31, 2007.

Common Stock
Price

High Low

Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2007
Fourth Quarter (from November 15) .. ........ ... ... ... ... h.. $ 2697 § 18.15

Holders

As of March 13, 2008, there were approximately 93 stockholders of record of our common stock,
and the closing price of our common stock was $17.31 per share as reported by the NASDAQ Global
Market. Because many of our shares of common stock are held by brokers and other institutions on
behalf of stockholders, we are unable to estimate the total number of stockholders represented by these
record holders.

Dividends

On September 5, 2007, we distributed $39.9 million as a one-time dividend of $3.00 per share to all
of our stockholders of record as of August 28, 2007, including preferred stockholders. Except for this
one-time special dividend, we have never declared or paid any cash dividends on our capital stock. We
currently intend to retain future earnings to fund the operation, development and expansion of our
business and we do not expect to pay any dividends in the foreseeable future.

Use of Proceeds from Sales of Registered Securitles

On November 20, 2007, we completed an initial public offering of 4,600,000 shares of our common
stock. This offering was effected pursuant to a registration statement on Form S-1 {File No. 333-136504),
which the SEC declared effective on November 14, 2007. In connection with this offering, we sold
4,000,000 shares of our common stock. In addition, certain selling stockholders sold 600,000 shares of
common stock held by them pursuant to the underwriters’ exercise of their option to purchase additional
shares in the offering. Goldman, Sachs & Co. acted as the sole book-running manager of the offering,
while Merrill Lynch & Co. acted as co-lead manager and William Blair & Company acted as co-manager.

The initial public offering price was $17.00 per share. Gross proceeds from the offering were
$78.2 million, including $68.0 million to the Company and $10.2 million to the selling stockholders. The
Company received net proceeds of approximately $59.2 million, after deducting underwriting discounts
and commissions of approximately $4.8 million and offering expenses of approximately $4.0 million.

On November 20, 2007, the Company used approximately $43.4 million of the net proceeds to
repay the outstanding debt under the Company’s credit agreement, dated as of August 29, 2007, among
the Company, the guarantors named therein, the lenders from time to time party thereto and NewStar
Financial, Inc., as administrative agent, or the Senior Credit Facility, including interest accrued thereon
and fees and expenses incurred in connection therewith. In connection with the repayment, the
Company terminated the Senior Credit Facility on November 20, 2007. No prepayment penalties were
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incurred in connection with the termination of the Senior Credit Facility. The Company intends to use the
remaining funds for general corporate purposes, capital expenditures and working capital, including the
further development and expansion of the Company's service offerings, the recruitment of additiona!
radiologists and increased sales and marketing initiatives. The funds are currently invested in demand
deposits until such time as the funds are needed.

Performance Graph

The performance graph below illustrates a periocd comparison of cumulative total stockholder return
data based on an initial investment of $100 in Virtual Radiologic Corporation’s common stock, as
compared with the Russell 2000 Index and the Dow Jones US Healthcare Index for November 15, 2007
through December 31, 2007.
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1111207 11/19/07 11/26/07 12/3/07 12110/07 121707 12/24/07 12/31/07
—e— Virtual Radiologic Corporation —s—Russell 2000 —i— Dow Jones US Healthcare
Virtual Dow Jones
Radlologic us
Corporation Russell 2000 Heaithcare
November 15, 2007 $ 100.00 3 100.00 $ 100.00
November 19, 2007 106.02 97.25 99.63
Novemnber 26, 2007 110.84 95.27 98.74
December 3, 2007 116.14 88.49 102.44
December 10, 2007 114.22 102.54 104.03
December 17, 2007 104.10 95.78 100.23
December 24, 2007 105.49 102.95 102.58
December 31, 2007 97.73 99.28 100.18

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities
None.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

None.

Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans

Please see Part Ill, ltem 12 of this report for disclosure related to our equity compensation plans.
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ITEM 6. Selected Consolidated Financial Data

The following selected consolidated financial data should be read in conjunction with
“Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Resufts of Operations” and our
iconsolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this report. The consolidated staterents of
operations data for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005 and the consolidated
balance sheet data as of December 31, 2007 and 2006 were derived from our audited consolidated
financial stalements included elsewhere in this report. The consolidated statement of operations for the
fiscal years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 and the consolidated balance sheet data as of
December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 was derived from our audited consolidated financial statements not
included in this report. The financial data presented below as of and for the years ended December 31,
2007 and 2006 reflects the consolidated operations of Virtual Radiologic Corporation and our Affiliated
Medical Practices. The financial data presented below as of and for the years ended December 31, 2005
and 2004 reflects the consolidated operations of Virtual Radiologic Consuitants, Inc., our predecessor
corporation, and VRP The financial data presented below as of and for the year ended December 31,
2003 reflects the results of operations of VRP (previously known as Virtual Radiologic Professionals, PLC
and Virtual Radiologic Consultants, LLC). The historical results presented below are not necessarily
indicative of financial results to be achieved in future periods.

Year Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
(In thousands, except per share data)

REVEMUE . . o o o e e e e ettt et e e e $ 86,243 $ 54,009 $ 26,991 $12,899 $5,872
Operating costs and expenses M. . ... ... .. ... o oo 77,013 53,594 29816 14,142 4,996
Operating incoms (JOSS) . . .. .o v i i 9,230 505 (2,825) (1,243) 876
Netincome (JOSE) . . ..o it i i e 3,451 (529) (1,465) (1,400) 862
Net (loss) income applicable to common stockholders . .. .. ........... (20,272) (11,966) (29,646) (1,400) 862
{Loss) earnings per common share

Basicand diluted . . ... ... .. ... e e $ (231)% (1.80)$ (4.74)$ (0.25)% 0.16
Cash flow data

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities . . ............... 6,861 3977 (1,799) 203 303

Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities . .. .............. (5,093) 1,208 (7.,754) (360) (290)

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities . . ............... 25761 (2315 12,151 566 61)
Total ASSEES . . . . o . o e e e e e e e s 59,436 25649 17,555 4,351 2,225
Total Liabilifies . . . . o v v e e e e e s 9,098 8532 3,850 4078 1,144
Common Stock Data

Market price atyearend . . . .. ... .. ... v $ 20.28 N/A N/A N/A  N/A

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding @&¢ ..., 8,762 6640 6,254 5659 5475

Dividends declared per commonishare . ... ........ . ... ... ... $ 300% — % —% -85 —
Preferred Stock Data

Series A Cumulative Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock outstanding . . — 3627 3627 — —

Dividends declared per preferred share . ... ..., ... . ... $ 300% — 3 — § — % —

t  Includes the non-cash stock-based compansation and depreciation and amortization charges setforth in the following table:

Year Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
{(in thousands)

Professional services

Non-cash stock-based compensation. . . . ... ... . ... $ 3687 % 3416% 19958 1548 —
Sales, general and administrative

Non-cash stock-based compensation . . .. ........ ... i 686 115 — — —
Depreciation and amortization . . . ... ... .. ..o e 2,488 1,351 586 230 72
a7 S $ 6861 % 4882 % 2581 % 384 8% 72
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The calculations of weighted average common shares outstanding for the year ended December 31, 2003 is based on the
assumed conversion of the members’ equity interests of Virtual Radiologic Consultants, LLC, into common stock of VRC
utilizing the conversion ratio established when the Company was captialized during 2004. In addition, the calculations of
weighted average cormnmon shares outstanding for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2004 assume the five-for-one
common stock split, which was effected during 2004, was effected on January 1, 2003.

The calculation of weighted average common shares outstanding for the year ended December 31, 2004 assumes the
five-for-one common stock split, which was effected during 2004, was effected on January 1, 2004.

The calculation of weighted average common shares outstanding for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2008 and 2007
excludes the assumed conversion of the shares of Series A Cumulative Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock into shares
of common stock, because they are anti-dilutive. The calculation of weighted average common shares for the years ended
December 31, 2004, 2005, 2006 and 2007 also excludes any other potential common stock equivalents that were
outstanding during the relevant periods, calculated using the treasury stock method, because they are anti-dilutive.
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ITEM 7. Management's Discussion and ‘Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations

The following discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with our audited consolidated
financial statements and notes thereto that appear elsewhere in this report. This discussion contains
forward-looking statements reflecting our current expectations that involve risks and uncertainties. Actual
results may differ materially from those discussed in these forward-looking statements due to a number of

|factors, including those set forth in the section entitled “Risk Factors™ and elsewhere in this report.

Overview

We believe we are the second largest provider of teleradiology services in the United States. We
serve our customers—radiology practices, hospitals, clinics and diagnostic imaging centers—by
providing diagnostic image interpretations, or reads, 24 hours a day, 365 days a year. Qur unique
distributed operating model provides our qualified team of American Board of Radiology-certified
radiologists with the flexibility to choose the location from which they work, primarily within the United
States, and allows us to serve customers located throughout the country. Our services include both

+ preliminary reads, which are performed for emergent careé purposes, and final reads, which are

_performed for both emergent and non-emergent care. We provide these services through a robust,
highly scalable communications network incorporating encrypted broadband internet connections and
proprietary workflow mgnagement software.

During 2007, we continued to focus our growth initiatives on the core teleradiology business
through the expansion of our unique distributed operating modetl and enhancements to our proprietary
workflow management software. We continued to focus on acquiring new customers, attracting and
retaining additional radiologists, generating additional sales from existing customers and further
penetration into the finals read market.

We contracted with 95 net new customers during 2007, which resulted in an additional 141 hospitals
and other medical facilities to which we provide service. This 25% year-over-year growth in customers
brought the total number of customers that we serve to 469 as of December 31, 2007. In addition, we
ended the year providing service to 804 medical facilities, which represents approximately 13% of all
hospitals in the United States, resulting in 21% year-over-year growth in the number of facilities that we
serve.

During 2007, we added 41 radiologists under contract and 40 radiologists providing service
resulting in 132 radiologists under contract and 112 radiclogists providing service as of December 31,
2007. We believe that the benefits of our distributed operating model, such as flexible choice of location,
predictable schedules and competitive compensation, have allowed us to successfully recruit and retain
radiologists. To date we have experienced radiologist retention rates (excluding those radiologists we
have elected to terminate for non-compliance with the terms of their contracts) of 97%, 98% and 97% for
the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

In addition to our customer and radiologist growth, our read volume grew by 64% to approximately
1.7 million total reads during 2007 compared to approximately 1.0 million total reads during 2006. The
increase in read volumes was due in part to 18% same-site volume growth and our continued
penetration into the final reads market. Approximately 24% and 76% of our revenue from reads for the
year ended December 31, 2007 was from final reads and preliminary reads, respectively. Accordingly,
we experienced an increase of 5% in the percentage of total revenue from final reads for the year ended
December 31, 2007 compared to the year ended December 31, 2006.

On November 20, 2007, we completed an initial public offering of 4,600,000 shares of our common
stock of which we sold 4,000,000 shares of our common stock and certain selling stockholders sold
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600,000 shares of our common stock held by them pursuant to the underwriters' exercise of their option
to purchase additional shares in the offering. The initial public offering price was $17.00 per share.

Basis of Presentation

VRL was formed on November 23, 2007 and is located in London, England. VRL is a wholly owned
and consolidated subsidiary of VRC and was established to facilitate the possible expansion of our
business by providing teleradiology services and products to custorners |located outside of the United
States. Cusrently, VRL has one employee and an immaterial amount of operating assets and liabilities.
VRL's functional currency is the British Pound.

We consolidate our financial results under the principles of Financial Accounting Standards Board,
or FASB, Interpretation No. 46R, Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, or FIN 46R, which requires a
primary beneficiary 1o consolidate entities determined to be variable interest entities, or VIEs. VIEs are
those entities which an enterprise funds, and as a result recognizes, a majority of the entity’s expected
losses, receives a majority of the entity’s expected residual returns, or both, as a result of ownership,
contractual or other financial interest in the entity. Our Affiliated Medical Practices were formed as our
business expanded, to facilitate compliance with the corporate practice of medicine laws in the various
states in which VRC operates. Although VRC holds no legal ownership in the Affiliated Medical Practices,
as a result of the pricing structure in the management agreements that exist between the entities,
between January 1, 2005 and December 31, 2007, VRC funded losses of certain Affiliated Medical
Practices totaling $7.1 million. Prior to January 1, 2005, VRC funded no losses of the Affiliated Medical
Practices. Further, VRC will only receive residual returns up to the amount of previously recognized
losses. In addition, the managerment of VRC was involved significantly in the design and creation of the
Affiliated Medical Practices and, with the exception of rendering medical judgments, holds significant
influence over their continuing operations. We have therefore determined that the Affiliated Medical
Practices are VIEs and that VRC is their primary beneficiary as defined by FIN 46R. As a result, we have
concluded that VRC is required to consolidate the Affiliated Medical Practices. Through consolidation,
we recognize all net losses of each Affiliated Medical Practice in excess of the equity of that Affiliated
Medical Practice. We recognize net earnings of each Affiliated Medical Practice only to the extent we are
recovering losses previously recognized by us with respect to that Affiliated Medical Practice. Earnings
of each Affiliated Medical Practice in excess of losses previously recognized by us with respect to that
Affiliated Medica! Practice are excluded from our earnings and are attributed to the respective equity
owners of that Affiliated Medical Practice by recording such earnings as non-controlling interest in our
consolidated financial statements. During the year ended December 31, 2005, we had only one Affiliated
Medical Practice, which experienced net losses that changed the Affiliated Medical Practice's equity
position t0 a net deficit. As a result, we did not have a non-controlling interest obligation as of
December 31, 2005, During 2006, additional Affiliated Medical Practices were formed and for the year
ended December 31, 2006, one of those Affiliated Medical Practices experienced net income that
resulted in a non-controiling interest relating to that Affiliated Medical Practice of approximately $25,000.
In addition, certain of our Affiliated Medical Practices experienced net income that resulted in a
non-controlling interest income of approximately $17,000 for the year ended December 31, 2007.

Critical Accounting Policies

The discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based on our
consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America, or GAAP The preparation of these financial
statements in accordance with GAAP requires us to utilize accounting policies and make certain
estimates and assumptions that aftect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of
contingencies as of the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and
expenses during a fiscal period. The SEC considers an accounting policy to be critical if it is important to
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a company’s financial condition and results of operations, and if it requires the exercise of significant
\judgment and the use of estimates on the part of management in its application. We believe the following
to be our critical accounting policies because they are important to the presentation of our financial
condition and results of operations, and require critical management judgment and estimates about
matters that are uncertain:

« principles of consolidation;

« revenue recognition and allowance for doubtful accounts;

« accounting for stock-based compensation;

» accounting for Series A Cumulative Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock; and

* jncome taxes.

If actual results or events differ materially from those contemplated by us in making these estimates,
our reported financial condition and results of operations for future periods could be materially affected.

Principles of Consolidation

VRL was formed on November 23, 2007 and is located in London, England. VRL is a wholly owned
and consolidated subsidiary of VRC and is included with VRC in the following condensed consolidating
balance sheet and statement of operations as of and for the year ended December 31, 2007.

As described above, we consolidate our financial results in accordance with FIN 46R, which
requires a primary beneficiary to consolidate entities determined to be VIEs. We have determined that
VRC is the primary beneficiary of the Affiliated Medical Practices, as defined by FIN 46R, and as a resultis
required to consolidate the Affiliated Medical Practices.
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The following tables show the unaudited condensed consolidating balance sheets as of
December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the unaudited condensed consolidating statements of operations for
the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005. The amounts reflected in the eliminations columns
of the condensed consolidating financial statements represent affiliated party management and
professional fees and non-controlling interest. The following tables should be read together with our
consolidated financial statements and related footnotes included elsewhere in this report.

Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheets

Cash and cash equivalents . .. .........
Othercurrentassets . . ...............
Non-currentassets ..................

Totalassets .. ....... ..o,

Total liabilities . ...................
Non-controlling interest . . .. ...........
Total stockholders’ equity (deficiency). . . ..

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity . . .

Cash and cash equivalents. . . .........
Othercurrentassets. . . ... ...........
Non-currentassets . . ................

Totalassets .....................

Total liabilities . . . .................
Non-controlling interest .. ............

Series A Cumulative Redeemable

Convertible Preferred Stock . .. .. .. ...
Total stockholders’ deficiency . .........

Total liabilities and stockhoiders’ equity . .

As of December 31, 2007

Affiliated

Medical
VRC Practices Eliminations Consolidated

{in thousands)
$31,497 $ 1990 $ — % 33,487
37,178 51,302 (70,890) 17,590
8,359 19 (19) 8,359
$77034 $ 53311 % {70,909) $ 59,436
$19,350 $ 60,410 § (70,880) $ 8,870
247 — (19 228
19,597 60,410 (70,909) 9,098
— — 8 8
57,437 (7,099) (8) 50,330
$77034 % 53311 % (70909 $ 59,436
As of December 31, 2006

Affiliated

Medical
VRC Practices Eliminations Consolidated

(in thousands)

$ 5887 § 71 % — 8 5,958
28,339 27,605 (42,232) 13,712
5,979 — — 5,979
$40,205 ¢ 27676 % (42,232) % 25,649
$17647 $ 32597 & (42,232) $ 8,012
520 —_ _ 520
18,167 32,597 (42,232) 8,532
— —_ 25 25
51,627 — — 51,527
(29,489) {4,921) (25) {34,435)
$40,205 $ 27676 $ {42,232) $ 25,649




Condensed Consolidating Statements of Operations

As of December 31, 2007

Affiliated
Medical

VRC  Practices Eliminations Consolidated
(in thousands)
Revenue . ... .o v ie e $65,711 $ 82294 $ (61,762) $ 86,243
Operating costs and expenses . ... ....... 54,292 84,483 {61,762) 77,013
Operating income (loss) . ... .......... 11,419 {2,189) — 9,230
Otherexpense .............oooooun-. (1,929) — — (1,929)
Income (loss) before non-controlling
interest and incometax. ............ 9,490 (2,189) — 7,301
Non-controlling interest expense . ........ — — (17) (17)
Income tax expense (benefit) . . .......... 3,877 (10) — 3,867
Netincome (loss) .................. $5613 $§ (2,179 $ 17 & 3,451
As of December 31, 2006
Affiliated
Medical
VRC Practices Eliminations Consolidated
{in thousands)
REVENUE . . . . ot it e et et e e e $42,277 $ 54,148 $ (42,326) $ 54,099
Operating costs and expenses. . ......... 38,951 55,969 (42,326) 53,594
Operating income (loss) . . ............ 2,326 {1,821) — 505
Otherincome ......... ... .0 217 — — 217
Income (loss) before non-controlling
interest and income tax. . ........... 2,543 (1,821) — 722
Non-controlling interest expense .. ....... — — 25 25
Income taxexpense .................. 1,213 13 — 1,226
Net income (loss) . ................. $1330 $ (1,834) § (25) $ (529)
As of December 31, 2005
Affiliated
Medical
VRC Practices Eliminations Consolidated
(in thousands)
ReVeNUE . . . . ottt e e e $15,050 $ 26,891 3 {15,050) $ 26,991
Operating costs and expenses . . ....... .. 13,457 31,409 (15,050) 29,816
Operating income (loss) .. ............ 1,593 (4,418) — (2,825)
Other income (expense) .. ............. 87 (31) — 56
Income (loss) before non-controlling
interest and incometax. ............ 1,680 (4,449) — (2,769)
Non-controliing interest income . ......... — — (1,362) {1,362)
Income tax expense .. .............c... 58 — — 58
Net income (loss) .................. $ 1622 $ (4449) $ 1,362 § (1,465)

45




Revenue Recognition and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

We sell our services to radiology practices, hospitals, clinics and diagnostic imaging centers, and
recognize revenue when a read or service has been completed and we determine that payment for the
read or service is reasonably assured. Accounts receivable are recorded at the invoiced amount and
generally do not bear interest. )

We maintain an allowance for doubtful accounts at a level that our management estimates to be
sufficient to absorb future losses due to accounts that are potentially uncollectible. The allowance is
based on the current aging of past due accounts, our historical experience, the financial condition of the
customer and the general economic conditions of each customer's market place. Managernent uses all
information available to them in establishing what we believe is an adequate allowance to absorb future
losses. While our historical credit losses have not differed materiaily from our estimates, and we do not
currently believe any material changes in estimates are likely in the near future, actual future results
could differ materially from current estimates resulting in an increase or decrease in cash flows from
receivable collections and/or in the allowance for doubtful accounts and the corresponding provision for
bad debt expense. Any such changes in estimates could have a material impact on our consolidated
balance sheets, statements of aperations and/or cash flows in subsequent periods. We maintained an
allowance for doubtful accounts of approximately $328,000, $304,000, and $268,000 as of
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

We record an allowance for sales credits that our management estimates to be adequate to cover
future sales credits granted which primarily relate to maintaining customer satisfaction with our services.
The allowance is based on our historical experience related to sales credits granted. Although we have
not historically made any material adjustments to prior period estimates, and we do not anticipate any
material impact on future results of operations or cash flows, actual results could differ materially from
these estimates resulting in an increase in the allowance for sales credits and the corresponding
provision for sales credits. We maintained an allowance for sales credits of approximately $15,000,
$11,000 and $10,000 as of December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation

Physician Stock-Based Compensation. We record stock-based compensation expense in
connection with any equity instrument awarded to our affiliated radiologists in accordance with
Emerging lssues Task Force Issue No. 96-18, Accounting for Equity Instruments that are Issued to Other
than Employees for Acquiring, or in Conjunction with Selling, Goods or Services, or EITF Issue No. 96-18.
We calculate the stock-based compensation expense related to such issuance by determining the then
current fair value of the award using a Black-Scholes model at the date of grant and at the end of each
subsequent financial reporting period thereafter. Physician stock-based compensation expense is
included in professional services expense.

Employee Stock-Based Compensation. We also record stock-based compensation expense in
connection with any award of stock options to employees and directors. We calculate the stock-based
compensation expense associated with such awards to our employees and directors granted prior to
January 1, 2006, in accordance with Accounting Principles Board No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees, or APB No. 25, using the intrinsic value method and in accordance with Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 123R, Accounting for Stock Based Compensation, or SFAS
No. 123R, for awards granted on or after January 1, 2006, by determining the fair value using a Black-
Scholes model. We calculate the stock-based compensation expense related to awards to our
employees and directors based on the fair value of awards on the date granted. Employee stock-based
compensation expense is included in sales, general and administrative expense.

Determination of Fair Value of Our Stock Options. As discussed above, we fecord stock-based
compensation expense associated with our awards of stock options in accordance with SFAS No. 123R,
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and EITF Issue No. 96-18, as applicable, which require us to calculate the expense associated with such
awards by determining their fair value. To determine the fair value, we use a Black-Scholes model that
‘takes into account the exercise price of the award, the fair value and volatility of the common stock
underlying the award, the risk-free interest rate and the contractual life of the award as determined at the
date of grant.

Prior to our shares trading on the NASDAQ Global Market, which trading commenced on
November 15, 2007, our Board of Directors considered a number of relevant factors, including arm’s
length equity transactions, current developments in the business, our financial prospects, the market

. performance of our primary competitor and our Board’s independent judgment to establish the exercise
price of our stock options at various grant dates. Subsequent to November 14, 2007, we use the closing
price of our common stock on the NASDAQ Global Market on the date of grant to determine the exercise
price of such options.

The following table shows the fair value of one share of our common stock and the exercise price of
one option granted on all of the stock option grant dates between January 1, 2005 and December 31,
2007.

Exercise
Fair Value of One Price of One

Share of Option

M‘E Common Stock Granted
JURB 22,2005 ...ttt e e 3 375 § 3.75
JUne 30, 2005 .. ... e e 3.75 475
October 21, 2005 . . .. it it ittt it 4.50 5.50
March 30, 2006 ... ... .. i iiie e i 11.02 12.00
April 18,2006 . . . . ... .o 11.02 12.00
July 1,2006 . . ..o e 11.92 12.00
April 1, 2007 ... ... 12.00 12.00
Aprit 2, 2007 ... .. 12.00 12.00
May 9, 2007 . . ..ottt e 12.00 12.00
May 29, 2007 . ... ... e 12.00 12.00
JUNE 20, 2007 .. e e 19.23 19.23
- November 14,2007 . ... ... ... ... 17.00 17.00
November 26, 2007 . . . .. . vt in ettt 23.00 23.00

Accounting for Series A Preferred Stock

On May 2, 2005, we issued 3,626,667 shares of Series A Cumulative Redeemable Convertible
Preferred Stock, or Series A Preferred Stock, in an arm'’s length transaction, for total consideration of
approximately $13.6 million. Each share of Series A Preferred Stock was convertible, at the option of the
holder, into one share of common stock. In June 2005, we began recording the current estimated fair
value of the Series A Preferred Stock on a quarterly basis based on the fair market value of that stock as
determined by management and/or our Board of Directors as described above. In accordance with
Accounting Series Release No. 268, Presentation in Financial Statements of “Redeemable Preferred
Stocks™ and EITF Abstracts, Topic D-98, Classification and Measurement of Redeemable Securities, we
recorded changes in the current fair value of the Series A Preferred Stock in the consolidated statements
of changes in stockholders’ equity (deficiency) as accretion of Series A Cumulative Redeemable
Convertible Preferred Stock and as additional paid-in capital, and in the consolidated statements of
operations as Series A Cumulative Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock accretion.

In connection with the preparation of our financial statements as of December 31, 2005, and for
every quarterly period thereafter, our Board of Directors, or our management in the event that a stock
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option grant did not accur in conjunction with those quarterly periods, established what it believes to be
afair market value of our Series A Preferred Stock and common stock. The following table shows the fair
value of one share of our Series A Preferred Stock and common stock at those dates.

Fair Value of One Share of

Series A Common
Preferred Stock Stock

December 31, 2005 . . . ... .ot e $ 1106 $ 7.85
March 31, 2006 . . .. ... . e e e 13.75 11.02
JUNE 30, 2008 . . . ... e 14.83 11.92
September 30, 2006 ... ... ... 16.10 14.53
December 31, 2006 . . . .. ... ... e 14.21 13.26
March 31, 2007 . . . ... . e e e 12.89 12.00
June 30, 2007 . . . .. e e 19.76 19.23
September 30, 2007 . . ... ... e 2112 20.58
November 14, 2007 . . .. ... .. . . e 17.00 17.00

The above determination of the fair value of our Series A Preferred Stock and common stock for the
periods ended September 30, 2007 and prior was based primarily on the weighting of two valuation
methodologies, which included the “income approach” and the “market approach.” The “income
approach” estimates the present fair value of our Series A Preferred Stock and commaon stock based
primarily upon a projection of our future revenues and cash flows, while the “market approach”
estimates those same fair values based upon comparisons to publicly held companies whose stocks are
actively traded and an analysis of the multiples at which those stocks are trading in the market.

Upan the closing of our initial public offering in November 2007, all of the outstanding shares of
Series A Preferred Stock were automatically converted into common stock and the rights of the holders
of our Series A Preferred Stock to exercise redemption rights were terminated. As a result, the Series A
Cumulative Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock was measured using the initial public offering price
of $17.00 and the amount reported as fair value of the Series A Preferred Stock at the time of conversion
was transferred into additional paid-in capital in the consolidated statement of changes in stockholders’
equity (deficiency). Since the Series A Preferred Stock canverted to common stock, we will no longer
record any related accretion or decretion. Furthermore, at the time of conversion, the holders of the
Series A Preferred Stock lost their rights to receive cumulative dividends in respect thereof as no
dividends that were previously declared by the Board of Directars remained unpaid.

Income Taxes

VRC recognizes income taxes under the asset and liability method. As such, deferred taxes are
based on the temporary differences, if any, between the financial statement and tax bases of assets and
liabilities that will result in future taxable or deductible amounts. The deferred taxes are determined using
the enacted tax rates that are expected 1o apply when the temporary difterences reverse, Income tax
expense is the tax payable for the period plus the change during the period in deferred income taxes.
Valuation allowances are established when necessary to reduce deferred tax assets to the amount
expected to be realized.

Developing a provision for income taxes, including the effective tax rate and the analysis of potential
tax exposure items, if any, requires significant judgment and expertise in federal, state and foreign
income tax laws, regulations and strategies, including the determination of deferred tax assets. Our
judgment and tax strategies are subject to audit by various taxing authorities. While we believe we have
provided adequately for our income tax liabilities in the consolidated financial statements, adverse
determinations by these taxing authorities could have a material adverse effect on our consolidated
financial condition, resuits of operations, and/or cash flows.
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As previously noted, we consolidate our financial results under the provisions of FIN 4BR. For
income tax purposes, however, we are not considered a consolidated entity. As a result, income
generated by the Affiliated Medical Practices, as well as any losses they are able to fund, are excluded
from VRC's calculation of income tax liability. In addition, losses generated by the Affitiated Medical
Practices that are funded by VRC result in temporary differences between VRC’s book and tax bases of
accounting. These temporary differences will reverse in future periods to the extent those losses are able
to be recovered by VRC.

The 2005 federal income tax return of VRC recently underwent examination by the Internal Revenue
Service, or IRS. The IRS examination has now been closed, and the result of this examination was
immaterial.

Factors Affecting Our Results of Operations
Revenue

We generate substantially all of our revenue from the radiology services that we provide to our
customers. We provide these services pursuant to contracts that typically have a one-year term and
automatically renew for successive one-year terms uniess terminated by the customer or by us. The
amount that we charge for our radiclogy services varies by customer and is based upon a number of
factors, including the hours of coverage, the number of reads, whether the reads are preliminary reads or
final reads, and the technical and administrative services provided. We recognize revenue when a read
has been completed and we determine that payment for the read is reasonably assured. We typically bill
our customers at the beginning of the month following the month in which the services were provided.
Because we contract directly with our customers and are paid directly by our customers, we do not
currently depend upon payment by third party payers such as Medicare, Medicaid, private insurance or
patients.

We have experienced significant revenue growth from $27.0 million in 2005, to $54.1 million in 2006
and $86.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2007. This growth in revenue resulted from:

* an increase in our customer base;

* an increase in utilization of our services by our customers;
* an expansion of our service hours;

« an increase in provision of higher-priced final reads; and

* high customer retention rates.

As of December 31, 2007, our affiliated radiologists provided services to 469 customers serving 804
medical facilities, which includes 752 hospitals representing approximately 13% of hospitals in the
United States. In addition to the current customers described above, as of December 31, 2007, we had
contractual arrangements with 33 customers, serving 69 facilities, for which we expect to begin to
provide services upon completion of the credentialing, independent physician licensing and other
implementation procedures. These additional implementation procedures ordinarily require up to
90 days to complete, at which time we begin providing services to the customer.

Operating Expenses

Our operating expenses consist of professional services expense and sales, general and
administrative expense.

Professional Services Expense. Professional services expense is our most significant expense
as a percentage of revenue. Our professional services expense consists of the fees we pay to our
affiliated radiologists for their services, physician stock-based compensation and medical liability
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expense, which consists of medical liability insurance premiums expense and medical liability loss
contingency expense.

* Physician Cash Compensation Expense. Physician cash compensation expense is the result
of engaging independent radiologists 1o provide reads for our customers. Each of our affiliated
radiologists provides and is compensated for reads in accordance with his or her independent
physician agreement. We structure our relationships with our affiliated radiologists such that they
generally have control over their schedule and the location from which they work. We
compensate our affiliated radiologists using a formula that includes a base level of compensation
and additional amounts with regard to the number of hours worked and the number and type of
reads performed. We recognize physician cash compensation expense in the month in which our
affiliated radiologists perform the reads for our customers. Physician cash compensation also
includes amounts paid for quality assurance services.

* Physician Stock-Based Compensation Expense. We record stock-based compensation
expense in connection with any award of stock options or other compensatory issuance of shares
of our common stock to our affiliated radiologists and include that expense in our consolidated
statemnent of income as part of our professional services expense. We calculate the stock-based
compensation expense associated with these awards in accordance with EITF No. 96-18, by
determining the fair value using a Black-Scholes model. EITF Issue No. 96-18 requires that the
cost of equity instruments issued to these affiliated radiologists be initially measured at their fair
vatue at the date the equity instruments were issued and adjusted over the service period, until
vested or forfeited, to their then-current fair value in every subsequent reporting period.
Accordingly, if the value of our common stock increases aver a given period, this accounting
treatment will generaily result in physician stock-based compensation expense that exceeds the
expense we would have recorded if these individuals were employees.

* Medical Liability Expense. Medical liability expense relates to the procurement of medical
malpractice insurance coverage and medical liability loss contingency expense, including
payments of deductibles. We amortize medical liability insurance premiums over the term of the
policy to which they relate and expense medical liability loss contingency expense in the month in
which we deem such liability to be probable and reasonably estimable.

Sales, General and Administrative Expense. Sales, general and administrative expense is our
second most significant expense as a percentage of revenue. Sales, general and administrative expense
consists primarily of employee compensation expense, sales and marketing expense, information
technology expense, the costs associated with the licensing and credentialing of our affiliated
radiologists and costs associated with maintaining our facilities.

Other (Expense) Income

Other (expense) income consists of non-operating expenses and income, such as interest expense
incurred from our borrowings and from equipment financing, and interest income earned on cash
balances and investments held in short-term government securities.

Redeemable Preferred Stock Accretion

On May 2, 2005, we issued shares of our Series A Preferred Stock, which were redeemable on or
after March 31, 2010, at the greater of the Redemption Price, as defined in our certificate of incorporation
that was in effect prior to the closing of cur initial public offering, or the fair value of the Series A Preferred
Stock. As a result, we adjusted the value of the Series A Preferred Stock to its fair value at each reporting
date. Upon the closing of our initial public offering in November 2007, all outstanding shares of our
Series A Preferred Stock were automatically converted into shares of our common stock and the rights of
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the holders of Series A Preferred Stock to exercise redemption rights terminated. As a resutt, there will be
no further recognition of accretion or decretion related to our Series A Preferred Stock.

Trends in Qur Business and Results of Operations
Revenue

Our business has grown rapidly since inception. This growth has been driven by an increase in the
demand for our services and a corresponding increase in our customer base. We have also experienced
an increase in the utilization of our services by our existing customers, through expansion of our service
hours, the provision of final reads, a high customer retention rate and the growth in the use of diagnostic
imaging technologies and procedures in the healthcare market. Our revenue growth has resulted
primarily from increased volumes across a growing customer base and favorable read mix. We expect
that our customers will continue to contract with us for additional services, including the performance of
final reads, as well as to contract for additional hours of service coverage.

The total number of reads we performed has continued to grow on a quarter-by-quarter basis for the
past eight quarters as follows:

Three Months Ended
December 31, September 30, June 30, March 31, December 31, September 30, June 30, March 31,
2007 2007 2008 2006 2006 2006

2007 2007
Totalreads ........ 453,280 473,263 413,167 352,149 309,151 302,497 237,271 184,608
Percentage growth aver
prior year quarter . . . 46.6% 56.5% 74.1% 90.8% 99.8% 105.9% 107.3% 98.1%

Our revenues are affected by seasonality. While our revenues have continued to grow each year, we
typically experience increased demand for our services and higher revenue growth during the second
and third quarters of each year. We believe that during the summer months there are an increased
amount of outdoor and transportation activities, which leads to more hospital visits, as well as there
being more frequent vacation time taken by our customers’ radiologists. During the first and fourth
quarters of each year, when weather conditions are colder for a large portion of the United States, we
have historically experienced lower revenue growth than that experienced during the second and third
quarters. We expect this seasonality with respect to our revenues to continue. Our operating results may
be subject to seasonal fluctuations, which makes our resuits difficult to predict and could cause our
performance to fall short of quarterly expectations. We also expect to derive revenue in the future from
contracts we have recently entered into for the licensing of our technology infrastructure and the
provision of management and support services.

In addition, our revenues are affected by fluctuations in the price per study charged to the
customers to whom we provide service. The table below illustrates the quarter-by-quarter percentage
change in the average revenue per read for lower price plain film reads and all other modalities for the
past eight quarters:

Three Months Ended
December 31, September 30, June 30, March 31, December 31, September 30, June 30, March 31,
2007 2007 2007

2007 2006 2006 2006 2006
Plain film ® . . .. (1.9)% 20)% 1.5% B.0% B38% @BA%  44% 1.8%
Al other

modalities @ . . . {1.1)% 0N%  0.1% 0.2)% 0.3)% 1.0% 0.4% 0.2%

m Plain film modality includes all x-ray technology images.

@ Al other modalities are primarily comprised of CT, MRI and ultrasound Images.

In November 2006, we also contracted to begin licensing the use of our technology infrastructure
and began providing support services to our radiology group customers. This will permit our radiology
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group customers that cover multiple hospitals to perform reads over our infrastructure regardless of
what equipment is in use at each hospital and without having to travel between hospitals. We have
contracted with the Massachusetts General Physician’s Organization, a subsidiary of Massachusetts
General Hospital and a teaching affiliate of Harvard Medical School, to market and manage their
deployment of specialized radiology services using our technology infrastructure. We have recognized
revenue of approximately $205,000 for the year ended December 31, 2007 related to support services
and $73,000 for the year ended December 31, 2006, but have not yet begun to provide services or
recognize revenue from the use of our technology infrastructure. We do not anticipate that revenue
recognized from these activities will be material in the near future.

Physician Cash Compensation Expense

Since our inception, our physician cash compensation expense has increased each year as we
have added more affiliated radiologists to fulfill the increased demand for our services as our business
and customer base has grown. However, physician cash compensation expense as a percentage of
revenue has decreased due to the increased productivity of our affiliated radiologists. The increases in
productivity by the existing affiliated radiologists have been, and may continue to be, offset, in part, by
significant increases in newly engaged affiliated radiologists and the costs associated with the typical
90- to 180-day period during which newly engaged affiliated radiologists obtain necessary state licenses
and hospital credentials, and thereafter become accustomed to our workflow technology. We expect
that our physician cash compensation expense will continue to increase, but will decrease as a
percentage of revenues as our expanding base of independent radiotogists continues to grow.

Physician Stock-Based Compensation Expense

Physician stock-based compensation expense is a non-cash expense that fluctuates based upon
the fair value of our common stock underlying the awards at the close of each reporting period as
required by EITF Issue No. 96-18. As the value of an award is based on the underlying value of the
common stock, we may record additional expense or income based on fluctuations in that value. Our
physician stock-based compensation expense may increase in future periods if we issue additional
options and other stock-based awards to our affiliated radiologists. However, the amount of expense for
any period attributable to physician stock-based compensation fluctuates and is difficult to predict.

Medical Liability Expense

Our medical liability expense has increased each year since inception due to the increases in our
medical liability insurance premiums primarily associated with the increased volume of reads our
affiliated radiologists performed, as well as for payment of deductibles.

Sales, General and Administrative Expense

Our sales, general and administrative expense has increased each year since our inception as a
result of increased employee compensation expenses in connection with the management, operations,
development and maintenance of our expanding business. In addition to increased employee
compensation expense, our sales, general and administrative expenses have increased due to
increases in expenses relating to information technology, facilities, licensing and credentialing, sales
and marketing and other general and administrative expense. We expect sales, general and
administrative expense to continue to increase in future periods as a result of expenses associated with
the performance of management and support services we have recently begun to provide to some of our
customers and as a result of expenses related to being a public company, including legal and
accounting fees and costs incurred in complying with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. We believe that
sales, general and administrative expenses, including the costs associated with the performance of the
management services we have recently begun to provide to some of our customers and as a result of
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expenses related to being a pubiic company, will increase as we continue to grow, but will decrease as a
percentage of revenue.

. Results of Operations

The following table sets forth selected consolidated statements of operations data for each of the
periods indicated as a percentage of revenue.

Year Ended
December 31,

2007 2006 2005

REVENUE . .. ittt tie it et s 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

Operating costs and expenses:

Professional ServiCes . . . .. v c i et e 50.6 55.4 60.8
Physician cash compensation. . . ........... ... . o 445 47.2 50.6
Physician stock-based compensation . ............... ... ... .. 4.3 6.3 7.4
Medical liability expenses . . . . ... .o 1.8 1.9 28

Sales, general and administrative . . .. ...... ... . Lo e 35.8 41.2 47.5

Depreciation and amortization . .. ...... ... ... ..o oo e 2.9 25 2.2

Total operating costs and expenses . .. .......... ... ... 89.3 98.1 110.5

Operating income (I0SS) . . ... oo v it e 10.7 09 {10.5)

Interest (expense) income, net. . ... ... i e (2.2) 0.4 03

Non-controlling interest income M . ... ... ... .. ..o o — — (5.0)

INCOME tAX BXPENSE . . . . o v vttt ittt i e e (4.5) {2.3) {0.2)

Netincome {I0SS) . . . . ..o v i e 4.0 {1.0) (5.4)

Series A Cumulative Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock accretion . (11.7)  (21.1)  (104.9)

Series A Preferred Stock dividend . . .. ... ... .o (15.8) — —

Net loss available to common stockholders .. .. ... ... ... . (23.5)% (22.1)% (109.8)%

) Non-controlling interest for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, represents less than
0.1% as a percentage of revenue.

Comparison of the Years Ended December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006

Revenue
Year Ended
December 31, Change
2007 2006 In Dollars Percentage
(dollars in thousands)

Revenuefromreads ..................... $ 84964 $ 53485 $ 31,479 58.9%
Other revenUe . . .. .o ot e e e e e e e e s 1,279 614 665 108.3
Total revenue . ... .. ...t $ 86,243 $ 54,099 § 32,144 59.4

The 59.4% increase in revenue for the year ended December 31, 2007, as compared to the year
ended December 31, 2006, resulted primarily from an increase in the number of customers to whom we
provided services, increased volume from existing customers and an increased number of higher-priced
final reads, which was partially offset by a 2.8% decline in our average price per read. For the year ended
December 31, 2007, approximately 76% of our revenues from reads were derived from preliminary reads

53




and approximately 24% from final reads, compared with approximately 81% from preliminary reads and
approximately 19% from final reads for the year ended December 31, 2006. The number of customers to
whom we provided services increased to 469 as of December 31, 2007, from 374 as of December 31,
2006. The number of medical facilities to whom we provide services increased to 804 as of December 31,
2007, from 663 as of December 31, 2006. Same site volume growth increased approximately 18% for the
year ended December 31, 2007, as compared to the year ended December 31, 2006. Same site volume
growth measures the percentage increase in the number of reads over the comparable prior year period
generated by a facility that has been under contract for at least three months at the beginning of the
measurement period and remains a customer throughout that period. Other revenue, primarily
representing revenue from networking, licensing and credentialing and other service revenue, grew with
the addition of new customers.

Operating Costs and Expenses
Professional Services

Year Ended Year Ended

December 31, Percentage December 31, Percentage Change
2007 of Revenue 2006 of Revenue In Dollars  Percentage
{dollars In thousands)

Physician cash compensation

eXpense. . .. ......... $ 38,388 445% $ 25,504 47.2% $ 12,883 50.5%
Physician stock-based

compensation expense . . . 3,687 43 3,416 8.3 272 8.0
Medical liability expense . . . . 1,632 1.8 1,053 1.9 479 455
Professional services . . . . .. $ 43,607 506 $ 20,973 554 $ 13,634 455

The 45.5% increase in professional services expense for the year ended December 31, 2007,
compared to the year ended December 31, 2006, resulted from increases in physician cash and
non-cash compensation expense associated with our increased number of radiologists and a significant
increase in the number of reads performed by radiologists together with additional medical liability
insurance premiums. The increase in the non-cash component of professional service expense resulted
from physician stock-based compensation related primarily to the increased fair value of our common
stock. For the year ended December 31, 2007, the number of physicians performing reads increased
55.6%, from 72 for the year ended December 31, 2006 to 112 for the year ended December 31, 2007. The
decrease in physician cash compensation expense as a percentage of revenue from 47.2% for the year
ended December 31, 2006 to 44.5% for the year ended December 31, 2007 resulted primarily from
improved radiologist efficiency during 2007 due to continuing advancements in both our distributed
network infrastructure and our radiologist support services.

Sales, General and Administrative

Year Ended Year Ended Change
December 31, Percentage December 31, Percentage
2007 of Revenue 20086 of Revenue In Dollars  Percentage
{doliars In thousands)
Sales, general and
administrative . ........ $ 30918 358% % 22,270 412% $ 8,648 38.8%

The 38.8% increase in sales, general and administrative expense for the year ended December 31,
2007, compared to the year ended December 31, 2006, resulted from increased expenses for employee
compensation, sales and marketing, information technology, licensing and credentialing and other
general and administrative expense.
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« Employee Compensation. Our employee compensation expense increased from $11.8 million

for the year ended December 31, 2006 to $17.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2007.
The 44.9% increase resulted primarily from the hiring of additional administrative and operations
personnel to manage, operate and maintain our business, and from performance-based bonus
compensation. As of December 31, 2007, the number of administrative and operations personnel
increased 18.8% from 186 as of December 31, 2006 to 221 as of December 31, 2007. Employee
compensation expense as a percentage of revenue was 19.8% and 21.9% for the years ended
December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Sales and Marketing. Our sales and marketing expenses increased from $3.1 million for the
year ended December 31, 2006 to $3.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2007. The 9.7%
increase resulted from expanded efforts in sales and marketing activities and programs and
higher commissions on increased revenue amounts. As of December 31, 2007, the number of
sales and marketing personnel decreased 11.1%, from 27 as of December 31, 2006 to 24 as of
December 31, 2007. Sales and marketing expenses as a percentage of revenue were 3.9% and
5.7% for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Information Technology. Qur information technology expense increased from $1.7 million for
the year ended December 31, 2006 to $1.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2007. The
11.8% increase resulted from increased provisioning costs for communications bandwidth and
additional radiologist network connections together with increases in software transactional costs
associated with increased volumes, which was partially offset by a decrease in software
transactional costs resulting from our implementation of our own RIS in February 2006.
Information technology expense as a percentage of revenue was 2.2% and 3.2% for the years
ended December 31, 2007 and 20086, respectively.

Licensing and Credentialing. Our licensing and credentialing related expenses increased
from $938,000 for the year ended December 31, 2006 to $1.5 million for the year ended
December 31, 2007, The 59.9% increase relates primarily to the amount and timing of initial and
renewal license applications on a greater number of affiliated radiologists, which was partially
offset by the comparatively lower costs of renewal applications. Licensing and credentialing
related expenses as a percentage of revenue were 1.8% and 1.7% for the years ended
December 31, 2007 and 20086, respectively.

Other General and Administrative. Our other general and administrative expenses increased
from $4.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2006 to $7.0 million for the year ended
December 31, 2007. The 48.9% increase resulted from an increase in facilities expense and
outside professional expense as well as other general operating expense primarily due to our
initial public offering and the growth in our business. Other general and administrative expenses
as a percentage of revenue were 8.1% and 8.7% for the years ended December 31, 2007 and
20086, respectively.

We believe that sales, general and administrative expenses, including the costs associated with the
performance of the management services we have recently begun to provide to some of our customers
and as a result of expenses related to being a public company, will increase as we continue to grow, but
will decrease as a percentage of revenue.

Depreciation and Amortization Expense. Depreciation and amortization expense increased

from $1.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2006 to $2.5 million for the year ended December 31,
2007. This 78.6% increase was primarily due to the increase in depreciation expense related to
additional capital equipment purchased for our operations. We believe that depreciation and
amortization expense will increase in the future, but will decrease as a percentage of revenue.
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interest (Expense) Income, Nel. Interest (expense) income, net, decreased from income of
$217,000 for the year ended December 31, 2006 to expense of $1.9 million for the year ended
December 31, 2007. This increase in interest expense relates to the interest and accelerated
amortization of capitalized closing costs associated with our Senior Credit Facility.

Non-Controiling Interest (Income) Expense. Through consolidation, we recognize all net losses
of the Affiliated Medical Practices in excess of the equity of the Affiliated Medical Practices. During the
year ended December 31, 2008, one of the Affiliated Medical Practices experienced net income that
created a positive equity position for that Affiliated Medical Practice and, as a result we recognized
non-controlling interest expense of $25,000. During the year ended December 31, 2007, that same
Affiliated Medical Practice experienced net losses that decreased its’ positive equity position, but did not
exceed it. As a result, for the year ended December 31, 2007, we recognized non-controlling interest
income of $17,000 relating to losses of that Affiliated Medical Practice.

Income Tax Expense. Income tax expense increased from $1.2 million for the year ended
December 31, 2006 to $3.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2007, which resulted primarily from
an increase in pre-tax net income for VRC from approximately $2.5 million for the year ended
December 31, 2006 to approximately $9.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2007. As previously
discussed, we consolidate our financial results in accordance with FIN 46(R). However, for income tax
purposes, VRC is a single tax entity that is taxed as a corporation and is not included in a tax
consolidated group with the Affiliated Medical Practices. As a result, tax losses of the Affiliated Medical
Practices are not available to offset taxable income of VRC. The difference in the consolidated group for
financial statement purposes and tax purposes, combined with the valuation allowances established for
deferred tax assets related to net operating loss carryforwards of certain of the Affiliated Medical
Practices, resulted in the increase in income tax expense for the year ended December 31, 2007
compared to the year ended December 31, 2006. There wera no operating loss carry-forwards to be
utilized for the years ended December 31, 2006 or December 31, 2007. These factors resulted in an
effective tax rate of 52.8% for the year ended December 31, 2007 compared to a rate of 175.9% for the
year ended December 31, 2006.

Preferred Stock Accretion. Preferred stock accretion decreased from $11.4 million for the year
ended December 31, 2006 to $10.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2007. This accretion relates
to our Series A Preferred Stock, which was issued on May 2, 2005, and is calculated based on the
difference between the estimated fair value of the Series A Preferred Stock as of the consolidated
balance sheet date compared to the fair value of the stock on the previous consolidated balance sheet
date. All shares of our Series A Preferred Stock were converted to common stock at the time of our initial
public offering, and as a result, there will be no further recognition of preferred stock accretion or
decretion for periods after December 31, 2007.
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Comparison of the Years Ended December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005

Revenue
Fiscal Year Ended '
December 31, Change
2006 2005 In Dollars Percentage
{dollars in thousands)

Revenue fromreads ..................... $ 53485 §$ 26,813 § 26,672 . 99.5%
Otherrevenue. . ........co i nrnnns 614 178 436 244.9
Totalrevenue ..............ccivreen.n. $ 54099 $ 26091 § 27,108 100.4

The 100.4% increase in revenue for the year ended December 31, 2006, as compared to the year
ended December 31, 2005, resulted primarily from an increase in the number of customers to whom we
provided services, increased volume from new and existing customers and an increased number of
higher-priced final reads. For the year ended December 31, 2006, approximately 81% of our revenues
from reads were derived from preliminary reads and approximately 19% from final reads, compared with
approximately 91% from preliminary reads and approximately 9% from final reads for the year ended
December 31, 2005. The number of customers to whom we provided services increased to 374 as of
December 31, 2008, from 238 as of December 31, 2005. The number of medical facilities to whom we
provided services increased to 663 as of December 31, 20086, from 446 as of December 31, 2005. Same
site volume growth increased approximately 20% for the year ended December 31, 2006, as compared
to the year ended December 31, 2005. Same site volume growth measures the percentage increase in
the number of reads over the comparable prior year period generated by a facility that has been under
contract for at least three months at the beginning of the measurement period and remains a customer
throughout that period. Other revenue, primarily representing revenue from technical support services to
our customers, grew with the addition of new customers.

Operating Costs and Expenses

Professional Services

Year Ended Year Ended Change
December 31, Peorcentage December 31, Percentage
2006 of Revenue 2005 of Revenue In Dollars Percentage
(dollars in thousands}

Physician cash compensation

eXPense . . . . ... $ . 25504 47.2% & 13,670 506% $ 11,835 86.6%
Physician stock-based

compensation expense . . . 3,416 6.3 1,995 7.4 1,420 7.2
Medical liability expense . . . . 1,053 1.9 751 2.8 302 40.2
Professional services . ... .. $ 29,973 55.4% § 16,416 60.8% $ 13,557 826

The 82.6% increase in professional services expense for the year ended December 31, 2006,
compared to the year ended December 31, 2005, resulted from increases in physician cash and
non-cash compensation expense associated with our increased number of radiologists and a significant
increase in the number of reads performed by radiologists together with additional medical liability
insurance premiums. The increase in the non-cash component of professional service expense resulted
from physician stock-based compensation related primarily to the increased fair value of our common
stock. For the year ended December 31, 2006, the number of physicians performing reads increased
35.8%, from 53 for the year ended December 31, 2005 to 72 for the year ended December 31, 2006. The
decrease in physician cash compensation expense as a percentage of revenue from 50.6% for the year
ended December 31, 2005 to 47.2% for the year ended December 31, 2006 resulted primarily from our
rapid engagement of physicians in the first half of 2005 in anticipation of significant sales growth and
seasonal demand, and our better matching of capacity with demand for the first half of 2006.
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Sales, General and Administrative

Year Ended Year Ended

December 31, Percentage December 31, Percentage Change
2006 of Revenue 2005 of Revenue In Dollars Percentage
(dollars in thousands)
Sales, general and
administrative . . ....... $ 22,270 41.2% $ 12,814 47.5% $ 9,456 73.8%

The 73.8% increase in sales, general and administrative expense for the year ended December 31,
2006, compared to the year ended December 31, 2005, resulted from increased expenses for employee
compensation, information technology, facilities, licensing and credentialing, sales and marketing and
other general administrative expensa.

« Employee Compensation. Qur employee compensation expense increased from $6.8 million
for the year ended December 31, 2005 to $11.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2006.
The 73.5% increase resulted primarily from the hiring of additional administrative and operations
personnel to manage, operate and maintain our business, and from performance-based bonus
compensation. As of December 31, 2006, the number of administrative and operations personnel
increased 44.2% from 129 as of December 31, 2005 to 186 as of December 31, 2006. Employee
compensation expense as a percentage of revenue was 21.9% and 25.5% for the years ended
December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

» Sales and Marketing. Our sales and marketing expenses increased from $1.5 million for the
year ended December 31, 2005 to $3.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2006. The
106.7% increase resulted from an increase in the number of our sales and marketing personnet
and expanded efforts in sales and marketing activities and programs. As of December 31, 20086,
the number of sales and marketing personnel increased 22.7%, from 22 as of December 31, 2005
to 27 as of December 31, 2006. Sales and marketing expenses as a percentage of revenue were
5.7% and 5.5% for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

* Information Technology. Our information technology expense increased from $1.3 million for
the year ended December 31, 2005 to $1.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2006. The
30.8% increase resulted from increased provisioning costs for communications bandwidth and
additional radiologist network connections together with increases in software transactional costs
associated with increased volumes, which was partially offset by a decrease in software
transactional costs resulting from our implementation of our own RIS in February 20086.
Information technology expense as a percentage of revenue was 3.2% and 4.9% for the years
ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

* Licensing and Credentialing. Our licensing and credentialing related expenses increased
from $886,000 for the year ended December 31, 2005 to $938,000 for the year ended
December 31, 2006. The 5.9% increase relates primarily to the amount and timing of initial and
renewal license applications, which was parially offset by the comparatively lower costs of
renewal applications. Licensing and credentialing related expenses as a percentage of revenue
were 1.7% and 3.3% for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively

* Other General and Administrative. Our other general and administrative expenses increased
from $2.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2005 to $4.7 million for the year ended
December 31, 2006. The 113.6% increase resulted from an increase in facilities expense and
outside professional expense as well as other general operating expense commensurate with our
increased activities. Other general and administrative expenses as a percentage of revenue were
8.7% and 8.3% for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

We telieve that sales, general and administrative expenses, including the costs associated with the \
performance of the management services we have recently begun to provide to some of our customers ‘
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and as a result of expenses related to being a public company, will increase as we continue to grow, but
will decrease as a percentage of revenue.

Depreciation and Amortization Expense. Depreciation and amortization expense increased
from $586,000 for the year ended December 31, 2005 to $1.4 million for the year ended December 31,
2006. This 138.9% increase was primarily due to the increase in depreciation expense related to
additional capital equipment purchased for our operations. We believe that depreciation and
amortization expense will increase in the future, but will decrease as a percentage of revenue.

Interest (Expense) income, Nel. Interest (expense) income, net, increased from income of
$56,000 for the year ended December 31, 2005 to income of $217,000 for the year ended December 31,
2006. This increase resulted from interest income earned on the net proceeds of our sale of Series A
Preferred Stock in May 2005, net of interest expense on our revolving line of credit repaid from the
proceeds of that sale.

Non-Controlling Interest (Income) Expense. Through consolidation, we recognize all net losses
of the Affiliated Medical Practices in excess of the equity of the Affiliated Medical Practices. For the period
ended December 31, 2005 VRP experienced net losses that changed VRP’s equity position to a net
deficit and, as a result we recognized non-controlling interest income of $1.4 million relating to losses
previously absorbed by VRC. During the year ended December 31, 2006, the non-controlling interest
expense was $25,000, which refiects income generated by one of our Affiliated Medical Practices during
that period.

Income Tax Expense. Income tax expense increased from $58,000 for the year ended
December 31, 2005 to $1.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2006, which resulted primarily from
an increase in pre-tax net income for VRC from approximately $1.7 million for the year ended
December 31, 2005 to approximately $2.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2006. As previously
discussed, we consolidate our financial results in accordance with FIN 46(R). However, for income tax
purposes, VRC is a single tax entity that is taxed as a corporation and is not included in a tax
consolidated group with the Affiliated Medical Practices. As a result, tax losses of the Affiliated Medicat
Practices are not available to offset taxable income of VRC. The difference in the consolidated group for
financial statement purposes and tax purposes, combined with the valuation allowances established for
deferred tax assets related to net operating loss carryforwards of certain of the Affiliated Medical
Practices, resulted in the increase in income tax expense for the year ended December 31, 2006
compared to the year ended December 31, 2005. In addition, the increase aiso resulted from the
utilization of the net operating loss carry-forwards previously not recognized which eliminated VRC's
taxable income for the year ended December 31, 2005. There were no operating loss carry-forwards to
be utilized for the year ended December 31, 2006. These factors resulted in an effective tax rate of
175.9% for the year ended December 31, 2006 compared to a negative 4.1% for the year ended
December 31, 2005.

Preferred Stock Accretion. Preferred stock accretion decreased from $28.2 million for the year
ended December 31, 2005 to $11.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2006. This accretion relates to
our Series A Preferred Stock, which was issued on May 2, 2005, and is calculated based on the difference
between the estimated fair value of the Series A Preferred Stock as of the consolidated balance sheet date
compared to the fair value of the stock on the previous consolidated balance sheet date.
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Quarterly Results of Operations

The following table presents our unaudited consolidated results of operations and other financial data for the
last eight quarters. The financial data presented below reflects the consolidated operations of Virtual Radiologic
Corporation and the Affiliated Medical Practices. You should read the following table in conjunction with the
consolidated financial statements and related notes included elsewhere in this prospectus. We have prepared the
unaudited interim consolidated financial statements in accordance with GAAF and the rules and regulations of the
SEC for the interim financial statements. These interim financial statements reflect all adjustments consisting of

normal recurring accruals, which, in the opinion of management, are necessary to present fairly the results of our
operations for the interim periods.

Three Months Ended

December 31, September 30, June 30, March 31, December 31, September 30, June 30, March 31,
2007 2007 2007 2007 2006 2006 2006 2006

{in thousands)

Consolidated Statement of
Operatlons Data:

Revenue . ............... $ 22945 § 24033 $ 21,163 $ 18,102 § 16,165 § 15877 $ 12,383 § 9,674
Operating costs and

expenses M, .. ..... ... .. 20,741 20,244 20,002 16,026 15,633 14,791 12,199 10,971
Operating income {loss) . ... .. 2,204 3,789 1,161 2,076 532 1,086 184 (1,297)
Cther (expense) incomea

Interest Expense . . ... ... .. {1,938) (435) (n ) ) {7) (12} (9)

Interest Income . . ........ 199 138 71 43 54 75 65 60
Other (expense} income . ... .. (1,739) (297) 70 37 45 68 53 51

Income (loss) before
non-controlling interest and

incometax ............. 465 3,492 1,231 2,113 577 1,154 237 {1,246)
Non-controlling interest (income)

eXPeNse . ... .. ........, (2,108) 1,752 (341) 680 (260) 20 100 95
Income tax expense (benefity . . . 1,288 1,192 995 392 {454) 1,058 413 209
Net income (loss) . ......... 1,285 548 577 1,041 1,291 6 (276) (1,550)
Cash dividends paid on preferred

stock .. ... .. ... — (13,596) — — —_ — — —

Series A Cumulative Redeemable
Convertible Preferred Stock

decretion (accretion) .. ... .. 14,941 (4,950) (24,892) 4,774 6,844 (4,589) (3,924) (9,768)
Net income (loss) available to

common stockholders . . .. .. $ 16,226 § (17,998)$(24,315)% 5815 $ 8,135 ¢ (4,583) % (4,200)8 {11,318)
Eamings (loss) per share:
Basic . ................. $ 128 § (2228 (3.27}3% 056 $ 079 § (069)% (0648 (1.71)
Diluted . ................ $ 008 % 222)8 (32n$ 0.08 % 0.10 § (069)8 (0.8H$ (1.71)

" Includes the non-cash stock-based compensation and depreciation and amortization charges set forth in the following table:

Three Months Ended

December 31, September 30, June 30, March 31, December 31, September 30, June 30, March 31,
2007 2007 2007 2007 2006 2006 2006

(in thousands)

Protessional services ... ... ..
Non-cash stock-based
compensation . .. ....... $ 759 § 875 % 2158 % (105) $ 166 $ 1,097 % 653 8% 1,500
Sales, general and administrative
Non-cash stock-based

compensation . . .. ... ... ' 278 292 89 27 65 19 22 9
Depreciation and amortization . . , 787 654 549 498 409 347 327 268
$ 1,824 § 1821$ 2796 % 420 § 540 § 1463 $ 1,002 8 1,777
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Short-Term Investments

Our financial position included cash and cash equivalents of $33.5 million and $6.0 million at
December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. We have historically funded our operations from cash flows
generated by our operating activities, by proceeds generated from the sale of our Series A Preferred
Stock and common stock, and from borrowings under our various revolving credit facilities.

The reported changes in cash and cash equivalents for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006
and 2005 are summarized below:

Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
{in thousands}
Net cash provided by {used in) operating activities . . . ... ... .. $ 6861 § 3977 $ (1,794)
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities .. ......... (5,093) 1,208 {7.754)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities . .......... 25,761 (2,315) 12,152
Increase in cash and cashequivalents . . . . ................ $27529 $ 2870 $ 2,604

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

For the year ended December 31, 2007, we generated $6.9 million of net cash from operating
activities from net income of $3.5 million. Qur net cash from operations during this period included an
increase in our accounts receivable of $3.7 million, which resulted primarily from the growth in our
business and a slight increase in the average number of days our sales were outstanding from
approximately 48 days for the year ended December 31, 2006 to 49 days for the year ended
December 31, 2007. The net cash from operations also included an increase in current taxes receivable
of $2.0 million and a decrease in current taxes payable of $608,000, partially offset by an increase in
accounts payable and accrued expenses of $1.7 million related primarily to increases in accrued
compensation expense and accrued professional fees for employees and independent contractor
physicians. In addition, we had non-cash charges of $1.4 million for amortization of debt issuance costs,
$2.5 million for depreciation and amortization and $4.4 million for equity-based compensation.

For the year ended December 31, 2006, we generated $4.0 million of net cash from operating
activities from a net loss of $529,000. Our net cash from operations during this period included an
increase in our accounts receivable of $4.6 millian, which resulted primarily from the growth in our
business and an increase in the average number of days our sales were outstanding from approximately
46 days for the year ended December 31, 2005 to 48 days for the year ended December 31, 2006. The
net cash from operating activities included an increase in accounts payable and accrued expenses of
$4.0 million, which related primarily to increases in accrued compensation expense and accrued
professional fees for employees and independent contractor physicians. The net cash from operating
activities also included an increase in current taxes payable of $608,000. In addition, we had non-cash
charges of $1.4 million for depreciation and amortization and $3.5 million for equity-based
compensation.

For the year ended December 31, 2005, we used $1.8 million of net cash in operating activities from
a net loss of $1.5 million. Qur net cash used in operations during this period included an increase in our
receivables of $2.5 million and an increase in accounts payabie and accrued expenses of $1.4 million.
The increase in accounts receivable was partially offset by a decrease in the average number of days our
sales were outstanding, from approximately 50 days for the year ended December 31, 2004 to
approximately 46 days for the year ended December 31, 2005. The increase in accounts payable and
other accrued expenses related primarily to an increase in accrued compensation expenses for both
employees and independent contractor physicians. In addition, net cash used in operating activities
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included an increase in prepaid expenses and other assets of $465,000, which resulted primarily from an
increase in the costs associated with medical malpractice insurance and the timing of those payments.
We also had non-cash charges of $586,000 for depreciation and amortization and $2.0 million for equity-
based compensation.

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities was $5.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2007, which
was comprised primarily of capital expenditures associated with purchases of equipment and continued
investment in our information technology infrastructure.

Net cash provided by investing activities was $1.2 miltion for the year ended December 31, 2008,
which was comprised primarity of the maturation of a short-term investment, which was partially offset by
capital expenditures associated with purchases of equipment and continued investment in our
information technology infrastructure.

Net cash used in investing activities was $7.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2005. These
expenditures were comprised of the purchase of a $5.0 million short-term investment with a portion of
the proceeds from our Series A Preferred Stock offering, $2.3 million in capital expenditures associated
with purchases of equipment and continued investment in our information technology infrastructure.

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Net cash provided by financing activities was $25.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2007.
Our net cash provided by financing activities included an increase of $63.2 million related to the
issuance of our common stock through our initial public offering, net of all underwriting discounts and
commissions, which was partially offset by payments of $39.9 million for a one-time dividend and
$1.4 million related to debt issuance costs. Our net cash provided by financing activities also included
increases of $4.8 million as a result of tax benefits generated by the disqualified disposition of stock
options during the period, $1.2 million of net proceeds from the issuance of common stock relating to
the exercise of stock options and warrants during the period and payments of $2.1 million for costs
related to our initial public offering.

Net cash used in financing activities was $2.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2006. During
this period the net cash provided by financing activities included payment on a related party payable of
$200,000 relating to the concurrent receipt of the same amount from one of our affiliated radiologists in
connection with the concurrent redemption and resale of shares of our common stock. In addition, net
cash used in financing activities for the twelve month period also included $1.8 million of payments
related to the costs associated with our anticipated initial public offering and $292,000 of payments on
capital leases.

Net cash provided by financing activities was $12.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2005.
During this period, the net cash provided by financing activities included $13.6 million in gross proceeds
from the sale of our Series A Preferred Stock, $218,000 of which was allocated to the warrants to
purchase common stock issued in conjunction with that sale, and $1.5 million of which was allocated to
pay the costs associated with the offering. Also included in the net cash provided by financing activities
was $974,000 in cash proceeds from the sale of our common stock. Net payments on our revolving line
of credit totaling $475,000 and $399,000 for payments of capital lease obligations partially offset these
amounts.

Future Liquidity Requirements

We believe that our cash balances, including the proceeds from our initial public offering, and the
expected cash flow from operations, will be sufficient to fund our operating activities, working capital and
capital expenditure requirements for at least the next eighteen months. We expect our long-term liquidity
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needs ta consist primarily of working capital and capital expenditure requirements. We intend to fund
these long-term liquidity needs from cash generated from operations along with cash generated by
potential future financing transactions. However, our ability to generate cash is subject to our
performance, general economic conditions, industry trends and other factors. Many of these factors are
beyond our control and cannot be anticipated at this time. To the extent that funds generated by our
public offering, together with existing cash and securities and cash from operations, are insufficient to
fund our future activities, we may need to raise additional funds through public or private equity or debt
financing. If additional funds are obtained by issuing equity securities, substantial dilution to existing
stockholders may result. As of December 31, 2007, we were not a party to any agreement or binding
letters of intent with respect to potential investments in, or acquisitions of, complementary businesses,
services or technologies, although we may enter into these types of arrangements in the future, which
could also require us to seek additional debt or equity financing. Additional funds may not be available
on terms favorable to us or at all.

Contractual Obligations and Commitments

The following table presents a summary of our contractual obligations and commitments as of
December 31, 2007. The professional services agreements that we entered into with our affiliated
radiologists are not included in the following table because those contracts, subject to certain notice
provisions, may be terminated by either party.

Less Than 1-3 3-5 More Than

Total 1 Year Years Years 5 Years
(in thousands)
Operating Lease Commitments (. . . .. $ 18610 $ 1,030 $ 3336 $ 3,311 $ 10,933

M Operating lease commitments less than one year consist of: (i) leases for our office facilities in
Minnetonka, Minnesota, Eden Prairie, Minnesota, Maui, Hawaii and Mountain View, California and
(ii) the security deposit on our new corporate headquarters in Eden Prairie, Minnesota. Operating
lease commitments greater than one year also include a lease for our new corporate headquarters
facility in Eden Prairie, Minnesota.

We did not have any current or future capital lease commitments as of December 31, 2007.

Revolving Credit Facility with Associated Bank

In December 2006, we terminated our revolving credit facility with Associated Commercial
Finance, Inc. and entered into a new revolving credit facility with Associated Bank, National Association.
Pursuant to the terms of the new revolving credit facility, up to $2.0 million was available to us provided
that such amount did not exceed 80% of our outstanding accounts receivabie. Our obligations under the
new revolving credit facility were secured by a pledge of cur accounts receivable and a security interest
in our other property. We were able to voluntarily prepay any amounts outstanding under the new
revolving credit facility without penalty or fees. Any amounts outstanding under the new revolving credit
facility incurred interest at a rate equal to the greater of 5% or the prime rate. In addition, we were
required to pay a non-use fee for any unborrowed amounts under the new revolving credit facility at a
rate of 0.25% per annum. Under the terms of the new revolving credit facility, we were subject to, among
other things, restrictions on incurring additional debt, liens and encumbrances. We terminated the new
revolving credit facility, which was undrawn as of the date of its termination, in August 2007 in connection
with the closing of the Senior Credit Facility described below.

Senior Credit Facility

We entered into the Senior Credit Facility in August 2007, which was comprised of a $4.0 million
revolver and a $41.0 million term loan. The proceeds of the term loan after the payment of fees and
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expenses incurred in connection with the Senior Credit Facility, together with cash on hand, were used to
fund a one-time dividend of $3.00 per share that was declared by our Board of Directors on August 10,
2007. On September 5, 2007, we paid an aggregate of approximately $39.9 million in respect of a
one-time dividend of $3.00 per share to all of our stockholders of record as of August 29, 2007, including
preferred stockholders. On November 20, 2007, the Company used approximately $43.4 million of the
net proceeds from its initial public offering to repay outstanding debt under the Senior Credit Facility,
including interest accrued thereon and fees and expenses incurred in connection therewith. In
connection with the repayment, the Company terminated the Senior Credit Facility on November 20,
2007. No prepayment penalties were incurred in connection with the termination of the Senior Credit
Facility.

Interest Rate and Fees

The interest rates per annum applicable to the loans under the Senior Credit Facility was, at our
option, equal o either a base rate or an adjusted LIBO rate, in each case, plus an applicable margin
percentage. The base rate was the greater of: (i) 50 basis points above the weighted average of rates on
overnight Federal funds as published by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York and (ii) Bloomberg's
prime rate as published by Bloomberg Professional Service. The adjusted LIBO rate was determined by
reference to settlement rates established for deposits in dollars in the London interbank market for a
period equal to the interest period of the loan as adjusted for the maximum reserve requirement
established by the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System. Rates ranged between 9% and
11% for the period during which the Senior Credit Facility was outstanding. Total interest paid related to
the Senior Credit Facility for the year ended December 31, 2007 was approximately $939,000.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements, or SFAS No. 157.
This standard clarifies the principle that fair value should be based on the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing an asset or liability. Additionally, it establishes a fair value hierarchy
that prioritizes the information used to develop those assumptions. On February 12, 2008 the FASB
issued FASB Staff Position, or FSP. FAS 157-2, Effective Date of FASB Statement No. 157, or FSP
FAS 157-2. FSP FAS 157-2 defers the implementation of SFAS No. 157 for certain nonfinancial assets
and nonfinancial liabilities. The remainder of SFAS No. 157 is effective, for us, beginning in the first
quarter of fiscal year 2009. The aspects that have been deferred by FSP FAS 157-2 will be effective for us
peginning in the first quarter of fiscal year 2010. We are currently evaluating the impact of this statement.
We do not believe the adoption of SFAS No. 157 will have a material impact on our consolidated results
of operations or financial position.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities, or SFAS No. 159. This standard provides companies with an option to repont
selected financial assets and liabilities at fair value and establishes presentation and disclosure
requirements designed to facilitate comparisons between companies that choose different
measurement attributes for similar types of assets and liabilities. SFAS No. 159 is effective as of the
beginning of an entity’s first fiscal year beginning after November 15, 2007. We have not elected the fair
value option for eligible items that existed as of January 1, 2008.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141 (revised 2007), Business Combinations, or SFAS
No. 141R. SFAS No. 141R changes the accounting for business combinations, including the
measurement of acquirer shares issued in consideration for a business combination, the recognition of
contingent consideration, the accounting for contingencies, the recognition of capitalized in-process
research and development, the accounting for acquisition-related restructuring cost accruals, the
treatment of acquisition related transaction costs and the recognition of changes in the acquirer’s
income tax valuation allowance and income tax uncertaintias. SFAS No. 141R applies prospectively to
business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual
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reporting period beginning on or after December 15, 2008, and interim periods within those fiscal years.
Earty application of this statement is prohibited. We are currently evaluating the impact of this statement.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160, Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated
Financial Statements, an amendment of ARB 51, or SFAS No. 160, which changes the accounting and
reporting for minority interests. Minority interests will be recharacterized as noncontrolling interests and
will be reported as a component of equity separate from the parent's equity, and purchases or sales of
equity interests that do not result in a change in control will be accounted for as equity transactions. In
addition, net income attributable to the noncontrolling interest will be included in consolidated net
income on the face of the income statement and, upon a loss of control, the interest sold, as well as any
interest retained, will be recorded at fair value with any gain or loss recognized in earnings. SFAS
No. 160 is effective for fiscal years beginning on or after December 15, 2008. The statement shall be
applied prospectively as of the beginning of the fiscal year in which it is initially applied, except for the
presentation and disclosure requirement which shall be applied retrospectively for all periods
presented. Early adoption of this statement is prohibited. We are currently evaluating the impact of this
statement.

ITEM 7A. Quantitative and Qualltative Disclosure About Market Risk

Foreign Currency Exchange Risk

As of December 31, 2007, we did not have significant exposure to foreign currency exchange rates
as substantially all of our transactions are denominated in U.S. dollars. VRL's functional currency is the
British pound; however, as of December 31, 2007, VRL's operations are immaterial and do not have a
material impact on our consolidated results of operations or financial position.

Interest Rate Market Risk

Our cash is invested in bank deposits and demand deposit accounts denominated in U.S. dollars.
The carrying value of our cash, restricted cash, accounts receivable, other current assets, trade
accounts payable, accrued expenses and customer deposits approximate fair value because of the
short period of time to maturity.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To Board of Directors and Stockholders of Virtual Radiologic Corporation:

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and the related consolidated statements
of operations, of changes in stockholders’ equity (deficiency) and of cash flows present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of Virtual Radiologic Corporation (the “Company”) at
December 31, 2007 and 20086, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended December 31, 2007, in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
Company’'s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with the standards of
the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As discussed in Note 8 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed the manner in
which it accounts for uncertain tax positions in 2007. Also as discussed in Note 2, the Company changed
the manner in which it accounts for employee share-based compensation in 2006.

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Minneapolis, Minnesota
March 17, 2008
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VIRTUAL RADIOLOGIC CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

{(in thousands, except share data)
As of
December 31,
2007 2006
Assets
Current assets:
Cashand cash equivalents . . .. ......... . . .. iy $33487 $ 5,958
Restricted cash . . .. ... i i i e e e 700 700
Accounts receivable, net. . . ... . ... 12,486 9,036
Prepaid eXpenses . . . .. e e e e 2,073 1,496
Currenttaxesreceivable . . . . .. ... .. .. e e 1,995 —
Other curmment assetS. . . . . . .. i e e e e 336 2,480
Total current @ssets . . . ... ..o it e e e e 51,077 19,670
Property, plantand equipment, net . . . . .. .. .. ... ... Lo i o 8,013 5,704
intangible assets, net . .. ..... ... .. .. .. ... L 252 204
Other assets. . . . .. ... e 94 71
Total ASSetS . . . . i e e e e $59,436 $ 25,649
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity (Deficiency)
Current liabilities:
Current portion of capital lease cobligations . . . . ... ... ... ... ... .. .. .. $ — % 21
Accounts payable . ... . ... . ... . e 801 469
| Accrued professional services compensationexpense . . .. ............... 4,681 4,166
' Accrued sales, general and administrative compensation expense . ......... 1,717 887
Other acCrued eXPENSES . . . . . . ottt et e e e e 1,273 1,830
f Currenttaxes payable .. ... ... .. i — 608
' Other current liabilities . . . ... ... ... .. .. . . e e 398 31
Total current liahilities . . . . . . . . . e 8,870 8,012
Deferred rent . ... . e e e e e e 204 218
Other Habilities . . ... ... . e e 24 302
Non-controlling interest . . .. ... ... . . e 8 25
Commitments and contingencies (Note 9)
Series A Cumulative Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock, $.001 par value;
6,370,000 and 3,630,000 shares authorized at December 31, 2007 and 2008;
zero and 3,626,667 shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2007 and
2006; liquidation value of zero and $17,415,330 at December 31, 2007 and

2006, respectively . . ... .. e e — 51,627 I

Stockholders’ equity (deficiency)
Common stock, $.001 par value; 100,000,000 and 21,500,000 shares authorized
at December 31, 2007 and 2006; 16,463,173 and 6,718,810 shares issued

and outstanding at December 31, 2007 and 20086, respectively .. ......... 16 7
Additional paid-in capital. . . . . .. .. 90,165  (31,048)
Accumulated deficit . ... .. .. ... {39,851) (3,394)

Total stockholders’ equity (deficiency) . . .......... ... ... . . 50,330  (34,435)

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity (deficiency) . ... ............... $59,436 & 25,649

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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RevenUE ... ...t it e e e

Operating costs and expenses
Professional services. . . ... ... oottt e
Sales, general and administrative . ... ......... e
Depreciation and amortization .. ............... ...

Total operating costs and expenses . ..................
Operatingincome (I08S) . . . ... .o v ittt i i i

Other {expense} income
Interest eXpPensSe . . .. ... it e
Interest INCOME . . ... .. i it e i it s et a e

Total other (expense) income .. ......................

Income (loss) before non-controlling interest and income
1=

Non-controlling interest (income) expense . .. ...............
Income (loss) before incometaxes . ......... ... .. ...,
INCOMETaX BXPENSE . . . . . .. .. . i it s it ia st can
Netincome (I0SS) ....... ...

Series A Cumulative Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock
= Lo o (<1 1 (o1 1

Cash Dividends Paid:
Series APreferred Stock . ........ .. i

Net loss available to common stockholders . . . ...........

Loss per common share

BasicandDiluted . . ..... ... .. i
Weighted average common shares outstanding

BasicandDiluted . ... ............ ... . o i,

VIRTUAL RADIOLOGIC CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(in thousands, except share data)

Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
$86,243 $54,099 $ 26,991
43607 29,973 16,416
30,918 22270 12,814
2,488 1,351 586
77,013 53594 29,816
9,230 505 (2,825)
(2,380) (37 (131)
451 254 187
(1,929) 217 56
7,301 722 (2,769)
(17) 25 {(1,362)
7.318 697 (1,407)
3,867 1,226 58
3,451 (529)  (1,465)
(10,127) (11,437) (28,181)
(13,596) — —
$(20,272) $(11,966) $(29,646)
$ (231) $ (1.80) $ (4.79)
8,762 6,640 6,254

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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VIRTUAL RADIOLOGIC CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (DEFICIENCY)

(in thousands, except share data)

Additional e Stocgmlld
onal olders'
Common Stock Pald-In Subscription Accumulated Equity
Shares Amount Capital Recelvable Deficit {Deficiency)

Balance at January 1,2005 . . ... ....... 5659500% 57§ 253 § — & (1,399) % (1,089)
Conversion of related party notes payable to

commonstock. . . ................. 495,970 1 991 — — 992
Sale of common stock to independent

contractor physicians .. ............. 448,340 — 1,345 — — 1,345
Warrants issued in conjunction with sale of

Series A Cumulative Redeemable Convertible

Prefarred Stock . ... ............... — — 218 — — 218
Accretion of Series A Cumulative Redeemable

Convertible Preferred Stock . .. ....... . — —  {28,181) — — {28,181)
Equity based compensation for independent

contractor physicians . .............. — — 1,995 — — 1,885
Common stock to be re-purchased .. ... ... (85,000) — (255} — — {255)
Common stock to be re-issued . . ... ... ... 85,000 — 255 (200) — 55
Change in par-value of common stock from

$.01 to $.001 due to re-incorporation. . . . . . — {51) 51 —_ — —
Netloss . ............. . .. ........ — — — — {1,465) {1,465)
Balance at December 31,2005 . . .. ... ... 6,603,810 § 7% (23.328)% (200) $ (2,864} % (26,385)
Accretion of Series A Cumulative Redeemable

Convertible Preferred Stock . .. ........ — — (M43 — - {11,437)
Equity based compensation for independent

contractor physicians . ... ........... - — 3416 — 3416
Equity based compensation for employees . . . — — 115 _— - 115
Stock subscription receivable payment . . . . . . —_ — — 200 200
Issuance of common stock to independent

contractor physicians ... ............ 35,000 — 105 — — 105
Independent contractor physician stock option

OXEICISES . . . ..o 80,000 — 80 — -— 80
Netloss . .....vvniii i, —_ — — — (529) (529)
Balance at Decomber 31,2006 . . . . ... ... 6,718,810 § 7% (31,049)8 — % (3,399)$ (34,435)
Accretion of Series A Cumulative Redeemable

Convertible Preferred Stock . ... ... ..., — — {10,127) — — (10,127}
Equity based compensation for independent

contractor physicians . . . ............ —_ - 3,687 — — 3,687
Equity based compensation for employees . . . - — 686 -_ 686
Independent contractor physician and

employee stock option exercises . ....... 2,045,163 2 1,512 — — 1,514
Common stock re-purchased . . .. ..... ... (910,000} (1} {10,009) — {10,010)
Common stock re-issued . . . ........... 910,000 10,009 — 10,010
Warrantexercise . . . ................. 72,533 — 1 — 1
Paymentofdividend ................. — — — {(39,809) (39,909)
Common stock issued in initial public offering . 4,000,000 4 63,236 — — 63,240
Series A Preferred Stock conversion to

commonstock. .. ................. 3,626,667 3 61,650 — —_ 61,653
Excess tax benefit from exercises of stock

options .. ....... ... —_ — 4,780 — — 4,780
Stock issuancecosts . ... ... .......... — — {4,211) — — {4.211)
Netincome . ...................... — — — — 3,451 3,451
Balance at December 31,2007 . . ... ... .. 16,463,173 % 16 % 90,165 $ — § {39,851} % 50,330

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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VIRTUAL RADIOLOGIC CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands)

For the Years Ended
December 31,

2007 2006 2005

Cash flows from operating activitles
Netincome (I055) . . .« oo it e e e $ 3451 § (529) $ (1,465)

Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities

Non-controlling inferest . . . . . . ...t e (17) 25 (1,362)
Provision for doubtful accounts and sales allowance .. ... ................ 298 191 90
Depraciation and amortization . . . ..., . . oo e 2,488 1,351 586
Amortization of debtissuance costs . . . . . .. . . L i e 1,428 —_ —
Interest and discount amortization on short-term investment . . ... ... ...... .. - {67) (124)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment . . . ... ... oo 114 a0 —
Equity based compensation for independent contractor physicians . . .. . ....... 3,687 3,416 1,995
Equity based compensationforemployees .. ... ..... . ... o o o 686 115 —
Deferrad INCOMETAXES . . . .. v o o i et et i e e 197 64 —_
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Accounts receivable . . . ... . L e e (3,748) (4,648) (2,460)
Prepaid BXpeNSES . . . . v . v i it (577) (606) (627}
Currenttaxes receivable . . . . . . .. e e e e (1,995) —_ —
Other CUIENT ASS8L5 . . . . . . ot it ittt et m e e e s {301) {35) —
(1010 1=1 g L1 - - (23} (11) 162
Accounts payable . . . . . .. e 350 93 (427)
ACCTUSO BXDEMSES . . . . o o v et ittt e 1,315 3,870 1,730
Currenttaxes payable . . . . . ... ... e {608} 608 —
Other current liabilities . . . . . . . ... i e 130 32 —
Deterred rent . . . . . . o i e e e e e e e e e e (14) 18 108
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activites . ... ............... 6,861 3977 (1,794)
Cash flows from investing actlvities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment . . ... ..., ... ... oo (5,051) (3,511) {2,307)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment . . . . .. ... o ooy 1 —_ 1
Paymentsto acquire patents. . . . . .. .. .ottt e e e (53) (40} {180)
Purchase of shortterminvestment . . . . . . . ... . it it it e - — (4,968)
Proceeds from maturity of shortterm investment . . . . . ... ...... ... .. .. — 5,159 —
Restricted CaSN . . .. . i e e e - {400) {300)
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities . . . .. ............... (5,093) 1,208 (7,754}
Cash flows from financing activities
Payments onrelated party notes payable. . . . .. ... ... .. ..o — (200) (105)
Borrowings from revolving line of credit . . . . ... ... .. . oo — - 2,200
Repayments on revolving ine of credit . . .. ... ... ... . oo — — (2,675)
5 Payments on capital leases . . ... .. ... . ... o e (21) {292) (399)
; Proceeds from issuance of Series APreferred Stock . . . .. ... ... ... — — 13,382
i Paymentof offering CoStS. . . . .. .o oo e (2,139) {1,823) {1.473)
: ISSUANCE Of COMMON STOCK WAITANES . . . <+« o v v vcee e et e v ia e — - 218
Proceeds from issuance of common stock and common stock subscription . . ... ... 63,240 — 974
Proceeds from Stock Option 8xercises . . . . . . . .o i e e 1,238 —
Proceeds from repayment of common stock subscription receivable. . . ... ....... - — 30
Payments for the re-purchase of commonstock . . ... .. ... ... (10,010) — —
Proceeds from the re-issuance of commonstoek . . . .. .. ... ... o 10,010 — —
Excess tax benefit from exercises of stock options . . . . ... .. ... . . . ooy 4,780 — —
Proceeds fromtheissuance ofdebt . . . . ... ... ... .. . ... . . i, 41,000 — —
Paymentofdebt .. ... ... .. ... e (41,000) — —
Payment of debt issSUaNCe COSLS . . . . . . . . ..ol e (1,428) — _
Cashdividends paid . . . . . ... ... . . i s (39,909) - —
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities . . . . .. .............. 25,761 {2,315) 12,162
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents . ....................... 27,529 2,870 2,604
Cash and cash equivalents
Beginning of pariod . . . . .. e 5,958 3,088 484
Endofperiod . ... ... i e $ 33487 $ 5958 § 3,088

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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VIRTUAL RADIOLOGIC CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS—(CONTINUED)
(in thousands)

For the Years Ended
December 31,

2007 20086 2005

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow Information
Cashpaidforinterest. . . .. ... ... .. i i e e e $ 940% 30% 98
Cash paid for INComMe taXes . . . . - . .ottt e e e e e e e e e e e 1,298 412 —
Signiticant non-cash transactions
Property, plant and equipment acquired through capital leases . . .................... — — 260
Property, plant and equipment purchases included in accounts payable . . . . . .. e 11 68 M4
Property, plant and equipment purchases included in accrued expenses . ... .. P e 208 397 178
Capitalized costs included inaccounts payable . . . ................... e e 137 197 -
Capitalized costs included in acCrued @XPENSES . . . . . . . . .. .. 12 186 —
Intangible assets included in accrued @xpenses . . . . . . . .. ... e, 12 — —
Related party notes converted to common stock . . . . . ... .. L e e, — - 950
Accrued expenses convertedtocommon stock . .. ... ... ... — 105 —
Accrued interest converted to COMMON SIOCK . . . . . . . . . ., . e e e e — — 42
Common stock subscriptionreceivable . ... .. ... . . . L L e e —_ — 255
Change in par value of common stock due to re<incorporation . . . .. ......... .. ....... — — 51
Related party common stocktoberepurchased . . . . ......... ... ... .. .. . ... .... — — 255
Professional services compensation converted to payment of common stock subscription

receivable . . ... e e e e e e e — 200 396
Protessional services compensation converted to payment for option exercises . . . ... ...... 276 80 —_
Stock issuance costs reclassified to additional paid-incapital . . ... ............ ....... 4,211 — —
Accretion of Series A Preferred Stock . . . . . ... .. e e 10,127 11,437 28,181
Series A Preferred stock conversionto common stock . . . .. ... ... .. e 61,653 — —

The accompanying notes are an integral pant of these consolidated financial statements.
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VIRTUAL RADIOLOGIC CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007, 2006 AND 2005

1. Business Overview

Virtual Radiologic Corporation, or VRC, was formed through a merger between Virtual Radiologic
Consultants, Inc., a Minnesota corporation, and Virtual Radiologic’ Consultants, Inc., a Delaware
corporation, that was consummated on May 2, 2005. On January 1, 2006, Virtual Radioiogic
Consultants, Inc., or VRC Inc., a Delaware corporation and the surviving entity in the merger, changed its
name to VRC. Virtual Radiologic Professionals, LLC, or VRF, a Delaware limited liability company, is the
successor by merger to Virtual Radiologic Professionals, PLC, a Minnesota professional limited liability
company, which was the successor to Virtual Radiologic Consultants, LLC, a Delaware limited liability
company organized in 2001 to engage in the provision of teleradiology. VRP is the physician-owned
practice that contracts with the Company's affiliated radiclogists for the provision of their services to fulfill
customer contracts held by VRC or the other Affiliated Medical Practices (as defined below).

VRC, Inc. entered into a management agreement with VRP on July 1, 2004, to provide non-medical
services, staffing and facilities to VRP and to the licensed radiologists who contract with VRP. In
exchange, VRC, Inc. received a management fee in accordance with a management agreement
between VRC, Inc. and VRP. The management agreement's initial term expires on June 30, 2014, with an
option by both parties to renew through June 30, 2019. The above structure and related agreements
were established to facilitate compliance with the corporate practice of medicine laws of the various
states in which the Company (as defined below) operates.

On January 1, 2006, six new entities were formed including Virtual Radiologic Professionals of
California, PA.; Virtual Radiologic Professionals of Hlinois, PA. (subsequently merged into the Virtual
Radiologic Professionals of llinois, S.C.); Virtual Radiologic Professionals of Michigan, PA.
{(subsequently merged into Virtual Radiologic Professionals of Michigan, PC.); Virual Radiologic
Professionals of Minnesota, P A.; Virtual Radiologic Professionals of New York, P. A.; and Virtual
Radiologic Professionals of Texas, PA. (referred to collectively as “Professional Corporations™). Each of
these entities is a professional corporation with one stockholder, who is also an officer and a director of
VRC, and an owner of VRP. The Professional Corporations were formed as the Company’s business
expanded to facilitate compliance with the corporate practice of medicine laws in the states in which they
conduct business. VRP and the Professional Corporations are referred to collectively as the “Affiliated
Medical Practices.” Also on January 1, 2008, the terms of the management agreement were amended
as a result of VRP no longer holding customer contracts but continuing to contract with licensed
radiologists. VRP incurs all independent contractor compensation expense for the licensed radiologists
with whom it contracts. In addition, VAP incurs all expense related to the professional malpractice
insurance it purchases on behalf of those independent contractors. As a result of assignments effective
January 1, 2006, the Professional Corporations hold the customer contracts to provide teleradiology
services to customers in the states in which a general business corporation cannot contract for medical
services. All other customer contracts were transferred from VRP to VRC, an entity under common
control. The terms of the management agreements, as amended, provide that VRC and the Professional
Corporations reimburse VRP for their share of independent contractor compensation expense and
professional malpractice insurance expense. In addition, the management contracts stipulate that the
Affiliated Medical Practices are charged a management fee by VRC for providing non-medical services,
staffing, and facilities to the Affiliated Medical Practices. On an annual basis, VRC and the Affiliated
Medical Practices review and renegotiate fees payable under these management agreements.

In January 2007, the agreements for the provision of physician services that were effective for the
twelve months ended December 31, 2006 between VRP and VRC, and between VRP and each of the
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007, 2006 AND 2005

Professional Corparations, were amended to reflect an increase in the professional services fee charged
by VRP to VRC and to each of the Professional Corporations for the year ended December 31, 2006. The
increase in the fixed price per read was a result of higher than expected final read volume and the cost of
providing the Company’s physician services that was not contemplated when the original fees were
established. The change in the fees charged did not have a material effect on the Company’s
consolidated financial position or results of operations.

In January 2008, the agreements for the provision of physician services that were effective for the
twelve months ended December 31, 2007 between VRP and VRC, and between VRP and each of the
Professional Corporations, were amended to reflect a change in costs associated with the professional
services provided by VRP through its contractual relationships with VRC and the Professional
Carporations. The decrease in the fixed price per read was a result of lower than expected costs of VRP
providing professional services and medical malpractice insurance that were hot contemplated when
the original fees were established. Primarily as result of the change in the fees charged, the Company
recognized non-controlling interest income of $2.1 million and $17,000 for the three and twelve months
ended December 31, 2007, respectively.

Virtual Radiologic Limited, or VRL, was formed on November 23, 2007 and is located in London,
England. VAL is a wholly owned and consolidated subsidiary of VRC and was estabilished to facilitate the
possible expansion of the Company’s (as defined below) business by providing teleradiology services
and products to customers located outside of the United States. As of December 31, 2007, VRL had one
employee and an immaterial amount of operating assets and liabilities, which are included in the
consclidated financial statements. VRL’s functional currency is the British Pound.

VRC, VRL and the Affiliated Medical Practices are collectively referred to herein as the “Company.”

The Company is invalved in the application of various convergent technologies that allow
radiologists to remotely diagnose patients and enhance the overall preductivity of the radiology
profession through a distributed diagnostic network that has been developed by the Company and is
integrated into its nationwide virtual private network. The Company serves radiology practices,
hospitals, clinics and diagnostic imaging centers by providing diagnhostic image interpretations, or
reads, 24 hours a day, 365 days a year. The Company’s distributed operating model provides its team of
American Board of Radiology-certified radiclogists with the flexibility to choose the location from which
they work, primarily within the United States, and allows the Company to serve customers |located
throughout the country. The Company's services include both preliminary reads, which are performed
for emergent care purposes, and final reads, which are performed for both emergent and non-emergent
care. The Company provides these services through a scalable communications network incorporating
encrypted broadband internet connections and proprietary workflow management software.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Principles of Consolidation and Basis of Presentation

The Company consoelidates its financial resuits in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards
Board, or FASB, Interpretation No. 46R, Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, or FIN 46R, which
requires a primary beneficiary to consolidate entities determined to be variable interest entities, or VIEs.
The Company has determined that the Affiiated Medical Practices are VIEs and that VRC is the primary
beneficiary of such VIEs, as defined by FIN 46R. The Affiliated Medica! Practices were created as the
Company's business expanded for the purpose of facilitating compliance with corporate practice of
medicine laws in the various states in which VRC operates. The management of VRC was involved
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significantly in the design and creation of the VIEs and, with the exception of rendering medical
judgments, holds significant influence over their continuing operations. Although VRC holds no legal
ownership in the VIEs, as a result of the pricing structure inherent in the management agreements that
exist between the entities, VRC will absorb a majority of the VIEs expected future losses and receive a
maijority of the VIEs expected residual returns. As such, the Company has concluded that VRC is
required to consolidate the VIEs. As of December 31, 2007, VRC has funded losses of the VIEs totaling
$7.1 miltion and expects to continue to fund the majority of the losses for the foreseeable future. VRC will
only receive residual returns up to the amount of previously recognized losses.

As of and for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2008, the financial statements of VRC have
been presented on a consolidated basis to include its variable interests in the Affiliated Medical
Practices. Accordingly, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2005, the financial statements of VRC
have been presented on a consolidated basis to include its variable interest in VAP In addition, as of and
for the year ended December 31, 2007, VRC consolidated VRL, VRC's wholly owned subsidiary.

The effect of the VIEs' consolidation on the Company's consolidated balance sheet at
December 31, 2007, was an increase in the Company's assets and liabilities of approximately
$9.8 million and $4.9 million, respectively. At December 31, 2006, as a result of consolidating the VIEs,
the Company’s assets and liabilities increased by approximately $6.1 million and $4.2 million,
respectively. The liabilities of the VIEs consolidated by the Company do not represent additional claims
on the Company’s general assets; rather they represent claims against the specific assets of the VIEs.
Likewise, the assets of the VIEs consolidated by the Company do not represent additional assets
available to satisfy claims against the Company’s general assets. For the year ended December 31,
2007, the revenue of the VIEs represented approximately 46%, or $39.8 million of the consolidated
revenue of the Company. For the year ended December 31, 2008, the revenue of the VIEs represented
approximately 42%, or $22.9 million, of the consolidated revenue of the Company. For the year ended
December 31, 2005, the revenue of the VIEs represented 100% of the consolidated revenue of the
Company. Through consolidation, the Company recognizes all net losses of each VIE in excess of the
equity of that VIE. The Company recognizes net earnings of each VIE only to the extent it is recovering
losses previously recognized with respect to that VIE. Earnings of each VIE in excess of the Company's
previously recognized losses with respect to that VIE are eliminated from the Company’s earnings and
are attributed to the respective equity owners of that VIE by recording such eamings as non-controlling
interest on the Company’s consolidated financial statements. During the year ended December 31,
2005, the Company had only one VIE, which experienced individual net losses that changed the VIE’s
equity position to a net deficit. As a result, the Company recognized non-controlling interest income of
approximately $1.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2005. During 2006, additional VIEs were
formed and for the year ended December 31, 2006, one of those VIEs experienced individual net income
that resulted in a non-controlling interest expense relating to that VIE of approximately $25,000. During
the year ended December 31, 2007, one of the VIEs experienced net losses that decreased its’ positive
equity position, but did not exceed it. As a resuit, the Company recognized non-controlling interest
income of approximately $17,000 relating to losses of that Affiliated Medical Practice.

Consolidated financial statements and the related footnote information presented as of and for the
year ended December 31, 2005, represent the consolidated operations of VRC Inc. and VRE The
consolidated financial statements and the related footnote information presented as of and for the years
ended December 31, 2006 and 2007, represent the consolidated operations of the Company.

75




VIRTUAL RADIOLOGIC CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007, 2006 AND 2005

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements. Estimates also
affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could
differ materially from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or
less at the time of acquisition.

Restricted Cash

Under the terms of its malpractice insurance policy, the Company is required to maintain, on deposit
with a bank, and restricted as to its use, $700,000 in the event multiple malpractice claims are filed.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost, less accumulated depreciation and amortization.
Depreciation and arnortization of property and equipment are computed using the straight-line method
over the estimated useful life of the asset. Useful lives range from thres to 15 years. Leasehold
improvements are amortized over the shorter of the asset life or the lease term. Expenditures for
maintenance, repairs, and minor renewals and betterments that do not improve or extend the life of the
respective assets are expensed as incurred. All other expenditures for renewals and betterments are
capitalized and depreciated over the estimated useful life of the asset. The assets and related
depreciation accounts are adjusted for property retirements and disposals with any resulting gain or loss
included in current period operations.

The Company also capitalizes internally developed software costs in accordance with the
Statement of Position 98-1, Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software Developed or Obtained for
Internal Use, or SOP 98-1. SOP 98-1 requires that costs incurred during the application development
stage be capitalized and amortized over the useful life once the assets are placed in service. These costs
primarily include compensation costs for employees who are involved in the application development
stage and direct costs of materials utilized during application development. Generally, the Company
amortizes these costs over three years uniess a shorter life is deemed appropriate based on the
remaining useful life of the asset. When the Company enters the development stage for a new
application, management reviews the remaining useful life of previously developed applications to
determine if an adjustment to the amortization period is warranted. The Company has capitalized costs
of approximately $554,000 and $164,000 in accordance with the provisions of SOP 98-1 as of
December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

The Company also capitalizes internally developed software costs on products which are intended
to be marketed to outside parties in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 86: Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software to be Sold, Leased, or Otherwise Marketed, or
SFAS No. 86. SFAS No. 86 requires that costs incurred during the research and development phase,
prior to the product reaching technaological feasibility, be expensed. Once the product has reached
technological feasibility, all production costs should be capitalized and reported at the lower of
unamortized cost or net realizable value. Capitalized costs are amortized on a straight-line basis over the
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remaining useful life of the product. The Company has capitalized costs of approximately $230,000 and
zero in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 86 as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Intangible Assets and Other Long-Lived Assets

Intangible assets include patents and deferred financing costs. Patent application costs are being
amortized on a straight-line basis over 15 years, which approximates their respective economic lives.
The Company believes the straight-line method of amortization for patent application costs allocates the
cost to earnings in proportion to the amount of economic benefit. Debt issuance costs were amortized
using the effective interest method over the life of the debt.

The Company regularly evaluates the carrying value of long-lived assets for events or changes in
circumstances that indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable or that the remaining
estimated useful life should be changed. An impairment loss is recognized when the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds the anticipated future undiscounted cash flows expected to result from the use of the
asset and its eventual disposition. The amount of the impairment loss to be recorded, if any, is calculated
by the excess of the asset's carrying value over its fair value.

Operating Leases

The Company leases various office space under operating leases. Certain lease arrangements
contain rent escalation clauses for which the lease expenses are recognized on a straight-line basis over
the terms of the leases. Rent expense that is recognized but not yet paid is included in deferred rent on
the consalidated balance sheets. ‘

Revenue Recognition and Trade Accounts Recelvable

The Company sells its teleradiology services to radiology practices, hospitals, clinics and
diagnostic imaging centers. Revenue is recognized in the period when a diagnostic reading or service
has been completed and when collection is reasonably assured. No future performance obligations
exist once the diagnostic reading or service has been completed. The prices related to these
teleradiology services are fixed or determinable prior to the performance of the service. Trade accounts
receivable do not bear interest.

The Company records an allowance for doubtful accounts that the Company’'s management
estimates to be sufficient to absorb future losses due to accounts that are potentially uncollectible. The
allowance is based on the Company’s historical experience, the current aging of past due accounts, the
financial condition of the customer, and the general economic conditions of its marketplace. Actual
results could differ materially from these estimates resulting in an increase in the allowance for doubtful
accounts and the corresponding provision for bad debt expense in future periods.

The Company records an allowance for sales credits that the Company’s management estimates to
be adequate to cover future sales credits granted, which primarily relate to maintaining customer
satisfaction with the Company’s services. The allowance is based on the Company’s historical
experience related to sales credits granted. Actual results could differ materially from these estimates
resulting in an increase in the allowance for sales credits and the corresponding provision for sales
credits.
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Income Taxes

VRC, as a corporation, and the Professiohal Corporations, as sole owner professional liability
corporations, recoghize income taxes under the asset and liability method. As such, deferred taxes are
based on the temporary differences, if any, between the financial statement and tax bases of assets and
liabilities that will result in future taxable or deductible amounts. The deferred taxes are determined using
the enacted tax rates that are expected to apply when the temporary differences reverse. Income tax
expense is the tax payable for the period plus the change during the period in deferred income taxes.
Valuation allowances are established when necessary to reduce deferred tax assets to the amount
expected to be realized.

VRP is a limited liability company, which elects to be taxed as a partnership, and as such is not
subject to federal income taxes. Rather, the owners are subject to federal income taxation based on their
respective allocation of VRP’s net taxable income or loss on a cash basis. VRP does not record any
current or deferred assets, liabilities, or expenses related to federal income taxes. However, losses
generated by the Affiliated Medical Practices that are funded by VRC result in temporary differences
between VRC's bock and tax basis of accounting. The temporary differences will reverse in future
periods to the extent those losses are able to be recovered by VRC.

As previously noted, the Company consolidates its financial results under the provisions of FIN 46R.
For income tax purposes, howaver, the Company is not considered a consolidated entity. As a result,
income generated by the Affiliated Medical Practices, as well as any losses the Affiliated Medical
Practices recognize, are excluded from VRC'’s calculation of income tax liability. In addition, losses
generated by the Affiliated Medical Practices that are recognized by VRC result in temporary differences
between VRC's book and tax bases of accounting. These temporary differences will reverse in future
periods to the extent those losses are able to be recovered by VRC.

Developing a provision for income taxes, including the effective tax rate and the analysis of potential
tax exposure items, if any, requires significant judgment and expertise in federal, state and foreign
income tax faws, regulations and strategies, including the determination of deferred tax assets. The
Company's judgment and tax strategies are subject to audit by various taxing authorities. While the
Company believes it has provided adequately for its income tax liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements, adverse determinations by these taxing authorities could have a material adverse effect on
the consolidated financial condition, results of operations, and/or cash flows of the Company.

Professional Services Expense

Professional services expense consists primarily of the fees the Company pays to its independent
contractor physicians and non-cash stock-based compensation expense related to those independent
contractor physicians. The Company’s physicians are independent contractors and it compensates
them using a formula that includes a base level of compensation and additional bonus compensation,
which is generally based on the number of hours worked and the number and types of reads performed.
The Company recognizes professional services expense in the month in which the services were
performed. The Company also includes expenses related to medical liability insurance in protessional
services expense, which are expensed over the life of the insurance policy on a straight-line basis.

Total non-cash stock-based compensation related to independent contractor physicians, which is
included in professional services expense, was approximately $3.7 million, $3.4 million and $2.0 million
for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.
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Sales, General and Administrative Expenses

Sales, general and administrative expenses are generally comprised of employee compensation
expenses associated with the Company’s distributed diagnostic network, promotional and advertising
expenses, and other operating expenses. The Company recognizes these expenses when incurred.

Advertising expense for the Company, which is included in sales, general and administrative
expenses, was $244,000, $307,000, and $144,000 for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and
2005, respectively. :

Stock-Based Compensation

On January 1, 2008, the Company adopted the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 123 (Revised 2004), Share-Based Payment, or SFAS No. 123R, using the prospective
application method, to account for stock-based compensation expense associated with the issuance of
stock options to employees and directors on or after January 1, 2006. The unvested compensation costs
at January 1, 2006, which relate to grants of options that occurred prior to the date of adoption of SFAS
No. 123R, will continue to be accounted for under Accounting Principies Board No. 25, Accounting for
Stock Issued to Employees, or APB No. 25. SFAS No. 123R requires all entities to recognize
compensation expense in an amount equal to the fair value of share-based payments computed at the
date of grant. The fair value of all employee and director stock option awards is expensed in the
consolidated statements of operations over the related vesting period of the options. The Company
calculated the fair value on the date of grant using a Black-Scholes model. For the years ended
December 31, 2007 and 20086, stock-based compensation expense related to employees was $686,000
and $115,000, respectively. This expense is included in sales, general and administrative expenses.

For all options issued prior to January 1, 2008, in accordance with the provisions of APB No. 25,
compensation costs for stock options granted to employees were measured at the excess, if any, of the
value of the Company's stock at the date of the grant over the amount an employee paid to acquire the
stock. The table which follows provides the pro-forma disclosures required in accordance with the
disclosure provisions of SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, as if the fair value
method had been applied in the periods presented. The Company calculated the fair value using a
Black-Scholes model using the minimum value method. If the Company had adopted the fair value
based accounting method to account for the cost of stock option grants occurring prior to January 1,
2006, and charged compensation cost against income over the vesting period based on the fair value of
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options at the date of grant, the Company’s net loss in the periods presented would have been increased
as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005

(in thousands, except per
share data)

Net income (loss), asreported. . .. ............ ... $ 3451 § (529) $ (1,465)
Less:

Total employee stock-based compensation expense determined

under the fair value-based method, net of related tax effects . . . 33 63 75

Pro forma netincome (loss) ............ .. ... $ 3418 $ (592) $ (1,540)
Pro forma loss per common share:

Asreported . . . ... L e e $ (231) $ (1.80) $ (474

ProfOrma . . . e e e e (2.31) (1.81) (4.75)

The Company also records stock-based compensation expense in connection with any grant of
stock options to independent contractor physicians. The Company calculates the stock-based
compensation expense associated with these grants in accordance with Emerging Issues Task Force
Issue No. 96-18, Accounting for Equity Instruments That Are Issued to Other Than Employees for
Acquiring, or in Conjunction with Selling, Good or Services, or EITF Issue No. 96-18, by determining the
fair value using a Black-Scholes model. EITF Issue No. 96-18 requires that stock instruments issued to
these independent contractor physicians be recorded at their fair value at the date the stock instruments
were issued and adjusted to their then current fair value in every subsequent reporting period thereafter
until the stock instruments are fully vested or forfeited. Total non-cash equity-based compensation for
independent contractor physicians, which is included in professional services expense, was
approximately $3.7 million, $3.4 million and $2.0 million for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006
and 2005, respectively.

Accounting for Series A Preferred Stock

In June 2005, the Company began recording the current estimated fair value of its Series A
Cumulative Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock, or Series A Preferred Stock on a quarterly basis
based on the fair market value of that stock as determined by the Company's management and / or the
Company’s Board of Directors. In accordance with Accounting Series Release No. 268, Preserntation in
Financial Statements of “Redeemable Preferred Stocks™ and EITF Abstracts, Topic D-98, Classification
and Measurement of Redeemable Securities, the Company records changes in the current fair value of
its Series A Preferred Stock in the consolidated statements of changes in stockholders’ equity
(deficiency) as accretion of Series A Cumulative Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock and as
additional paid-in capital, and in the consolidated statements of operations as Series A Cumulative
Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock accretion.

Upon completion of the Company'’s initial public offering in November 2007, all outstanding shares
of Series A Preferred Stock were automatically converted into common stock and the rights of the
holders of the Series A Preferred Stock to exercise redemption rights were terminated. As of
December 31, 2007, there were no shares of Series A Preferred Stock outstanding.
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Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially expose the Company to concentration of credit risk consist
primarily of cash and cash equivalents and accounts receivable. The Company maintains its cash and
cash equivalents with high quality credit institutions. At times, such amounts may be in excess of insured
amounts.

Credit risk related to accounts receivable is largely mitigated by the Company’s credit evaluation
process and the reascnably short collection terms of its receivables. Management makes judgments as
to its ability to collect outstanding receivables based upon the Company's historical collections
experience, the current aging of past due accounts, the financial condition of its customers and the
general economic conditions of its marketplace, and has established an allowance for doubtful
accounts based on that judgment.

Fair Vaiue Financial Instruments

The Company’s financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents and short-term trade
receivables and payables for which current carrying amounts approximate fair market value.
© Additionally, the borrowing rates currently available to the Company approximate the fair market vatue
for debt agreements with similar terms and average maturities.

Recent Accounting Pronouncemenis

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements, or SFAS No. 157.
This standard clarified the principle that fair value should be based on the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing an asset or liability. Additionally, it establishes a fair value hierarchy
that prioritizes the information used to develop those assumptions. On February 12, 2008 the FASB
issued FASB Staff Position, or FSP. FAS 157-2, Effective Date of FASB Statement No. 157 or FSP
FAS 157-2. FSP FAS 157-2 defers the implementation of SFAS No. 157 for certain nonfinancial assets
and nonfinancial liabilities. The remainder of SFAS No. 157 is effective, for the Company, beginning in
the first quarter of fiscal year 2009. The aspects that have been deferred by FSP FAS 157-2 will be
effective for the Company beginning in the first quarter of fiscal year 2010. The Company is currently
evaluating the impact of this statement. The Company does not believe the adoption of SFAS No. 157
will have a material impact on its consolidated results of operations or financial position.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 158, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities, or SFAS No. 159. This standard provides companies with an option to report
selected financial assets and liabilities at fair value and establishes presentation and disclosure
requirements designed to facilitate comparisons between companies that choose different
measurement attributes for similar types of assets and liabilities. SFAS No. 159 is effective as of the
beginning of an entity's first fiscal year beginning after November 15, 2007. The Company has not
elected the fair value option for eligible items that existed as of January 1, 2008.

in December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141 (revised 2007), Business Combinations, or SFAS
No. 141R. SFAS No. 141R changes the accounting for business combinations, including the
measurement of acquirer shares issued in consideration for a business combination, the recognition of
contingent consideration, the accounting for contingencies, the recognition of capitalized in-process
research and development, the accounting for acquisition-related restructuring cost accruals, the
treatment of acquisition related transaction costs and the recognition of changes in the acquirer's
income tax valuation allowance and income tax uncertainties. SFAS No. 141R applies prospectively to
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husiness combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual
reporting pericd beginning on or after December 15, 2008, and interim periods within those fiscal years.
Early application of this statement is prohibited. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of this
statement.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160, Nonconirolling Interests in Consolidated
Financial Statements, an amendment of ARB 51, or SFAS No. 160, which changes the accounting and
reporting for minority interests. Minority interests will be recharacterized as noncontrolling interests and
will be reported as a component of equity separate from the parent's equity, and purchases or sales of
equity interests that do not result in a change in control will be accounted for as equity transactions. In
addition, net income attributable to the noncontrolling interest will be included in consolidated net
income on the face of the income statement and, upon a loss of control, the interest sold, as well as any
interest retained, will be recorded at fair value with any gain or loss recognized in earnings. SFAS
No. 160 is effective for fiscal years beginning on or after December 15, 2008. The statement shall be
applied prospectively as of the beginning of the fiscai year in which it is initially applied, except for the
presentation and disclosure requirement which shall be applied reirospactively for all periods
presented. Early adoption of this statement is prohibited. The Company is currently evaluating the
impact of this statement.

3. Selected Consolidated Financilal Statement Information
Accounts Receivable, Net

As of
December 31,
2007 2006
{in thousands)
ACCOUNIS recaivable . . . .. oo e e $ 12829 $ 9,351
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts . . ........ ... .. ... ... ..., 328 304
Less: Allowance forsalescredits ............ ... ... ... .. .. ... 15 11
Accounts receivable, net . . . ... ... e e $ 12486 $ 9,036
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Beginning Balance, January 1,2005. . ................
Charged (credited) to costs and expenses .............
Deductions/Write-offs . . . . ... ... .. ... i

Ending Balance, December 31,2005 .................

Beginning Balance, January 1,2006 .. . ...............
Charged (credited) to costs and expenses .. ...........
Deductions/Write-offs . . ... ... ... .. o i e e

Ending Balance, December 31,2006 . ................

Beginning Balance, January 1, 2007 ... ...............
Charged (credited) to costs and expenses . ............
Deductions/Write-offs . . . . ... ... ... .. o

Ending Balance, December 31,2007 .................

Property, Plant and Equipment, Net

Equipment .. ... e
SOMWANE . . . . it e e e
Furniture and fixtures . . . ... ... ... oo i e
Leasehold improvements . .. ....... ... ...
Assets not yet placed inservice . . ...... ... ..o

Total property, plant and equipment . .. ...............
Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization. . . . . ..

Property, plant and equipment, net. . .................

$1.3 million and $550,000, respectively.
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Allowance for Allowance for
Doubtful Accounts Sales Credits

(in thousands)

200 $% —

78 10

(10) —

268 $ 10

268 $ 10

191 12
(155) (11)
304 $ 11

304 % 11

98 202
{74) (198)

328 $ 15

As of
December 31,
2007 2006
(in thousands)

6,390 $ 4,330
3,575 1,855
1,648 1,198
345 268

141 102
12,099 7,753
4,086 2,049
8013 § 5,704

Depreciation expense and amortization related to the property, plant and equipment of the
Company for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, was approximately $2.5 million,
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Intangible Assets, Net

As of As of
December 31, 2007 December 31, 2006
Carrying Accumulated Carrying Accumulated

Amount Amortization Net Amount Amortization Net
(in thousands)

Patent applicationcosts . ... $ 284 § 32 $ 252 § 220 % 16 $ 204
Deferred financing costs. . . . — — — 66 66 —
Inangible assets, net . .. ... $ 284 % 32§ 252 $ 286 $ 82 & 204

Total amortization expense related to intangible assets for the years ended December 31, 2007,
2006 and 2005, was $16,000, $32,000 and $36,000, respectively. Amortization of deferred debt issuance
costs was approximately $1.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2007 and is included in interest
expense.

As of December 31, 2007, future estimated amortization expenses related to intangible assets were:

(in thousands)

2008 . L e e e e e e e e $ 19
2009 . . .. e e e e 19
1 20
121 T 20
Therealter . . . . ..o e e e e e e e e 174

$ 252

This future amortization expense is an estimate. Actual amounts may change these estimated
amounts due to additional intangible asset acquisitions, potential impairment, accelerated amortization
or other events.

Other Accrued Expenses

As of
December 31,

2007 2006

(in thousands)
Professional feBs .. .. ... e e $ 271 % 313
Property, plantand equipment . . . .. ... . i 208 397
Licensing fees ... ..... ... . i e e 231 171
Medical malpractice iability . ... ...... ... .. ... . . e 25 100
Initial public offeringcosts . . .. ... ... ... 112 186
SEVEIANCE COSES . . . . i ittt et e 15 181
Marketing costs . ...... .. . .. . e e 39 160
Medical claims . . ......... ... i e 129 56
Other . . e e 243 266
Total other accrued eXpensSes . . .. .. ... ..ot ii i i $ 1273 $ 1,830
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4, Financing Arrangements

in August 2004, the Company entered into a revolving credit agreement, which provided for a
revolving loan of up to $2.0 million limited to 85% of the Company’s outstanding accounts receivable.
This revolving credit agreement bore interest at the prime rate plus 2.00% and was collateralized by
substantially all of the Company’s assets. In December 2006, the Company terminated this revolving
credit facility with Associated Commercial Finance, Inc. and entered into a new revolving credit
agreement with Associated Bank, National Association. Pursuant to the terms of the revolving credit
facility, up to $2.0 million was available to the Company provided that such amount did not exceed 80%
of the Company's outstanding accounts receivable. Any amounts outstanding under this revolving
credit facility incurred interest at a rate equal to the greater of 5% or the prime rate (8.25% at June 30,
2007). The Company was required to pay a non-use fee for any unborrowed amounts at a rate of 0.25%
per annum, Under the terms of this revoived credit facility, the Company was subject to, among other
things, restrictions on incurring additional debt, liens and encumbrances. This revolving credit facility
was terminated in August 2007.

The Company entered into a credit agreement, dated as of August 29, 2007, among the Company,
the guarantors named therein, the lenders from time to time party thereto and NewStar Financial, Inc., as
administrative agent, or the Senior Credit Facility, on August 28, 2007 that was comprised of a
$4.0 million revolver and a $41.0 million term loan. The proceeds of the term loan after the payment of
fees and expenses incurred in connection with the Senior Credit Facility, together with cash on hand,
were used to fund a one-time dividend of $3.00 per share for common and preferred stockholders that
was declared by the Board of Directors on August 10, 2007. On September 5, 2007, the Company paid
an aggregate of approximately $39.9 million in respect of the dividend of $3.00 per share paid to all of its
stockholders of record as of August 29, 2007, including preferred stockholders. On Novemnber 20, 2007,
the Company used approximately $43.4 million of the net proceeds to repay outstanding debt under the
Senior Credit Facility, including interest accrued thereon and fees and expenses incurred in connection
therewith. In connection with the repayment, the Company terminated the Senior Credit Facility on
November 20, 2007. No prepayment penalties were incurred in connection with the termination of the
Senior Credit Facility. As a result of early repayment of the term loan accelerated amortization of
approximately $1.4 million related to deferred debt issuance costs was recognized in interest expense
for the year ended December 31, 2007.

5. Stockholders’ Equity (Deficiency)

On May 2, 2005, the par value of the common stock was changed from $.01 to $.001 when the
Company was re-incorporated in the State of Delaware.

During April 2007, certain current and former members of the Company’s management exercised
options to purchase common stock in the Company and concurrently sold those shares of common
stock to Generation Members Fund Il LP and Generation Capital Partners VRC LP. Although no
obligation existed, in order to facilitate the flow of funds related to this transaction, the Company received
payment for the shares to be purchased, withheld the exercise price for such shares and the applicable
taxes, and distributed the net proceeds to the applicable selling stockholders, which effectively resulted
in these stock option awards being settled for cash. The transaction was accounted for as a repurchase
of equity awards under the provisions of SFAS No. 123R and FASB Staff Position FAS123(R)-6, Technical
Corrections of FASB Statement No. 123(R). As such the cash transferred to repurchase these shares was
recorded as common stock re-purchased and common stock re-issued in additional paid in capital in
the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity (Deficiency).
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As described above, the proceeds of the term loan under the Senior Credit Facility, after the
payment of fees and expenses incurred in connection with the Senior Credit Facility, together with cash
on hand, were used to fund a one-time dividend of $3.00 per share that was declared by the Company's
Board of Directors on August 10, 2007. On September 5, 2007, the Company paid an aggregate of
approximately $39.9 million in respect of a dividend of $3.00 per share to all of its stockholders of record
as of August 29, 2007, which included approximately $2.7 million in accumulated dividends paid to the
holders of the Company’s Series A Preferred Stock, approximately $10.9 million in participating
dividends paid to the holders of the Company's Series A Preferred Stock and approximately
$26.3 miflion in dividends paid to the holders of the Company’s common stock.

6. Preferred Stock

On May 2, 2005, the Company closed on a sale of shares of its Series A Preferred Stock. Total
proceeds from the sale were $13.6 million, including $218,000 assigned to the fair value of warrants to
purchase common stock, and excluding $1.5 million in issuance costs related to the sale.

In connection with the preparation of the Company’s financial statements as of December 31, 2008
and 2005, the Company’s Board of Directars established what it believed to be a fair market value of the
Company’s Series A Preferred Stock. This determination was based on a variety of factors, including
consideration of the Company’s most recent financial performance and future financial projections,
consideration of the Company’s position in the industry relative to its competitors, consideration of
external factors impacting the value of the Company in its marketptace, consideration of the stock
volatility of comparable companies in its industry, general ecanomic trends and the application of
various valuation methodologies.

Changes in the current market value of the Series A Cumulative Redeemable Convertible Preferred
Stock were recorded in the consolidated statements of changes in stockholders’ equity (deficiency) as
additional paid-in capital and accretion of Series A Cumulative Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock
and in the consolidated statements of operations as Series A Cumulative Redeemable Convertible
Preferred Stock accretion.

Each share of Series A Preferred Stock was automatically converted into shares of the Company's
common stock on November 20, 2007, upon the closing of the initial public offering of the Company’s
common stock, pursuant to a registration statement on Form $-1 at a public offering price of $17.00 per
share. As a result, dividends will no longer accumulate, and previously accumulated, undeclared and
unpaid dividends are no longer payable by the Company.

Warrant

In conjunction with the sale of the Series A Preferred Stock, a warrant 1o purchase 72,533 shares of
common stock (equal to 2% of the total shares of Series A Preferred Stock sold) was issued to the
placement agent. The warrant had a five year life, expiring on May 2, 2010, and allowed the holder to
purchase cornmon stock of the Company at an exercise price of $0.01 per share. The fair value of the
warrant was determined by the Company using the Black-Scholes model.

In June 2007, the placement agent exercised the warrant and purchased 72,533 shares of the
Company's common stock.
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7. Stock Purchase Plan and Stock Option Plan

In January 2004, the Company’s Board of Directors adopted the Stock Purchase Plan. The Stock
Purchase Plan allows certain officers, employees and affiliated independent contractor physicians the
opportunity to purchase shares of the Company’s common stock at fair market value. Also, in January
2004, the Company’s Board of Directors adopted the Equity Incentive Plan (the “Plan”). The Plan
provides for the issuance of incentive stock options to selected officers, employees and affiliated
independent contractor physicians of the Company. The total number of options to purchase shares of
the Company’s common stock authorized and reserved for issuance under the Plan is 4,000,000. The
option exercise price is not less than the estimated fair market value of the Company's common stock on
the date of grant as determined by the Company’s Board of Directors. Options granted under the Plan
have a maximum duration of ten years and vest in a manner as the Board of Directors in each instance
approves, typically over five years with 60% vesting in the third year, 80% vesting in the fourth year and
100% vesting in the fifth year. On September 7, 2007, the Company’s Board of Directors adopted the
Amended and Restated Equity Incentive Plan (the "“VRC Incentive Plan”) to consolidate and replace,
upon effectiveness of the Company’s initial public offering, equity-based plans previously maintained by
the Company including the Stock Purchase Plan and the Pian. The primary purpose of combining these
plans was to ease the administrative burden associated with administering the Company’s equity-based
compensation program. The VRC Incentive Plan became effective on November 14, 2007 and increased
the total shares authorized and reserved for future issuance to 5,475,000 shares. The VRC Incentive Plan
provides for the grant of incentive stock options, nonqualified stock options, stock appreciation rights
and restricted stock to the Company’s officers, employees and independent contractors. As of
December 31, 2007, there were 2,284,906 options outstanding, which in¢ludes 120,000 options granted
in May 2007 to members of the Company's Board of Directors that were not issued pursuant to the Plan.
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Stock option activity for employees, directors and independent contractor physicians during the
years ended December 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007, was as follows:

Welghted
Options Average Exercise Prices

Available Exercise Price Per Share

for Grant Outstanding Per Share Ranging From
Balance at January 1, 2005 . ... .. 980,050 3,019950 §$ 1.3
Granted .................... (393,250) 393,250 513  $3.75- $5.50
Forfeited . .. ................. 29,910 (29,910) 2.46 2.00 - 5.50 .
Balance at December 31, 2005... 616,710 3,383,290 1.74
Exercisable at December 31, 2005 1,500,092 1.00 1.00 - 1.00
Balance at January 1, 2006 . ..... 616,710 3383290 $ 1.74
Granted .................... {(138,000) 139,000 12.00 $12.00
Exercised ................... — (80,000) 1.00 1.00
Forfeited . . . ................. 65,140 (65,140) 3.61 2,00 - 12.00
Balance at December 31, 2006... 542,850 3,377,150 2.15
Exercisable at December 31, 2006 2,006,088 1.10 1.00-4.75
Balance at January 1, 2007 ... ... 542,850 3,377,150 % 2.15
Plan Adoption @ .. ........... 906,660 —
Granted @ . ..., ... ..., ..... (993,440) 1,133,440 1450 $12.00 - $23.00
Exercised ................... — (2,045,163) 1.19 1,00 - 12.00
Forfeited @ . .. . .............. 160,521 {180,521) 4.30 1.00 - 12.00
Balance at December 31, 2007... 616,591 2,284,906 8.96
Exercisable at December 31, 2007 516,571 272

M Includes the additional 1,475,000 shares authorized for issuance under the VRC Incentive Plan
reduced by the 568,340 shares issued in 2004 under the Stock Purchase Plan.

2} The number of options outstanding includes 140,000 options granted in May 2007 to members of
the Company’s Board of Directors that were not issued pursuant to the Plan.

@ The number of options outstanding includes 20,000 options forfeited by Domingo Gallardo, who
resigned from the Board of Directors an October 29, 2007. These options were not issued pursuant
to the Plan.
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The following table summarizes information about stock options granted during the years between
January 1, 2005 and December 31, 2007:

Number of Shares Exercise Estimated Fair Value

Grant Date Subject to Options Price of Common Stock

Jun@22,20058 .................... 25000 $ 375 $ 375
June 30,2005 . ... ... Lo 135,350 4,75 3.75
October21,2005.................. 232,900 5.50 4.50
March 30,2006 ................... 106,000 12.00 11.02
April 18,2006 ............... ... .. 8,000 12.00 11.02
July1,2006....... ... 25,000 12.00 11.92
Aprl 12,2007 . ....... ... ... 208,000 1200 12.00
May9,2007............c.cvnton 186,650 12.00 12.00
May 29,2007 .........0ccnuunnnn L. 200,000 12.00 12.00
June 20,2007 ................. ... 23,640 19.23 19.23
November 14,2007 ................ 500,150 17.00 17.00
November 26,2007 ................ 15,000 23.00 23.00

Prior to the Company’s shares trading on the NASDAQ Global Market, which trading commenced
on November 15, 2007, the exercise prices of all options were determined by the Company's Board of
Directors, based on the estimated fair value of the common stock on the date of grant. For all stock
options granted subsequent to November 14, 2007, the Company uses the closing price of its common
stock on the NASDAQ Global Market on the date of grant to determine the exercise price of such options.
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The following tables summarize information .about stock options outstanding as of December 31,
2007 and 2008, respectively:

As of December 31, 2007

Options Qutstanding Options Exercisable

Weighted

Average
Remaining Weighted Welghted
Contractual Average Average
Range of Number Life (in  Exercise Number Exercise

Exercise Prices Outstanding "  Years} Price Exercisable Price

$100-$200 ............. 723,049 67% 179 469471 $ 1.69
375- 550 ............. 348,100 4.7 511 150 4.75
12.00- 1200 ............. 674,967 8.0 12.00 36,600 12.00
17.00- 1923 ............. 523,790 6.8 17.10 10,350 17.00
23.00- 2300 ............. 15,000 6.9 23.00 — —
2,284,906 6.8 896 516,571 2.72

" The number of options outstanding includes 120,000 options granted in May 2007 to members of
the Company’s Board of Directors that were not issued pursuant to the Plan.

As of December 31, 2006

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted
Average
Remaining Welghted Welghted
Contractual Average Average
Range of Number Life (in Exercise Number Exercise
Exercise Prices Outstanding Years) Price Exercisable Price
$100-$200........... 2,873,400 70 § 130 2002755 $ 1.09
375- 550........... 368,200 5.7 5.11 3,333 475
1200- 1200........... 135,550 6.3 12.00 — -
3,377,150 6.8 2.15 2,006,088 1.10

Stock-Based Compensation—Employees

For the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, the Company issued 981,600, 100,000
and 124,500 options, respectively, 1o certain employees and directors. The Company adopted the
provisions of SFAS No. 123R effective January 1, 2006, and as a result did not record stock-based
compensation expense related to these employee and director options for the year ended December 31,
2005. The Company recorded $686,187 and $115,448 for the years ended December 31, 2007 and

2006, respectively, in stock-based compensation expense related to these employee and director
options.
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The Company utilizes a Black-Scholes option pricing model to value stock options granted to
employees, which is an acceptable model to estimate the fair value of stock options in accordance with
SFAS No. 123R. The Black-Schaoles mode! requires the use of a number of assumptions including
volatility of the stock price, the weighted average risk-free interest rate, and the weighted average
expected life of the options. The Company does not have a formal dividend program; therefore the
dividend rate variable in the Black-Scholes model is zero.

The risk-free interest rate assumption is based upon observed interest rates on zero coupon U.S.
Treasury bonds whose maturity period is appropriate for the term of the Company’s stock options and is
calculated by using average monthly yield for the twelve months preceding the grant date.

The volatility assumption was calculated using volatility rates of companies in the Company's
industry sector because the Company is newly public and does not have sufficient history to use its own
historical volatility.

The expected life of options granted to employees and directors represents the weighted average
amount of time that those options are expected to remain outstanding based on the best estimates ofthe
Company.

Stock-based compensation expense for employees and directors recognized in the Company’s
consolidated statement of operations for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 is based on
options granted on or after January 1, 2006, that are ultimately expected to vest and has been reduced
for estimated forfeitures. SFAS No. 123R requires forfeitures to be estimated at the time of grant and
revised in subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ from those estimates. The Company’s forfeiture
rates were estimated based on its historical experience. Prior to adoption of SFAS No. 123R, the
Company accounted for forfeitures as they occurred for the purposes of its pro-forma disclosures
required under SFAS No. 123, as disclosed in Note 2.

The weighted average fair value of options granted and the assumptions used in the Black-Scholes
model for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 are set forth in the table below.

Year Ended
December 31,
2007 0 2006 2005
Weighted average fair value of options granted . . . . ... . ..... $ 613 $ 493 $ 018
Dividendyield. .......... ... .. i, None None None
Weighted average risk-free interestrate ... ............... 4.59% 4.92% 4.13%
Weighted average expected volatility . . ... ............... 40.40% 49.05% —
Weighted average expected life of options (in years) . ... ..... 41 4.5 5.0

0 Includes 140,000 options granted in May 2007 to members of the Company’s Board of Directors
that were not issued pursuant to the Plan.

SFAS No. 123R requires that the cash retained as a result of the tax deductibility of employee and
director share-based awards be presented as a component of cash flows from financing activities in the
consolidated statement of cash flows. During the year ended December 31, 2007, the Company retained
approximately $4.8 miillion as a result of the tax deductibility of employee and director share-based
awards exercised during the period. No cash was received from stock option exercises as no employee
stock options were exercised during the years ended December 31, 2006 or 2005.
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The following is a summary of the employee and director stock option activity for the years ended

December 31, 2006 and 2007, respectively:

Outstanding, January 1,2006 . ........
Granted ........... ... i
Forfeited/cancelled . ..............

Outstanding, end of period . . . . .. .. ..

Options vested and expected to vest,
endofperiod ..................

Options exercisable, December 31,
2006 ... ........ ... ... ...

QOutstanding, January 1, 2007 . . ... .. ..
Granted M ... ... L
Exercised .. ....................
Forfeitedfcancelled @ ... ..........

Qutstanding, end of peried. . . . ... ...

Options vested and expected to vest,
endofperiod ..................

Options exercisable, December 31,
2007 ... ..
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Welghted
Weighted  Average
Average Remaining
Exercise Term Aggregate
Options Price {In Years) instrinsic Value
{in thousands)
2,473,480 $ 1.35
100,000 12.00
(26,640) 3.93
2,546,840 1.74 67 $ 29,335
2,491,519 1.74 6.7 28,698
1,853,076 1.04 6.6 22,638
2,546,840 $ 1.74
ag1,600 14.30
(1,860,714) 1.10
(124,384) 5.00
1,543,342 10.24 72 $ 15,529
1,463,409 10.24 7.2 14,724
305,621 1.52 6.4 5,734

™ Includes 140,000 options granted in May 2007 to members of the Company’s Board of Directors
that were not issued pursuant to the Plan.

@ Includes 20,000 options forfeited by Domingo Gallardo, who resigned from the Board of Directors
on October 29, 2007. These options were not issued pursuant to the Plan.

The aggregate intrinsic value in the table above represents the difference bstween the closing
market price of the Company’s common stock at December 31, 2007, and the exercise price, multiplied
by the number of in-the-money options that would have been received by the optiocn holders had all
option holders exercised their options on December 31, 2007.

As of December 31, 2007, unrecognized stock-based compensation related to unvested employee
options granted on or after January 1, 2006, was approximately $4.7 million, net of estimated forfeitures.
These costs are ta be recognized over a weighted average period of 43 months. Qutstanding options to
purchase shares granted during the year ended December 31, 2007 expire either in 2014 or 2017, and
the outstanding options to purchase shares granted during the year ended December 31, 2006 expire in
2013. No options expired during the years ended December 31, 2007 or December 31, 2006.
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Stock-Based Compensation—Physicians

For the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, the Company issued 151,840, 39,000 and
268,750 options, respectively, to its affiliated radiologists, who are independent contractor physicians.
The Company recorded stock-based compensation expense related to these independent contractor
physicians’ options of approximately $3.7 million, $2.8 million and $1.4 million for the years ended
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

The following table represents the assumptions used in the independent contractor physician
option valuation for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005.

Year Ended
December 31,

2007 2006 2005

Dividend yield .. ... ... s None None None
Weighted average risk-free interestrate . ...................... 4.03% 4.88% 4.40%
Weighted average expected volatility . . . ................ o0 50.20% 46.08% 37.28%
Weighted average expected life of options (inyears) ............. 1.82 2.47 3.37

During 2005, the Company also agreed to sell 120,000 shares of the Company's common stock at
$3.00 per share to an independent contractor physician. Under the terms of the agreement, the shares of
common stock were not issued to the independent contractor physician until the shares were fully paid
for in July 2006. For the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, the Company recorded independent
contractor physician stock-based compensation related to these shares totaling $488,000 and
$582,000, respectively. There was no expense related to these shares for the year ended December 31,
2007.

8. Income Taxes

As previously noted, the Company consolidates its financial results under the provisions of FIN 46R.
For income tax purposes, however, the Company is not considered a consolidated entity. As a result,
VRC and each of the Affiliated Medical Practices file individual entity returns with the various applicable
state and federal agencies, and the income and losses of the Affiliated Medical Practices do not resuit in
a tax liability or benefit to VRC. -

93




VIRTUAL RADIOLOGIC CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-—(CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007, 2006 AND 2005

The following table shows the components of deferred tax assets and liabilities as of December 31,
2007 and 2006.

December 31,
2007 2006
{(in thousands)

Deferred tax asset

Non-controlling interest . . . ... .. ... ... . . i $ 2779 $ 1,926
Stock-based compensation deductions . . . .......... .. ... ... ..., 422 —
Accruals and reversals ... ......... ... it 225 212
Accrued compensation and employee bensefits . . ................... 170 164
Foreign net operating loss carryforward ... ....................... 8 —
Total deferred tax asset before valuation aliowance . . . ................. 3,604 2,302
Less: Valuation allowance . . . ... ... .. it (2,787) (1,926)
Total deferred tax @SSt . . . .. .. oo i i e e 817 376
Deferred tax liability
Accelerated depreciation and amortization . .............. .. .. .. ... 706 388
Prepaid EXpeNSeS . . . . L e e e e 372 52
Total deferred tax fiability .. ....... ..., ... . . . . . . . .. 1,078 440
Net deferred tax liability . ............ ... ... ... . . . ... $ (261) $ (64)

During 2007, the Company recorded an approximately $2.8 million valuation allowance against its
deferred tax assets due to uncertainties related to their utilization. The valuation allowances at
December 31, 2007 and 2006 relate primarily to net losses of certain of the Affiliated Medical Practices
recognized through consolidation in accordance with the provisions of FIN 46R. These losses do not
result in a tax benefit on a consolidated basis.

During the year ended December 31, 2007, the Company generated federal and state net operating
loss carryforwards primarily due to windfall tax deductions from stock options. As of December 31, 2007,
the Company had suspended additional paid-in capital charges of approximately $6.6 million related to
excess stock-based compensation deductions. In accordance with SFAS No. 123R, the amount of
windfall benefit recognized in additional paid-in capital is limited to the amount of benefit realized in
income taxes payable. The Company has recorded approximately $4.8 million of the total $11.4 million
net operating loss deferred tax asset generated from excess tax deductions from stock option exercises
in additional paid-in capital. Upon realization of the remaining net operating loss carryforwards from
excess stock-based compensation, the Company will record an approximately $6.6 million benefit in
additional paid-in capital.

As of December 31, 2007, the Company has federal net operating loss carryforwards of
approximately $15.8 million that will expire in 2028. If substantial changes in the Company's ownership
occur, there could be an annual limitation on the amount of the carryforwards that are available to be
utilized. The Company analyzes ownership changes on a consistent basis.
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The following table shows components of income tax expense for the years ended December 31,
2007, 2006 and 2005.

Year Ended
December 31,

2007 2006 2005
(in thousands)

Current
Federal . ... ... . . e e e e e e e e $2946 $ 954 % 26
3 7 1 (= IV S 724 208 32
Total CUITENE . . . o o o it e e e e e 3,670 1,162 58
Deterred
Fedearal . .. .o e e e e e 156 50 —
1 =1 0= 1R 41 14 —
Total deferred ... ... .. i e e 197 64 —

$3867 $1226 $ 58

A reconciliation of the Company's effective income tax rate compared to the statutory federal
income tax rate for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 is as follows:

Year Ended
December 31,

2007 2006 2005

Statutory federal incometaxrate .. ... ......... ... .. 0 34.0% 34.0%  34.0%
State income taxes, net of federal benefit . . ................ .. 6.9 214 (0.6)
Valuation allowance . . . . ...t ot i e e 10.2 80.7 {35.9)
[0 1.7 208 (1.6
Effective income taxrate . ............. e e e e 528% 175.9% (4.1)%

As previously discussed, the Company consolidates its financial results in accordance with
FIN 46R. However, forincome tax purposes, VRC is a single tax entity that is taxed as a corporation and is
not included in a tax consolidated group with the Affiliated Medical Practices. As a result, tax losses of the
Affiliated Medical Practices are not available to offset taxable income of VRC. The deferred tax assets
from net operating losses generated by the Affiliated Medical Practices are evaluated for realization
based on whether it is more likely than not that each individual Affiliated Medical Practice will generate
sufficient future taxable income to utilize those losses. The difference in the consolidated group for
financial statement purposes and tax purposes, combined with the valuation allowances established for
deferred tax assets related to net operating loss carryforwards of certain Affiliated Medical Practices
results in the Company having an effective tax rate of 52.8% in 2007, 175.9% in 2006 and (4.1)% in 2005.

The Company adopted the provisions of FIN 48 on January 1, 2007. Previously, the Company had
accounted for tax contingencies in accordance with SFAS No. 5, Accounting for Contingencies. As
required by FIN 48, which clarifies SFAS No. 108, Accounting for income Taxes, the Company
recognizes the financial statement benefit of a tax position only after determining that the relevant tax
authority would more likely than not sustain the position following an audit. For tax positions meeting the
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more-likely-than-not threshold, the amount recognized in the financial statements is the largest benefit
that has a greater than 50 percent likelihood of being realized upon ultimate settlement with the relevant
taxing authority. At the adoption date, the Company applied FIN 48 to all tax positions for which the
statute of limitations remained open. As a result of the implementation of FIN 48, the Company did not
record any adjustment to the liability for unrecognized income tax benefits or retained earnings. The
Company does not have any unrecognized tax benefits as of January 1, 2007 or December 31, 2007.

The Company is subject to income taxes in the U.S. federal jurisdiction, and various state and
foreign jurisdictions. Tax regulations within each jurisdiction are subject to the interpretation of the
relevant tax laws and regulations and require significant judgment to apply. Prior to 2004, the Company
was not subject to significant income tax exposure as a result of its status as a limited liability company.
The Company is potentially subject to U.S. federal, state and local income tax examinations by tax
authorities for the tax years ended December 31, 2007, 2008, 2005 and 2004.

The 2005 federal income tax return of VRC recently underwent examination by the Internal Revenue
Service, or IRS. The IRS examination has now been closed, and the result of this examination was
immaterial.

The Company recognizes penalties and interest accrued related to unrecognized tax benefits in
income tax expense for all periods presented. As of the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, the
Company had no amounts accrued for the payment of interest and penalties.

9. Commitments and Contingencies

The Company leases office space and equipment under noncancellable operating leases with lease
terms ranging from two to ten and a half years through May 2019. For the years ended December 31,
2007, 2008 and 2005, total rent expense for the Company was $915,000, $729,000 and $607,000,
respectively.

As of December 31, 2007, future minimum lease commitments applicable to operating leases were
as follows:

(in thousands)

2008 .. e e e e e $ 1,030
2000 . L e e e e e 1,449
2010 . e e e 1,868
{0 1 I 1,657
2012 L e e e e e e e e 1,653
Thereafter . ... . e e e e e 10,933

$ 18610

On December 3, 2007, the Company entered into a lease agreement to lease approximately 82,000
square feet of space in a building being constructed in Eden Prairie, Minnesota, which will house the
Company’s corporate headquarters, including its operations center and physician services group, once
construction is completed. Construction is expected to be completed in late 2008 and the lease is
currently anticipated to commence on or around December 1, 2008, or when construction is completed.
This facility will combine the Company's headquarters, operations center and physician services
functions into one location. The lease expires in May 2019,
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As of December 31, 2007, the Company had no equipment leased under capital leases and no
resulting future minimum lease payments.

Litigation

The Company is involved in various litigation in the normal course of business. Although the results
of litigation and claims cannot be predicted with certainty, as of December 31, 2007 and 2006 the
Company’s management believes that the final outcome of these matters will not have a material
adverse effect on the Company s business, consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash
flows.

On July 31, 2007, Merge eMed, Inc., or Merge, filed a complaint against the Company in the United
States District Court for the Northern District of Georgia, Atlanta Division, alleging that the Company has
willfully infringed on certain of Merge’s patents relating to teleradiology. Merge is seeking treble
damages as well as its costs and legal fees in pursuing the action. Merge has asked the court for an
injunction, ordering the Company to cease the alleged infringement of their patents, and also that the
case be tried before a jury. While the Company is continuing to evaluate Merge’s allegations, it intends to
defend against this claim and may incur substantial costs in doing so. On September 14, 2007, the
Company filed a Request for Reexamination with the United States Patent and Trademark Office, or PTO,
for the patents that Merge has asserted against the Company, asking the PTO to reexamine the validity
of the Merge patents based upon certain prior art. The PTO granted the Company’s reexamination
request in November 2007. Also in November 2007, the Company filed a motion with the United States
District Court for the Northern District of Georgia, Atlanta Division, asking the court to stay the
proceeding that Merge has commenced in that court pending the outcome of the PTO reexamination.
On December 11, 2007, the court granted the Company's motion to stay the patent suit pending the
outcome of the reexamination. In February 2008, subsequent to the grant of the stay by the court, the
Company filed an additional Request for Reexamination with the PTO for these same patents based on
additional prior art. There is no assurance that the PTO will grant this additional request. The Company
has not recognized any expense related to the settiement of this matter as an adverse outcome of this
claim is not probable and cannot be reasonably estimated.

Professional Malpractice Liabillty Insurance

The Company is exposed to various risks of loss related to litigation that may arise related to
professional malpractice and maintains insurance for professional malpractice liabilities for coverage
considered adequate by Company management. The Company's claims-made policy provides
coverage up to $2 million per incident, $4 million per physician and $20 million in total claims filed within
the period of the policy term, subject to a $350,000 deductible. Coverage for affiliated independent
contractor physicians is initiated when they begin providing services on behalf of the Company. The
professional malpractice policy was renewed in October 2007.
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10. Employee Benefit Plans

The Company revised its 401(k) profit sharing plan (the “401(k) Plan™) effective January 1, 2007.
The previous plan covered employees who had completed two months of service and had attained the
age of 21. The current plan covers employees who have completed six months of service and does not
include any age restriction. The 401 (k) Plan allows each participant to contribute between 1% and 75%
of their compensation, subject to current IRS limitations. The Company began matching a portion of the
employee’s compensation, as defined by the 401 (k) Pian, in October 2005 at which time participants
were fully vested in matching contributions after two years of service. The revised plan allows
participants to become fully vested in matching contributions immediately. For the years ended
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, the Company contributed $339,000, $97,000 and $8,000,
respectively, to the 401(k) Plan.

11. Related Party Transactions

In December 2004, the Company issued an aggregate of $1.0 million of 10% Convertible
Subordinated Promissory Notes to the four physician owners of VRP and certain of their family
members. Each note was convertible into shares of the Company's common stock at the rate of $2.00
per share. All of the 10% Convertible Subordinated Promissory Notes were subsequently converted to
shares of the Company's common stock, except for $50,000 that was repaid in full with interest in July
2005.

The Company previously retained the services of an information technology consulting firm to assist
with the development and management of its information technology systems. This firm is owned by the
brother of one of VRC's directors. During the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, the
Company paid this consulting firm zero, $32,000, and $42,000, respectively, for consulting services. The
Company believes the costs of the services provided by this consulting firm were fair and at least as
favorable as those that could have been obtained through arm’s length negotiation between unrelated
parties. In addition to these services, in November 2006 the Company engaged this consulting firm to
assist in the Company’s search for a new Chief Technology Officer. On April 2, 2007, the owner of this
consulting firm became the Chief Technology Officer of the Company. Pursuant to the terms of the
Company's agreement with this consulting firm, the Company incurred $75,000 for the services
rendered by such firm in connection with the Company’s search for a new Chief Technology Officer,
which is included in sales, general and administrative expenses for the year ended December 31, 2007.

The Company has entered into a non-exclusive, non-transferable license agreement for the use of
certain image management software from a minority stockholder of the Company. For the years ended
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, the Company incurred licensing fees under this contract of
$866,000, $750,000 and $573,000, respectively.
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The following table illustrates the revenues, expenses and cash flows that result from the
management service agreements between the related parties described in Note 1.

Year Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005
{In thousands)

VRC management fee revenue from VRP . .............. ... .. $ — $ — $15,050
VRP management fee expensetoVRC . . ... ........ ... .. ... — — 15,050
VRP professional services revenue fromVRC . ............. ... 20,633 16,182 —
VRC professional services expenseto VRP .. ... ... ... ... ... 20,633 16,182 —
VRP professional services revenue from the Professional

Corporations . .. ... .o e e 21,873 15076 —
Professional Corporations professional services expense to VRP ... 21,873 15,076 —
VRC management fee revenue from the Professional Corporations .. 19,256 11,068 —
Professional Corporations management fee expense to VRC .. .. .. 19,256 11,068 —
Cash paid for management fees by VRPto VRC .. . ....... ... ... — — 9,144
Cash paid for professional services by VRCtoVRP . .. .. ... ... .. 20,633 16,182 —
Cash paid for professional services by the Professional Corporations

IO VRP e 21,873 15,076 —
Cash paid for management fees by the Professional Corporations to

VR . e 19,256 11,068 —

12. Earnings Per Share

The Company calculates earnings per share in accordance with EITF Issue No. 03-6 Participating
Securities and the two-class method under FASB Statement No. 128, or EITF lssue No. 03-6. In
calculating basic earnings per share, this method requires net income to be reduced by the amount of
dividends declared in the current period for each class of stock and by the contractual amount of
dividends or other participation payments that are paid or accumulated for the current period.
Undistributed earnings for the period are allocated to participating securities based on the contractual
participation rights of the security to share in those current earnings assuming all earnings for the period
are distributed. The Company’'s preferred stockholders had contractual participation rights on a
converted basis that were equivalent to those of common stockholders. Therefore, the Company
allocates undistributed earnings to preferred and common stockholders based on their respective
ownership percentage, on a converted basis, as of the end of the period.

EITF Issue No. 03-6 also requires companies with participating securities to calculate diluted
earnings per share using the if-converted method. This method requires net income to be adjusted by
the amount of dividends declared or accumulated and by the accretion or decretion associated with
convertible securities, subject to the antidilution provisions of SFAS No. 128 Earnings per Share, or SFAS
No. 128. The if-converted method also requires the denominator to include the additional shares issued
upon the assumed conversion of the convertible securities along with the additional share equivalents
from the assumed conversion of stock options and warrants calculated using the treasury stock method,
again subject to the antidilution provisions of SFAS No. 128. Prior period earnings per share amounts
have been presented to comply with the provisions of EITF Issue No. 03-6.
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The following table presents the computation of earnings per share:

Year Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005
(in thousands)

Basic and Diluted Earnings per Share
(Two-class Method) )
Netincome (Jo8s) . . . . . . .ot i e e e $ 3451 $ (529) $ (1,465)

Less:
Cash dividends paid:

Series APreferred Stock . . . . . . . ... .. e (13,596) - —
Series A Cumulative Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock accretion. . . . ... .. (10127 (11,437) (28,181)
Undistributed 108s .. . . . . . . e e e e $ (20,272) $ (11,986) $ (29,646)

Distributed Earnings per Share
Basic and Diluted

Cash dividends paid to Series A Preferred stockholders . . .. ... ............ $ 13596 § e —
Weighted average preferred shares outstanding . . . . .. ....... ........... 3,150 3,627 2,414
Distributed earnings per share—Preferred . . . . .. ... .. ... .. ... ... .., .., $ 432 § —  $ —
Cash dividends paid to common stockholders . . . . ..................... $ 26312 % — 3 —
Weighted average common sharesoutstanding . . . .. ................... 8,762 6,640 6,254
Distributed earnings per share—Common. . . . .. .. ... ... it $ 300 % — % —
Undistributed Earnings per Share

Baslic
Undistibuted loss . . . . .. .. .. ..o $ (20,272) $ (11,966) $ (29,646)
Series A Preferred ownershiponaconvertedbasis. . . . ... ............... 0% 35% 35%
Series A Preferred stockholders interest in undistributed loss . . .. ........... $ — g —m g —
Weighted average Series A Preferredshares . . . . ... ................... 3,150 3,627 2,414
Undistributed loss per share—Series A Preferred Stock . . . .. ....... . ...... $ — % — % —
Undistributed [08s . . . . . . ... e e e e $ (20,272) $ {11,988} $ (29,646)
Common OWNership . . . . ... . e e e e 100% 65% 65%
Common stockholders interest in undistributed loss . . . . ................. $ (20,272)M $ {11,966}" § (29,646)("
Weighted average common shares outstanding—Basic . ... ............... 8,762 6,640 6,254
Total basic loss per share—Common. . . . ... . it e $ {231} $ (180) & (474

Diluted Earnings per Share

{-converted Method)
Net loss available to commaon stockholders. . . .. ... ...... ... . . ... ..., $ (20,272) $ (11,968) $ (29,646)
Less: Series A Cumulative Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock accretion . . . . . — @ —@ — &
Net loss used in diluted earnings pershare . ..., .......... ... ......... $ (20272) $ (11,966) § (29,648)
Weighted average common shares outstanding—Basic . .. ................ 8,762 6,640 6,254
Convertible preferred stock . . .. ... .. .. ... ... ... ... ... —@ —@ — @
Common share equivalents . . . . . ....... ... .. ... ... ... . ... ... ., — @ — 3 — @
Shares used to compute loss per common share—Diluted . . . .. ............ 8,762 6,640 6,254
Total diluted loss pershare . . . . ... ... .. ... . .. e $ (231 $ (1.80) $ (479

(b Preferred stockholders do not participate in any undistributed losses with common stockholders.

@ The impact of the assumed conversion of the Series A Preferred Stock has been excluded from the calculation of diluted
earnings per share because the effect is anti-dilutive.

®  Common share equivalents are not included in the diluted eamings per common share calculation for these periods as they
are anti-dilutive. Potential common shares totaled approximately 0.8 million, 3.4 million and 3.4 million for the years ended
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.
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ITEM 9. Changes In and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial
Disclosure

None.

ITEM 9T. Controls and Procedures

We conducted an evaluation, under supervision and with the participation of management,
including the chief executive officer and chief financial officer, of the effectiveness of the design and
operation of the Company's disclosure controls and procedures (as such term is defined by
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended). Based upon that
evaluation, our chief executive officer and chief financial officer concluded that the Company’'s
disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of December 31, 2007.

This annual report on Form 10-K does not include a report of management's assessment regarding
internal control over financial reporting or an attestation report of the Company’s independent registered
public accounting firm due to a transition period established by the rules of the SEC for newly public
companies,

ITEM 98. Other Information
None.
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" PART 1l
ITEM 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

The information with respect to the Board of Directors contained under the heading “Election of
Directors”, and information contained under the heading “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting
Compliance” and “Executive Officers” in the Proxy Statement for the Company's 2008 Annual Meeting
of Stockholders to be filed with the SEC within 120 days after the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007,
is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 11. Executive Compensation

The information contained under the heading “Executive Compensation” in the Proxy Statement for
the Company's 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with the SEC within 120 days after the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2007 (except for the information set forth under the subcaption
“Compensation Committee Report”) is incorporated herein by reference,

ITEM 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related
Stockholder Matters

The information with respect to the security ownership of certain beneficial owners and
management and related stockholder matters contained under the headings “Security Ownership of
Certain Beneficial Owners and Management” and “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting
Compliance” in the Proxy Statement for the Company’s 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed
with the SEC within 120 days after the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007, is incorporated herein by
reference.

Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans

The following table sets forth information about our equity compensation plans as of December 31,
2007:

(a) (b) (c)
Number of securities
remaining available for
Number of securities to Weighted-average future issuance under equity
be issued upon exercise exercise price of compensation plans
of outstanding options, outstanding options, {excluding securities
Plan Category warrants and rights warrants and rights reflected in column a)

Equity

compensation

plans approved

by security

holders . ... ... — $ — —
Equity

compensation

plans not

approved by

security holders . 2,284,906 $ 8.96 616,591

Total .......... 2,284,906 $ 8.96 616,51
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ITEM 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence

The information contained under the heading “Certain Relationships and Related Party
Transactions” in the Proxy Statement for the Company’s 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be
filed with the SEC within 120 days after the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007, is incorporated herein
by reference.

ITEM 14. Principal Accounting Fee and Services

The information contained under the heading “Audit Committee Report” and "Principal Accountant
Fees and Services” in the Proxy Statement for the Company’s 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to
be filed with the SEC within 120 days after the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007, is incorporated
herein by reference.
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-PART IV

ITEM 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

The following information required under this item is filed as part of this annual report:

1)} Consolidated Financial Statements: See Index to Consolidated Financial Statements contained

2)

3)

in ltem 8 on page 53 of this annual report.
Financial Statement Schedule: Schedule Il—Consolidated Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

Financial statement schedules not listed above are omitted because they are not required or
are not applicable, or the required information is presented in the financial statements
{including the notes thereto). Captions and column headings have been omitted where not
applicable,

Exhibits are incorporated herein by reference or are filed with this annual report as set forth
below:
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit No. Description
3.1{1) Certificate of Incorporation of Virtual Radiologic Consultants, Inc. (now known as
Virtual Radiclogic Corporation).
3.2(1) Bylaws of Virtual Radiclogic Consultants, Inc. (now known as Virtual Radiologic
Corporation).
3.3(1) Certificate of Amendment to the Certificate of Incorporation of Virtual Radiologic
Consultants, Inc. (now known as Virtual Radiologic Corporation).
3.4(4) Certificate of Amendment to the Certificate of Incorporation of Virtual Radiologic
Consultants, Inc. (now known as Virtual Radiologic Corporation).
3.5(5) Form of Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Virtual Radiologic
Corporation.
3.6(5) Form of Second Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorperation of Virtual
Radiologic Corporation. _
3.7(7) Amended and Restated Bylaws of Virtual Radiologic Corporation.
4.1(5) Form of Stock Certificate.
10.1(2) Investor Rights Agreement, dated as of May 2, 2005, by and among Virtual
Radiologic Consultants, Inc., the parties listed on the signature page thereto as
investors and, for purposes of Section 1 only, William Blair & Company, L.L.C.
10.2(2) Cross Purchase Agreement, dated as of October 24, 2003, by and among Virtual
Radiologic Consultants, Inc., Sean O. Casey, Eduard Michel, David Hunter and
Gary Weiss.
10.3(2) Form of Indemnification Agreement, between Virtual Radiologic Corporation and each
member of the Board of Directors.
10.4(5) Employment Agreement, effective as of July 1, 2006, by and between Virtual
Radiologic Corporation and Eduard Michel, M.D.*
10.5(5) Loan Agreement, dated July 20, 2004, among Virtual Radiologic Professionals, PLC,
Virtual Radiologic Consultants, inc. and Associated Commercial Finance, Inc.
10.6(5) Security Agreement, dated as of July 20, 2004, by Virtual Radiologic
Professionals, PLC, in favor of Associated Commercial Finance, In¢.
10.7(5) Security Agreement, dated as of July 20, 2004, by Virtual Radiologic
Consultants, Inc., in favor of Associated Commercial Finance, Inc.
10.8(2) Assumption Agreement and Amendment of Loan Agreement, dated as of May 2,
2005, among Virtual Radiologic Professionals, LLC, Virtual Radiologic
Consultants, Inc. and Associated Commercial Finance, Inc.
10.8(2) Amendment to Loan Agreement, dated March 27, 2006, among Virtual Radiologic
Corporation, Virtual Radiologic Professionals, LLC and Associated Commercial
Finance, Inc.
10.10(2) Amendment No. 1 to Security Agreement, dated as of March 27, 2006, by Virtual

Radiologic Corporation and Associated Commercial Finance, Inc.
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Exhibit No.

Description

10.11(5)

10.12(5)

10.13(5)

10.14(5)

10.15(5)

10.16(5)

10.17(5)

10.18(3)

10.19(3)

10.20(3)

10.21(3)

10.22(3)

10.23(3)

10.24(5)

10.25(5)

Professional and Management Services Agreement and License, dated as of
January 1, 2006, by and between Virtual Radiologic Professionals, LLC and Virtual
Radiolegic Corporation.t

Management Services Agreement, dated as of January 1, 2006, by and between
Virtual Radiologic Corporation and Virtual Radiologic Professionals of Minnesota,
PA.t

Management Services Agreement, dated as of January 1, 2006, by and between
Virtual Radiclogic Corporation and Virtual Radiclogic Professionals of New York,
PA.t

Management Services Agreement, dated as of January 1, 2006, by and between
Virtual Radiologic Corporation and Virtual Radiologic Professionals of California,
PA.1

Management Services Agreement, dated as of January 1, 2006, by and between
Virtual Radiologic Corporation and Virtual Radiclogic Professionals of lllinois, PA.t

Management Services Agreement, dated as of January 1, 2006, by and between
Virtual Radiologic Corporation and Virtual Radiologic Professionals of Michigan,
PA.T

Management Services Agreement, dated as of January 1, 2006, by and between
Virtual Radiologic Corporation and Virtual Radiologic Professionals of Texas, PA.1

Professional Services Agreement, dated as of January 1, 2006, by and between
Virtual Radiclogic Professionals, LLC, and Virtual Radiologic Professionals of
Minnesota, PA.T

Professional Services Agreement, dated as of January 1, 2006, by and between
Virtual Radiologic Professionals, LLC, and Virtual Radiologic Professionals of New
York, PA.t :

Professional Services Agreement, dated as of January 1, 2006, by and between
Virtual Radiologic Professionals, LLC, and Virtual Radiologic Professionals of
California, PA-t

Professional Services Agreement, dated as of January 1, 2006, by and between
Virtual Radiclogic Professionais, LLC, and Virtual Radiologic Professionals of lllinois,
PA.T

Professional Services Agreement, dated as of January 1, 2006, by and between
Virtual Radiologic Professionals, LLC, and Virtual Radiclogic Professionals of
Michigan, PA.t1

Professional Services Agreement, dated as of January 1, 2006, by and betwesen
Virtual Radiologic Professionals, LLC, and Virtual Radiologic Professionals of Texas,
PA.t

Lease Agreement, dated as of March 11, 2004, by and between Midwest Holding
Corp. #9, Inc. and Virtual Radiologic Consultants, LLC.

First Amendment to Lease Agreement, dated August 12, 2004, by and between
Midwest Holding Corp. #9, Inc. and Virtuat Radiologic Consuitants, LLC.
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Exhibit No.

Description

10.26(5)
10.27(5)

10.28(2)
10.29(2)
10.30(2)
10.31(5)
10.32(2)
10.33(2)
10.34(5)

10.35(3)
10.36(3)
10.37(5)
10.38(3)
10.39(3)
10.40(3)
10.41(3)

10.42(3)
10.43(3)
10.44(3)

10.45(3)

MEDB Building Lease Agreement, dated November 28, 2005, by and between Maui
Economic Development Board, Inc. and Virtual Radiologic Consultants, inc.

Second Revised Licensing Agreement, dated as of April 1, 2006, between Fujifilm
Medical Systems U.S.A., Inc. and Virtual Radiologic Corporation.t

Virtua! Radiologic Consultants, Inc. Equity incentive Plan.*

Virtual Radiologic Consultants, Inc. Stock Purchase Plan.*

Virtual Radiologic Professionals, PLC Equity Incentive Plan.*

Form of Amended and Restated Virtual Radiologic Corporation Equity Incentive Plan.*
Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement.*

Form of Non-Incentive Stock Option Agreement.*

Revolving Loan Agreement, dated as of December 6, 2006, by and between Virtual
Radiologic Corporation and Associated Bank, National Association.

$2,000,000 Revolving Note, dated December 6, 2006, issued by Virtual Radiologic
Corporation in favor of Associated Bank, National Association.

Security Agreement, dated as of December 6, 2006, by Virtual Radiologic Corporation
and Associated Bank, National Association.

Lease Agreement, dated November 22, 2006, by and between Liberty Property
Limited Partnership and Virtual Radiologic Corporation.

First Addendum to Employment Agreement, dated January 12, 2005, by and between
Virtual Radiologic Consultants, Inc. and Mark Marlow.*

Amendment No. 2 to Employment Agreement, dated January 1, 2007, by and
between Virtual Radiclogic Corporation and Mark Marlow.*

Separation Agreement and General Release, dated December 31, 2006, by and
between Virtual Radiclogic Corporation and Brent J. Backhaus.

Separation Agreement and General Release, dated December 31, 2006, by and
between Virtual Radiologic Corporation and Lorna J. Lusic.

Amendment No. 1 to Professional and Management Services Agreement and License,
dated as of February 1, 2007, by and between Virtual Radiologic Professionals, LLC
and Virtual Radiologic Corporation.t

Amendment No. 1 to Professional Services Agreement, dated as of February 1, 2007,
by and between Virtual Radiclogic Professionals, LLC, and Virtual Radiologic
Professionals of Minnesota, PA.t

Amendment No. 1 to Professional Services Agreement, dated as of February 1, 2007,
by and between Virtual Radiologic Professionals, LLC, and Virtual Radiologic
Professionals of New York, PA.T

Amendment No. 1 to Professional Services Agreement, dated as of February 1, 2007,
by and between Virtual Radiologic Professionals, LLC, and Virtual Radiologic
Professionals of California, PA.T
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Exhibit No.

Description

10.46(3)

10.47(3)

10.48(3)

10.49(4)

10.50(4)

10.51(5)

10.52(4)

10.53(5)

10.54(5)

10.55(5)

10.56(4)

10.57(6)

10.58(5)

10.59(6)

10.60(5)

10.61(5)

10.62(5)

10.63(5)

Amendment No. 1 to Professional Services Agreement, dated as of February 1, 2007,
by and between Virtual Radiologic Professionals, LLLC, and Virtual Radiologlc
Professionals of lllinois, PA_1

Amendment No. 1 to Professional Services Agreement, dated as of February 1, 2007,
by and between Virtual Radiologic Professionals, LLC, and Virtual Radiologic
Professionals of Michigan, PA.t

Amendment No. 1 to Professional Services Agreement, dated as of February 1, 2007,
by and between Virtual Radiologic Professionals, LLC, and Virtual Radiologic
Professionals of Texas, PA.T

Physician Agreement, dated as of May 2, 2005, by and between Virtual Radiclogic
Professionals, PLC and Sean Casey, M.D.*

Amendment to Licensing Agreement, dated March 20, 2007, between Fuijifiim Medical
Systems and Virtual Radiclogic Corporation.

Employment Agreement, dated as of April 2, 2007, between Virtual Radiologic
Corporation and Richard W. Jennings.*

Amendment No. 1 to Employment Agreement, dated as of April 17, 2007, by and
between Virtual Radiologic Corporation and Richard W. Jennings.*

Employment Agreement, effective as of April 1, 2007, by and between Virtual
Radiologic Corporation and Mark Marlow.*

Employment Agreement, effective as of April 1, 2007, by and between Virtual
Radiologic Corporation and George H. Frisch.*

Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of April 2007, by and between the individuals
listed on Schedule A thereto, Generation Capital Partners VRC LP, individually and
as the agent for Generation Members’ Fund li LF, and Virtual Radiologic
Corporation.

Employment Agreement, effective as of May 29, 2007, between Virtual Radiologic
Corporation and Robert Kill.*

Independent Physician Agreement, dated as of April 12, 2008, by and between Virtual
Radiologic Professionals, LLC and Eduard Michel.*t

Lease, dated as of July 2, 2007, by and between 465 Fairchild Holdings, LLC and
Virtual Radiologic Corporation.

Virtual Radiologic Corporation 2007 Bonus Plan.*

Credit Agreement, dated as of August 29, 2007, amang Virtual Radiologic
Corporation, the guarantors named therein, the lenders from time to time party
thereto and NewStar Financial, Inc., as administrative agent.

Second Amendment to Lease, dated as of December 1, 2006, by and between Wells
REIT I-5995 Opus Parkway, LLC and Virtual Radiologic Corporation.

Third Amendment to Lease, dated as of August 21, 2007, by and between Wells REIT
I-5995 Opus Parkway, LLC and Virtual Radiologic Corporation.

Employment Agreement, effective as of October 1, 2007, by and between Virtual
Radiologic Corporation and Sean Casey.*
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Exhibit No. Description

10.64(5) Amended and Restated Independent Physician Agreement, effective as of

September 13, 2007, by and between Virtual Radiologic Professionals, LLC and
Sean Casey, M.D.*

21.1 List of subsidiaries of Registrant.***
231 Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP***
311 Certification by Principal Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) or 15d-14(a) of

the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, as adopted pursuant to
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.***

31.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14{a) or 15d-14(a) of

the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, as adopted pursuant to
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.***

32.1 Certification by Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S5.C. Section 1350, as

adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.***

322 Certification by Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.5.C. Section 1350, as

adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.***

(1)

2

3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

Incorporated by reference to the Registration Statement on Form S-1 (No. 333-136504) filed by the
Registrant on August 11, 2006, as amended.

Incorporated by reference to the Registration Statement on Form S-1 (No. 333-136504) filed by the
Registrant on September 26, 2006, as amended.

Incorporated by reference to the Registration Statement on Form S-1 (No.-333-136504) filed by the
Registrant on February 8, 2007, as amended.

Incorporated by reference to the Registration Statement on Form S-1 {(No. 333-136504) filted by the
Registrant on July 2, 2007, as amended.

Incorporated by reference to the Registration Statement on Form S-1 (No. 333-136504) filed by the
Registrant on September 17, 2007, as amended.

Incorporated by reference to the Registration Statement on Form S-1 {No. 333-136504) filed by the
Registrant on October 19, 2007, as amended. .

Incorporated by reference to the Registration Statement on Form S-1 (No. 333-136504} filed by the
Registrant on November 2, 2007, as amended.

Indicates management contract or compensatory plan contract or arrangement.
Filed herewith.

Confidential treatrnent has been requested far certain portions of this exhibit, which portions have
been omitted and filed separately with the Securities and Exchange Commission.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behaif by the undersigned on the
17™ day of March 2008, thereunto duly authorized.

VIRTUAL RADIOLOGIC CORPORATION

By: /s/ Sean Q. Casey, M.D.

Name: Sean O. Casey, M.D.
Title: Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of
the Board of Directors

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed
below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates

indicated.

Signature

/s/ Sean O. Casey, M.D.

Sean Q. Casey, M.D.

/s/ Mark Marlow

Mark Marlow

/s{ Eduard Michel, M.D., Ph.D.

Eduard Michel, M.D., Ph.D.

/s/ Mark E. Jennings

Mark E. Jennings

/s/ Andrew P Hertzmark

Andrew P. Hertzmark

fs/ Nabil N, El-Hage

Nabil N. El-Hage

/s/ Richard J. Nigon

Richard J. Nigon

Title

Chief Executive Officer and Chairman
of the Board of Directors (Principal
Executive Officer)

Chief Financial Officer {Principal
Financial and Accounting Officer)

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director
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Date

March 17, 2008

March 17, 2008

March 17, 2008

March 17, 2008

March 17, 2008

March 17, 2008

March 17, 2008

Mixed Sources
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